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2018 2022
( ( )]
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
48,580 47,156 43,133 42,097 41,884
46,363 46,619 39,451 39,962 39,697
94,943 93,775 82,584 82,059 81,581
31,089 29,855 28,427 27,556 27,001
24,765 24,659 22,084 22,178 22,540
14,603 14,714 12,159 11,355 10,775
783 900 181 890 1,126
(490) (53) 111) (357) (611)
276 183 201 318 1,005
1,871 489 2,899 2,525 1,405
321 252 247 266 251
73,218 70,999 66,087 64,731 63,582
21,725 22,776 16,497 17,328 17,999
3,784 1,898 1,783 2,209 2,702
17,941 20,878 14,714 15,119 15,297
17,941 20,878 14,714 15,119 15,297
18.9% 22.3% 17.8% 18.4 18.8
6.73 7.81 5.51 5.63 5.61
() 23.8 30.4% 24..0% 25.4 25.5
) )
1.3 13.6% 0.6% 0.6 6.7
6.73 7.81 5.51 5.63 5.61
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2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
19,803 18,962 18,766 17,658 17,035
4,009 3,652 3,347 3,498 3,670
187,378 182,018 174,894 157,728 152,954
26,888 29,985 32,635 26,494 27,684
21,194 23,410 23,536 23,416 22,201
4.45 4.19 3.98 3.75 3.54
29.39 28.16 24.04 22.59 22.44
) 176.65 171.07 157.38 145.75 127.27

)
2,625.2 2,632.1 2,632.8 2,645.1 2,681.5
2,663.9 2,674.0 2,670.7 2,684.3 2,728.7
( ) 152.7 141.7 134.5 132.2 135.1
« )
1887
1919 (Johnson & Johnson Canada)
(Ethicon) 1941
1949 1992 (Ethicon Endo-
Surgery, Inc.) (Ethicon, Inc.)
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(McNeil Laboratories, Inc.) 1959
1977 (McNeil Pharmaceutical)
(McNeil Consumer Products)
(Ortho Pharmaceutical)

(Ortho-McNeil Pharmaceutical) 1993

(Janssen Pharmaceutica) 1961
(Ortho-McNei l-Janssen

Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)

(Frontier Contact Lenses) 1981 ACUVUE®

(Johnson & Johnson Vision Care,

Inc.)

(Johnson & Johnson - Merck Consumer

Pharmaceuticals Co.) 1989

(Ortho Biotech) 1990

(Centocor Ortho Biotech Products, L.P.)

1993 S.A.(RoC, S.A.) 1994

(Neutrogena Corporation)

1994 (Kodak) (Clinical Diagnostics)
(Ortho
Diagnostic Systems) (Clinical Diagnostic Systems)
1997 (Ortho-Clinical Diagnostics, Inc.)
2014

(Johnson & Johnson Hospital Services)
(Johnson & Johnson
Advanced Behavioral Technologies)

(Johnson & Johnson Health Care Systems Inc.) 1995
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(Cordis Corporation) 1996

(DePuy, Inc.) 1998

(Johnson & Johnson Consumer

Products Company) (5.C. Johnson & Son, Inc.)

AVEENO® 1999
(Centocor, Inc.) 1999
(Centocor Ortho Biotech Inc.)
(BabyCenter, L.L.C.) 2001

(ALZA Corporation) 2001

(Inverness Medical) 2001

VA(Tibotec-Virco Comm. VA) 2002

(OraPharma, Inc.)
2003

(Scios
Inc.) 2003

(Merck) 50 (
) 2004
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(Gene Writer)
(Egea Biosciences, Inc.) 2004
X
(Artemis Medical, Inc.) 2004
(Biapharm) 2004
(BIAFINE)
(Peninsula Pharmaceuticals, Inc.) 2005
(Closure Medical Corporation) 2005
(TransForm Pharmaceuticals, Inc.) 2005
(Hand
Innovations LLC) 2006
S.A.(Future Medical Systems S.A.) 2006
(Animas Corporation) 2006
(Group
Vendome) 2006
(Vascular Control Systems Inc.) 2006
(ColBar

LifeScience Ltd.) 2006
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(Pfizer Inc.) 2006 12

(Conor Medsystems, Inc.) 2007

(Maya=s Mom, Inc.) 2007

(Children With Diabetes, Inc.) 2008

( (point-of-care)

(near-patient) ) AB(Amic AB) 2008

(Beijing Dabao Cosmetics Co., Ltd.) 2008

enseaL®

(SurgRx, Inc.) 2008 10

(HealthMedia, Inc.) 2008 10

LGE (LGE Performance Systems, Inc.) 2008 12

(Human Performance Institute, Inc.)

(Omrix Biopharmaceuticals, Inc.) 2008 12
(Mentor Corporation)

2009

(Cougar Biotechnology, Inc.) 2009
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oooooog
2009 (Elan Corporation, plc)
(Gloster Europe) 2009 11
2009 12
(Finsbury Orthopaedics Limited)
2010
(Acclarent, Inc.)
(RespiVert Ltd.)
(Micrus
Endovascular Corporation)
2011
N.V.(Crucell N.V.)( )
RINZA® DOKTOR MOM®
J.B. (J.B. Chemicals &
Pharmaceuticals Limited) (Merck
Sharp & Dohme Corp)
(SterilMed, Inc.)
2012 (Synthes Inc.)
. . ST S TM .
(Guangzhou Bioseal Biotech Co. Ltd) Quill (Quill ™ Knotless Tissue-

Closure Device)
(Angiotech Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)

(Corlmmun Inc.)

(Calibra Medical, Inc.)
(Spectrum Vision LLC)

7vRTEC®
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2013
(Flexible Stenting Solutions, Inc.)
(Shanghai Elsker Mother & Baby
Co., Ltd)
(Aragon Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)
®
2014 FynomAb
(Covagen AG)
(Alios BioPharma, Inc.)
(Jagdale Industries Ltd.)
ORsL™
2015
(X01 Limited) B
(Novira Therapeutics, Inc.)
2016
(Vogue International LLC)
(NeuWave Medical, Inc.)
(NeoStrata Company, Inc.) RHINOCORT®
2017 (PAH)
(Actelion Ltd.) (Abbott
Laboratories)
(AMO)
(Newuravi Limited)
(TearScience Inc.)
(Sightbox, Inc.) Linx™

(LINXTM Reflux Management System)
(Torax Medical, Inc.)

(Megadyne Medical Products, Inc.)
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2018

(Zarbee s, Inc.)

(Medical Enterprises Distribution LLC)
(BeneVir Biopharm, Inc.)(BeneVir)

(Orthotaxy)
2019
(DR. CI:LABO)
FDA
(Auris Health, Inc.)
(Taris Biomedical LLC)
(JointPoint, Inc.)

2020 (bermekimab)

(XBiotech Inc.)

(Momenta Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)

(Verb

Surgical Inc.)

2021

2022 (Abiomed, Inc.)

2022 12 22
380.00 (
171 )
35.00 ( CVR )(CVR
16 ) 165 (CVR
)
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AVEENO CLEAN & CLEAR DR. CI:LABO NEUTROGENA 0GX

TYLENOL
BENADRYL ZYRTEC
ZARBEE = S
JOHNSON*S AVEENO Baby

) 2023
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( ) (HIV  AIDS
) ( ) (
) ( ) ( )
REMICADE( )
SIMPONI (
)
(pJI1A) SIMPONI ARIA( )
STELARA( )
TREMFYA( )
(HIV-1) EDURANT
( )  PREZISTA( ) PREZCOBIX REZOLSTA(
) HIV SYMTUZA(
) CONCERTA
( HCI) cl
INVEGA SUSTENNA  XEPLION( ) INVEGA
SUSTENNA INVEGA TRINZA TREVICTA(
) I
RISPERDAL CONSTA( ) ZYTIGA(
)
ERLEADA( ) B
IMBRUVICA( ) DARZALEX( )
AL DARZALEX FASPRO(
)
(CAD) (PAD)
XARELTO(
) INVOKANA( )
INVOKAMET
VOKANAMET ( HCI)
INVOKAMETXR (
) (PAH)
OPSUMIT( ) (PAH) (1P

) UPTRAVI( )

26/439



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

PCI AMI

ACUVUE

( )
152,700
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19
STELARA( ) 2023
2022 STELARA( ) 64
FDA STELARA
STELARA
DARZALEX( )
DARZALEX FASPRO( ) 2022

8.4
(Genmab A/S) DARZALEX
(Janssen Biotech, Inc.)
2029
2032 (Janssen Biotech, Inc.) DARZALEX FASPRO
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FDA
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FDA
FDA
FDA
FDA
FDA
(2022
)
(PBM)
2022
D 2026 B 2028
(IRA) IRA
IRA D 2022 10 B
2023
IRA D (
D
) IRA
IRA

IRA
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( )
IRA
EU
(
Brexit )
2023 2022
2022 2021
« ) 155,800 144,300
« ) 152,700 141,700
« )
(Abiomed)
« )
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HIRITE%E B (H =)
16.6%
g 34.2%
200%
20.2%
. T?T:Kmﬁ :_. S—E?/{clhln':r?uj
1T 3 B k3
¢ )
(DED)
(Our Credo)
2022 77 92 36

(Our Credo)
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12 2022
2021

J&J Flex
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www. jnj.com SEC SEC
www . investor. jnj.com/sec.cfm
SEC SEC WWW. Sec.gov
www . Factsaboutourprescriptionopioids.com  www.factsabouttalc.com

www . LTLManagementInformation.com

www. jnj.com SEC

www . investor. jnj.com/gov.cfm
www. jnj.com www.factsaboutourprescriptionopioids.com www.factsabouttalc.com

www . LTLManagementInformation.com SEC
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JJHC

JINJ

JINTL

(APAC)

JINTL

(APAC)
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JINTL
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A&GM

USA

USA

WH4110

3D

Ap

S

Pty

ApS

GmbH

B.V.
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SRL
BV
AS
Pte.
GmbH
UK
AB
6
B.V.
( )
C ApS
0TC S.r.l.
B.V.
GmbH
S.L.
S.A. C.V.
GmbH
( )
SA
S.A. C.V.
EES S. R.L. C.V.
EES S.A. C.V.
EIT GmbH
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( ) GmbH

Sarl

Sarl

S.A.

S.A.

FMS

SA

GATT

B.V.

GH

B.V.

GMED

BV

GmbH

UK

mbH

J&J

J&J

S.A.

J&J

J&J
S.A.

J.C.

BV

B.V.

S.A.

S.p-A.

SPA

C.A.

Lda
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GmbH

NV

S.A.

R&D

B.V.

A/S

AG

AS

B.V.

R.L. C.V.

Lda.

Ltda.

GmbH

NV

Kft.

NV

oY

GmbH

S.A.C. 1.
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Sp. z o.0.

Pty

S.A.

S.A.

S.A.

C.V.

S.L.

J-C

JJ

S.L.

JJc

B.V.

JJsv

BV

JJSV

SDN. BHD.

JJsv

AB

JJSV

Ltda.

INJ

JINJ

EMEA B.V.

JINTL

(APAC)

3 Pte.

JINTL

(APAC)

Pte.

JINTL

(

) Sdn.

Bhd.

JINTL

)

GmbH

JINTL

JINTL

GmbH

JINTL

JINTL

JINTL

) BV

JINTL

) Ltda.

JINTL

) s.r.o.

JINTL

) S.A.S.

JINTL

) Oy

JINTL

) SAS

JINTL

) Kft

JINTL

JINTL

JINTL

) AS

JINTL

)

JINTL

ol el Eal ol Hall Hal Hal Hal Hal Fal Hal Eal e

) sp- zo.0.
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INTL ( ) Linitada
INTL ( ) s.r.o.
INTL ( ) S.L.
INTL ( )
INTL BV
INTL 1 ( )
INTL 1 ( ) GmbH
INTL 1" )  GmbH
INTL
INTL S R.L C.V.
INTL FZ
INTL B.V.
INTL B.V.
INTL B.V.
INTL
( ) Limitada
( ) Pty
( )
«c )
( ) S.A.
( ) S.A.E.
«c )
( )
( )
( )
( ) Linitada
( ) (
( )
( )
( )
« )
( )
( )
AB
AG
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EOOD

B.V.

NV

EAME

S.A.C.e.l.

S.A.

S.

A.

S.A.

C.V.

S.

A.

S.

A.

S.A.

S.A.

S.A.

Ltda.

S.A.

S.

GmbH

m.

b.H.

GmbH

GT

S.A.

S.A.

S.

A.

GmbH

GmbH
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Ltda.

Kft

Sarl

B.V.

GmbH

S.A.

S.A.

C.V.

NV

GmbH

Pty

S.A.

S.p-A.

SAS

S.C.S.

S.A.S.
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FzZ

AB
Pty.
( )
S.A.
( S.A.
Sp. z o.0.
Pte.
Pty.
S.R.L.
S.E. d.o.o.
SDN. BHD.
)
UK
( ) Pty
« )
Lda
S.A.
S.A. C.V.
S.r.o
S.r.o
( )
S.A.
AB
ApS
( )
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(UK)

S.L.U.

AB

Sarl
Sarl
S.A. C.v.
B.V.
GmbH
B.V.
UG (haftungsbeschrankt)
S.A. C.V.

Sarl

0GX
omJ GmbH
NV
( )
y
S.R.L.
S.A.
PT
PT
PT
2
S.A. C.V.
ESV
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GmbH

S.C.R. Limitada

GmbH
GmbH
GmbH
GmbH
S.M.P. S. R.L. C.V.
GmbH
UAB
2023 509

50/439



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

( )
152,700
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10
2012 2022 (
)
( CPI )
100
2022
100
2022
( ) 2023
2022
2023 2022

2022
2022

2022
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FDA

2023
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1995
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EU

(
FDA(U.S. Food and Drug Administration
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(

(COVID-19)
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(COVID-19)
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EU

JOHNSON ~ S

2022
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FDA( )

(Good Manufacturing Practices)( )

19

EU
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(USPTO) (IPR)
FDA
Drug Application ANDA) ANDA
2010
Competition and Innovation Act BPCIA) FDA

(““at-risk”” launch)
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5 2022 25

2022 49 25
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100
(Foreign Corrupt Practices Act
FCPA)
FCPA FCPA
2010
(
)
[ ]
[ ]
o (
)
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2022 2
EU
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2021 11
Kenvue, Inc
2023
(
( )
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(
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( )
152,700

(Our Credo)
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(Our Credo)
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152,700

B I 58
(UAGE - R o)

B — TG i B PR
(BEfr : 8% Fa)

HRA D ORY
(Hifir : 3% <o)

14.6 14.7 17.7
445 4.19
0.1
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
2021 2020 2022
2022 2021 13.6 1.3 949
( ) 2022 2021
6.9 12.9
0.8) 0.7
(4.8) 1.4
1.3 13.6
2022 0.1
0.6

721439

oOoOooodn

2022

2021
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2022 3.0 486 2021 9.3 472
2022 0.6 464 2021 18.2 466
4.4 4.0 4.9
10 3.5 5.0 2.2
2022 11.0 11.6
0.6 10.2
3.7 6.5
6.2 9.0 2.8
2022 16.5 13.0
12.0 2021
14.0 11.0 11.0
20224F BE M BRES) R IE E (AL - 08 Fa) 0229FHE B &7 A L FRIIPE R (RAE « R Fas)

$52.6

$16.5 5274
54,1
15.0
5134 o
W et B ATERERLER) AR A TR
FTUEFLRR TEOD H E W

)
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2022 3.6 4.1
2021 0.5
1.3 66 5.3 7.2
1.9 84 2022
0.3
)
2022 2021
) ()
6,031 5,627 7.2 11.2 (4.0)
4,352 4,541 “4.2) 0.4) (3.8)
1,505 1,645 (8.5) .7 (3.8)
1,461 1,566 6.7) Q.4 (4.3)
904 917 (1.5) 7.0 (8.5)
700 739 (5.3) (3.8) (1.5)
14,953 15,035 (0.5) 3.6 @.1)
(  )2021 (
7.2 60
4.2 44
8.5
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) 2022 2021 () ) S
16,935 16,750 1.1 4.8 G.7)
REMICADE 2,343 3,190 (26.6) (25.3) (1.3)
SIMPONI  SIMPONI ARIA 2.184 2.276 4.0 1.0 (5.0)
STELARA 9,723 9,134 6.5 10.4 (3.9)
TREMFYA 2,668 2,127 25.4 30.1 4.7
17 24 (28.2) (28.2) 0.0
5,449 5,825 (6.5) 0.8 @7.3)
2,179 2,385 (8.6) 2.0 (10.6)
EDURANT 1,008 994 1.5 11.8 (10.3)
PREZISTA PREZCOBIX
REZOLSTA  SYMTUZA 1,943 2,083 (6.7) 4.4) (2.3)
« ) 318 363 (12.3) (7.2) (5.1)
6,893 6,988 1.4 3.4 (4.8)
CONCERTA 644 667 (3.5) 4.1 (7.6)
INVEGA SUSTENNA XEPLION
INVEGA TRINZA TREVICTA 4,140 4,022 3.0 6.9 (3.9)
RISPERDAL CONSTA 485 592 (18.1) (13.0) .1)
« ) 1,623 1,706 (4.9) 0.4 (5.3)
15,983 14,548 9.9 16.9 (7.0)
DARZALEX 7,977 6,023 32.4 39.5 7.1)
ERLEADA 1,881 1,291 45.7 53.0 (7.3)
IMBRUVICA 3,784 4,369 (13.4) (7.6) (5.8)
ZYTIGA 1,770 2,297 (22.9) (13.6) (9.3)
571 568 0.6 6.0 (5.4)
3,417 3,450 (1.0) 3.0 (4.0)
OPSUMIT 1,783 1,819 (2.0) 2.6 (4.6)
UPTRAVI 1,322 1,237 6.9 8.6 a.n
313 395 (20.8) (13.1) .7
3,887 4,119 (5.6) 4.0) (1.6)
XARELTO 2,473 2,438 1.4 1.4 —
INVOKANA  INVOKAMET 448 563 (20.4) (7.2) (3.2)
c )y C ) 966 1,119 (13.6) 9.3) (4.3)
52,563 51,680 1.7 6.7 (5.0)
C )
) VELCADE®
(  )2021 (
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2022 1.4 69
INVEGA SUSTENNA  XEPLION(

TRINZA TREVICTA INVEGA HAFYERA

2022 9.9 160
) ERLEADA(
IMBRUVICA(
EU ZYTIGA
1.0 34
OPSUMIT( ) UPTRAVI( )
5.6 39
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*k

2022 6.2 4.8

2021 1.4 274 5.4 134

6.9 9.2 2.3 141
2022
0.1
*

( ) 2022 2021 )

(Surgery) 9,690 9,812 a.2 3.8 (5.0)

4,569 4,622 1.1) 3.8 4.9

5,121 5,190 (1.3) 3.8 (5.1)

(Orthopaedics) 8,587 8,588 0.0 3.7 (3.7

1,514 1,480 2.3 5.8 (3.5)

1,359 1,325 2.6 6.1 (3.5)

2,871 2,885 (0.5) 3.1 (3.6)

2,843 2,898 (1.9 1.9 (3.8)

(Vision) 4,849 4,688 3.4 9.5 (6.1)

3,543 3,440 3.0 9.6 (6.6)

1,306 1,248 4.6 9.4 (4.8)

4,300 3,971 8.3 13.7 (5.4)

(Interventional Solutions)

27,427 27,060 1.4 6.2 (4.8)

**
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2022 2021 43 47
2022 2021
¢ ) C ) C )
493 3.3 459 3.1
11,622 22.1 11,878 23.0
2,488 9.1 2,377 8.8
14,603 15.4 14,714 15.7
/( ) (0.8) 21.0
« )
2022 (AD) (HS)
(InJ-77474462)
AD HS AD HS
2020 X
2021 2019 (Auris Health)
(Ottava)
2022
DCF ( )

Ottava 15
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« ) C )
JJDC (Johnson & Johnson Innovation - JJDC, Inc.)(JJDC)
C )
2022 ( ) 14
( W) 2022 2021
1.0 0.1 0.9
« ) 0.9 2.3 1.4)
0.7 (0.5) 1.2
0.7 0.0 0.7
« ) 0.1 0.5) 0.6
0.1 0.1 0.0
(1.2) (0.6) (0.6)
(0.4) (0.4) —
« ) 1.9 0.5 1.4
( ) 2022 2021 Risperdal
( ) 2022 Abiomed 2021
2022 2021 130
214
2022 235
276 (2021 316
284 ) 2022 2021 338 345
397 367

2022 12 Abiomed
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« )
) 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
') 2,930 1,573 14,953 15,035  19.6 10.5
') 15,901 17,969 52,563 51,680  30.3 34.8
4,607 4,373 27,427 27,060 16.8 16.2
( 23,438 23,915 94,943 93,775 24.7 25.5
624 1,072
C D
1,089 67
21,725 22,776 94,943 93,775 22.9 24.3
) 17
C D ( ) (
« ) ( )
2022
2021 10.5 19.6
2022 2021 16 ( ) 2
2022 2021
2022
2022
2022 2021
34.8 30.3
2022 15
(2021 2022 )
2022 (AD) (HS)

(InJ-77474462)
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2022 2021 145 141

)
14.5 2021

21.2
(12.4)
(8.9

(0.3)
14.1 2022

2022 94 2021 171

212

17.9

7.3 )
(2.0)

0.7

1.1

(3.8)
21.2

124

(4.0)
17.7)
0.5
9.2
0.2)
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11.7)
(6.0)

7.5

1.3
(8-9)

2023
2023 21 161
2022 12 Abiomed, Inc. 2022
2021 338 397
27 20
(
19 )
2022 2017 (TCIA)
15
2022
12
(R&D) R&D
R&D
2022 14 50
2023
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( ) (TCIA)
2023 1,522 1,551 893 3,966
2024 2,029 1,392 843 4,264
2025 2,536 1,667 789 4,992
2026 — 1,996 744 2,740
2027 — 2,271 736 3,007
2026 — 19,562 8,772 28,334

6,087 28,439 12,777 47,303

2023 10
2023 10
17

(CSA)
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(100 )
2022 364
2023 2022 11
100 2023 11 21
(SOFR)
397 338
2022 (
21 161
2022 34.1 2021 31.1
28.16 2021 29.39
60 2022 2021
4.45
2023 21 2023
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2023 2022
( )
2022
¢ ) 287 1,052 (948) 391
76 83 (88) 71
387 2,077 (2,008) 456
750 3,212 (3,044) 918
32 5 ®) 34
15 210 (208) 17
797 3,427 (3,255) 969
2021
¢ ) 289 893 (895) 287
76 136 (136) 76
428 1,958 (1,999) 387
793 2,987 (3,030) 750
39 0 ©) 32
12 213 (210) 15
844 3,200 (3,247) 797
« ) 2023 2022
82 80
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( )
« )
2022
¢ ) 10,331 43,026 (41,068) 12,289
520 444 (315) 649
3 5 @ 1
10,854 43,475 (41,390) 12,939
50 0 (6) 44
94 1,281 (1,265) 110
10,998 44,756 (42,661) 13,093
2021
¢ ) 9,837 37,922 (37,428) 10,331
460 345 (285) 520
6 13 (16) 3
10,303 38,280 (37,729) 10,854
52 18 (20) 50
70 1,163 (1,139) 94
10,425 39,461 (38,888) 10,998
« ) 2023 2022
203 218
« )
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( )

2022
¢ ) 1,446 6,131 (6,107) 1,470
134 531 (531) 134
54 102 (113) 43
1,634 6,764 (6,751) 1,647
148 6 (29) 125
10 99 (100) 9
1,792 6,869 (6,880) 1,781

2021
¢ ) 1,174 5,942 (5,670) 1,446
138 559 (563) 134
52 140 (138) 54
1,364 6,641 (6,371) 1,634
202 12 (66) 148
9 % (95) 10
1,575 6,749 (6,532) 1,792

« ) 2023 2022
802 845
GAAP
GAAP
2017 12 31
2018
( )
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JINJ 2023 10
124,211 2022 2021
2022 2021
180.21 155.72 173.65 151.47
186.69 167.26 172.74 156.53
179.99 160.81 179.92 161.41
181.04 159.17 173.51 155.85
$176.65 $171.07
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( )
.............................................................................. 4,562
............................................................................................................... 5,456
............................................................................................................ 4,930
...................................................................................................... 14,948

19 23
13 25

( )
.................................................................................... 28 4,169
........................................................................... 27 6,016
( ) et 9 1,733
......................................................... 25 3,030
........................................................................ 89 14,948
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4,320,000 3’119’8§3 1,200,157
2,000 2,000
« ) 506,246,000
3,119,843 (
( 1.00 ) (D)
0 (
3,119,843 _
(D)
« ) 506,246,000
C )
C )
( 2,000,000
)
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(©))
2001 12 30 50,000 3,119,842 50 3,120
( ( (6446.5) | (402,261
2012 _ 3,119,843 . 3,120
( (402,261.
2012 12 30 — 3,119,843 . 3,120
( (402,261
2013 12 29 _ 3,119,843 B 3,120
( (402,261.
2014 12 28 _ 3,119,843 B 3,120
( (402,261.
2016 _ 3,119,843 . 3,120
( (402,261
2017 _ 3,119,843 . 3,120
( (402,261.
2017 12 31 _ 3,119,843 B 3,120
( (402,261
2018 12 30 _ 3,119,843 B 3,120
( (402,261
2019 12 29 _ 3,119,843 . 3,120
( (402,261.
2021 . 3,119,843 . 3,120
( (402,261
2022 . 3,119,843 . 3,120
( (402,261.
2023 _ 3,119,843 B 3,120
( (402,261.
C )
C )
C )
16
)
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®)
19355 246,826,621 %.44 ,
100 C )
10055 198,802,769 7.60
52 55 C ) ¢ )
02111 142,447,994 5.45
C ) «C )
( ) 2023 SEC 136G 2022 12
31 9.44 246,826,621
236,271,620 10,555,001 3,358,072
( ) 2023 31 SEC 136 2022 12
31 7.6 198,802,769
178,286,437 198,802,769
( ) 2023 10  SEC 136
2022 12 31 5.45 142,447,944
122,415,200 142,084,378
( )
( ) (
)
2022
230
2022 1190
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Johnson & Johnson Plaza, Room WH 2133, New Brunswick, NJ

( )

LeadDirector@its. jnj.com

(

www . jnj .com/wps/wem/ jsp/contactUs. jsp-

()
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c/o Johnson & Johnson, One
08933 USA

) https://secure-

Office of the Corporate Secretary, Johnson &

Johnson, One Johnson & Johnson Plaza, New Brunswick, NJ 08933 USA
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2021 | 1,030,000 | 7,001,281 | 2,303,098 | 2,310,450 875,767 | 184,796 | 13,805,292

2020 1,021,538 | 6,798,003 | 2,193,000 | 1,820,403 3,746,000 | 45,969 | 15,625,003
; 2022 | 1,008,462 | 4,718,897 | 1,841,952 | 1,177,800 o| 75,071 | 8,823,082
EVP 2021| 938,077 | 4,877,538 | 1,688,997 | 1,560,863| 1,809,807 | 78,243 | 10,953,615

2020 | 885,385 | 4,163,841 | 1,448,997 | 1,044,179 2,607,000 | 46,636 | 10,196,038
J 2022 | 1,008,462 | 4,764,921 | 1,859,958 | 1,004,875 o| 53,316| 8,781,532
=P 2021| 938,077 | 4,947,245 | 1,713,005 | 1,510,314| 1,067,411 49,707 | 10,225,759

2020 | 884,615 | 4,468,928 | 1,499,997 | 990,058| 1,642,000 | 46,871 | 9,532,469
i 2022| 984,615 | 3,935,021 | 1,535,967 | 890,250 0| 44,308| 7,300,161
-
EVP 2022| 917,308 | 3,681,233 | 1,436,969 | 798,000 62,000 | 196,900 [ 7,092,410
() Ew 2022

2023 2022
2022
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c )
( D)
(PSU) (RSU)
(i) (i) Giii) (200 ) PSU
) ) ) |(C )| ( ) ( )
J 2022 2024 PSU 0 30,3171 60,634 0 5,167,806 10,335,611
J 2022 2024 PSU 0 24,081 48,162 0 4,104,823 8,209,646
J 2022 2024 PSU 0 24,316| 48,632 0 4,144,881 8,289,762
A 2022 2024 PSU 0 20,081 40,162 0 3,422,987 6,845,974
T 2022 2024 PSU 0 18,786 37,572 0 3,202,243 6,404,486

194/439



CLC CLP

CLP

CLP

10

E )

(
2012 CLC
CLP 2022

CLP

CLP
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CLC CLP
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
2022 2,390,000 689,750 0 3,079,750
2021 1,670,000 649,450 0 2,319,450
2020 1,170,000 616,900 33,503 1,820,403
2022 1,160,000 17,800 0 1,177,800
2021 1,540,000 16,760 4,103 1,560,863
2020 1,020,000 15,920 8,259 1,044,179
2022 928,000 166,875 0 1,094,875
2021 1,340,000 157,125 13,189 1,510,314
2020 815,000 149,250 25,808 990,058
2022 690,000 200,250 0 890,250
2022 798,000 0 0 798,000
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( G )
CLC
CLC
) ) )
2022 0 0 0
2021 841,000 34,767 875,767
2020 3,746,000 0 3,746,000
2022 0 0 0
2021 1,809,000 897 1,809,897
2020 2,607,000 0 2,607,000
2022 0 0 0
2021 1,059,000 8,411 1,067,411
2020 1,642,000 0 1,642,000
2022 0 0 0
2022 62,000 0 62,000
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2022
2022 10 K 10
2022 | PRI-2012 MMP-2021 5.42
2021 | PRI-2012 MMP-2021 2.89
2020 | PRI-2012 MMP-2019 2.55
2019 | PRI-2012 MMP-2019 3.46
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2020 2022 (i)

)

SEC

) ) ) )

2022 4,079,000 (6,245,000) (2,166,000) 0
2021 1,812,000 (971,000) 841,000 841,000
2020 1,341,000 2,405,000 3,746,000 3,746,000
2022 2,249,000 (3,651,000) (1,402,000) 0
2021 2,365,000 (556,000) 1,809,000 1,809,000
2020 1,508,000 1,099,000 2,607,000 2,607,000
2022 1,218,000 (2,376,000) (1,158,000) 0
2021 1,430,000 (371,000) 1,059,000 1,059,000
2020 814,000 828,000 1,642,000 1,642,000
2022 1,020,000 (3,617,000) (2,597,000) 0
2022 215,000 (153,000) 62,000 62,000
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CcLC
cLC
12 (AFR) 120
SEC
cLC
CLC
51.62
52.90
( 1.28
() 2.48
5.22
Q.74)
0.00
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( H )
H 2022 401(K)
2021 2020
2022 2021 2022 16 2021 10 )
( ) ( ( ) ) ( )
201,894 67,093 0 268,987
23,245 45,381 7,345 75,971
0 45,381 7,935 53,316
0 44,308 0 44,308
155,621 41,279 0 196,900
10,000
2022
J 180,847 201,894
J 20,420
23,245
J
A
T 151,396
155,621
(
(
2013
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2022 2022 PSU RSU
D E
B c b | E | °F ¢ | w ] J K L M N
( ) ( )
« 7
(¢ 21 C 21 C 21 () (@D) (@D) (¢ ) (@) 21 (C 21 C )
0| 2,625,000 5,250,000
2022 2022
2024 PSU 14 of 30,317| 60,634 5,167,806
2022
RSU 14 5,053 773,023
5,940,829
2022
14 99,811 165.89]  165.60| 2,318,959
0] 1,275,000 2,550,000
2022 2022
2024 PSU 14 of 24,081| 48,162 4,104,823
2022
RSU 14 4,014 614,074
4,718,807
2022
14 79,280 165.89|  165.60| 1,841,952
0] 1,020,000 2,040,000
2022 2022
2024 PSU 14 of 24,316| 48,632 4,144,881
2022
RSU 14 4,053 620,040
4,764,921
2022
14 80,055 165.80]  165.60| 1,859,958
0| 1,000,000 2,000,000
2022 2022
2024 PSU 14 of 20,081| 40,162 3,422,987
2022
RSU 14 3,347 512,034
3,935,021
2022
14 66,110 165.80|  165.60| 1,535,967
o| 925,000 1,850,000
2022 2022
2024 PSU 14 o| 18,786| 37,572 3,202,243
2022
RsU 14 3,131 478,990
3,681,233
2022
14 61,849 165.80]  165.60| 1,436,969
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D F)
D F 2022
)
G 1)
I 2021 2022
(
J 2021 2022
(
K M 2021 2022
0.29
N 2022 PSU  RSU
2022
PSU RSU
2022 2024 EPS RSU  PSU
RSU  PSU
2022 2024 PSU EPS TSR
2024 PSU

TSR PSU
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PSU RSU
2022 14
(
165.89
)
2.70
2022 2024 EPS RSU  PSU ( )
RSU 152.983
2022 2024 EPS 2022 2024 PSU 152.933
2022 2024 PSU
( )
2022 2024 EPS 50 152.983
2022 2024 TSR 50 187.934
170.459
2022
165.89
( ) 1.98
(
) 18.003
Y ) 7.00
23.234
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ooooOoog
2022
2022 RSU  PSU
A B c D E F G Ho| 1 J K
(@)
( ) () |« ) (@) C )
2013 | 2016 2023
16 16 | 148,538 72.54| 13
2014 | 2017 2024
10 11 | 130,969 90.44
2015 | 2018 2025
10 | 126,369 100.06
2016 | 2019 2026
125,824 101.87
2017 | 2020 2027
13 13 | 123,291 115.67) 13
2018 | 2021 2028
12 12 | 105,307 129.51) 12
2019 | 2022 2029
11 11 | 110,868 131.94| 11
2020 | 2023 2030
10 10 133,516] 151.41| 10
2021 | 2024 2031
114,776| 164.62
2022 | 2025 2032
14 14 99,811| 165.89| 14
RSU
2020 | 2023
10 10 5,220 922,113
2021 | 2024
5,225 922,996
2022 | 2025
14 14 5,053| 892,612
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B c D E F | 6 H I J K
(@)
¢ ) (@D K¢ ) (@) ( )

2020 2022 PSU

2020 | 2023

10 10 31,319| 5,532,501
2021 2023 PSU

2021 | 2024

0 0 39,283 6,939,342

2022 2024 PSU

2022 | 2025

14 14 0 0 37,472 6,619,429
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ooooOoog
B c D E F | ¢ H I J K
(D)
( ) (DI K¢ ) ) ( )
2015 | 2018 2025
10 | 13,015 100.06
2016 | 2019 2026
16,820 101.87
2017 | 2020 2027
13 13 | 19,241 115.67| 13
2018 | 2021 2028
12 12 | 12,066 129.51) 12
2019 | 2022 2029
11 11 | 66,386 131.94] 11
2020 | 2023 2030
10 10 88,219 151.41f 10
2021 | 2024 2031
80,976| 164.62
2022 | 2025 2032
14 14 79,280 165.89| 14
RSU
2020 | 2023
10 10 3,449| 609,266
2021 | 2024
3,686 651,132
2022 | 2025
14 14 4,014 709,073
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B c D E F G H I J K
)
( ) (GO ¢ ) D) ( )

2020 2022 PSU

2020 | 2023

10 10 20,693 3,655,418
2021 2023 PSU

2021 | 2024

0 0 27,715 4,895,855

2022 2024 PSU

2022 | 2025

14 14 0 0 29,764 5,257,811
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B C D E F G H 1 J K
(@)
) (DI N ) (@) ( )
2014 2017 2024
10 11 59,397 90.44
2015 2018 2025
10 58,504 100.06
2016 2019 2026
56,471 101.87
2017 2020 2027
13 13 43,712 115.67 13
2018 2021 2028
12 12 43,391 129.51 12
2019 2022 2029
11 11 67,397 131.94 11
2020 2023 2030
10 10 91,324 151.41 10
2021 2024 2031
82,127 164.62
2022 2025 2032
14 14 80,055 165.89 14
RSU
2020 2023
10 10 3,570 630,641
2021 2024
3,739 660,494
2022 2025
14 14 4,053 715,962
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B E D E F G H I J K
(@)
( ) () (¢ ) (@) ( )

2020 2022 PSU

2020 | 2023

10 10 21,422| 3,784,196
2021 2023 PSU

2021 | 2024

0 0 28,109| 4,965,455

2022 2024 PSU

2022 | 2025

14 14 0 0 30,054| 5,309,039
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B C D E F G H I J K
)
) (G ¢ ) (@) ( )
2014 2017 2024
10 11 49,225 90.44
2015 2018 2025
10 46,803 100. 06|
2016 2019 2026
43,689 101.87
2017 2020 2027
13 13 37,361 115.67 13
2018 2021 2028
12 12 41,889 129.51 12
2019 2022 2029
11 11 58,972 131.94 11
2020 2023 2030
10 10 76,712 151.41 10
2021 2024 2031
68,894 164.62
2022 2025 2032
14 14 66,110f 165.89 14
RSU
2020 2023
10 10 2,999 529,773
2021 2024
3,136 553,974
2022 2025
14 14 3,347 591,248
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B c D E F G H 1 J K
D)
( ) (GO ¢ ) D) ( )

2020 2022 PSU

2020 | 2023

10 10 17,994| 3,178,640
2021 2023 PSU

2021 | 2024

0 0 23,580 4,165,407

2022 2024 PSU

2022 | 2025

14 14 0 0 24,820 4,384,453
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B c D E F G H I J K
)
( ) (G0 ) D) ( )

2020 | 2023 2030

10 10 58,447] 151.41 10
2021 | 2024 2031

69,470| 164.62

2022 | 2025 2032

14 14 61,849 165.89| 14

RSU

2020 | 2023

10 10 2,285 403,645
2021 | 2024

3,163 558,744

2022 | 2025

14 14 3,131| 553,091
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B c D E F G H 1 J K
D)
( ) () |( ) D) ( )

2020 2022 PSU

2020 | 2023

10 10 13,710 2,421,872
2021 2023 PSU

2021 | 2024

0 0 23,777 4,200,207

2022 2024 PSU

2022 | 2025

14 14 0 0 23,219 4,101,636
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( c )
RSU  PSU 100
(
PSU  H
J )
PSU
(i) TSR 2021 2023 PSU 117.0
EPS 2020 2022 PSU 133.6
(
K )
[ K RSU  PSU

2022 12 30 (2022
176.65
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2022

2022

2022 PSU RSU
(D) ( ) D) )
J 84,423 $8,650,825 35,138 $5,845,098
J 14,781 1,351,073 21,041 3,500,106
J 76,923 8,018,407 21,361 3,553,335
A 73,323 7,546,953 18,691 3,109,190
T 83,074 4,830,204 7,681 1,285,328
2022

2022 2022

) (@) ( ) ) ( ) ( )
J 33 62 1,672,000 16,241,000 [ 17,913,000 0
J 24 62 989,000 6,434,000 7,423,000 0
J 17 62 826,000 5,059,000 5,885,000 0
A 26 62 865,000 4,467,000 5,332,000 0
T 3 62 99,000 514,000 613,000 0
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2022

2026

@
@
3) 65
)

NEO 2015
(
2015
RVP )
62
55
62
1.667 2005
1.55 2004
1.429
cLC 2009
)
120
(
62
55

62
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RVP
) 2015

60

62



) 15  RW
62
RVP
RVP(
305,000
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RVP

RVP
RVP

2022

RVP(
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2022
A B C D E F
(¢ ) (¢ )] (¢ )] )] (¢ )}
0 53,368 85,318 0 8,805,899
0 31,656 (26,497) 157,719 388,842
1,782,727 31,656 (992,782) 506,930 6,736,914
0 30,583 (11,516) 647,720 2,731,052
0 27,554 (13,553) 197,135 89,700
( B )
B
50 100
F
( c)
c
( D)
D D
( cLC )
cLC cLP
G
cLC G
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OooooOodd
cLC
/C ) C )
(¢ ) ( ) (¢ ) ( )
0 (113,082) 198,400 85,318
0 (31,617) 5,120 (26,497)
(973,869) (66,913) 48,000  |(992,782)
0 (69,116) 57,600 (11,516)
0 (13,553) 0 (13,553)
( E )
2012 CLP 10
( F )
F
CLC  CLP ( )
CLC
CLC
(¢ ) C ) ( ) (¢ )
0 606,399 8,199,500 8,805,899
0 177,242 211,600 388,842
4,395,535 357,629 1,983,750 6,736,914
0 350,552 2,380,500 2,731,052
0 89,700 0 89,700
50
100
401(k)
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OooooOodd
401(K)
4.5
2022 305,000
4.5
16.90
2008 12 15
cLC
CLC
CLC
( )]
51.62
52.90
1.28
2022
2022 2022
2022
2022
( F)

2022
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2022
2022

( ) (¢ ) ) ( ) ( )
0| 1,903,846 0 0 0
141,000 146,0000 141,000 74,000 227,000
27,653,658 | 27,653,658 0| 27,653,658 | 27,653,658
27,794,658 | 29,703,504 141,000 | 27,727,658 | 27,880,658
o| 1,020,000 0 0 0
184,000 190,000 184,000 96,000 283,000
19,832,397 | 19,832,397 0| 19,832,397 | 19,832,397
20,016,397 | 21,042,397 184,000 | 19,928,397 | 20,115,397
o| 1,020,000 0 0 0
131,000 139,000 131,000 70,000 249,000
20,220,185 20,220,185 0| 20,220,185 | 20,220,185
20,351,185 | 21,379,185 131,000 | 20,290,185 | 20,469,185
o| 1,000,000 0 0 0
0 144,000 0 10,000 298,000
0 0 0| 16,879,845 | 16,879,845
o| 1,144,000 o| 16,889,845 | 17,177,845
() 0 925,000 0 0 0
0 101,000 0 10,000 345,000
0 0 0| 15,215,616 | 15,215,616
o| 1,026,000 o| 15,225,616 | 15,560,616
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() 2022
300
( RIF )
2022 12 30
(qualifying
separation)
RIF
RIF
2022 12 30
10,610,491 9,237,639
(
) 52
(
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( ) (@D) (@D) (@) ([@D) ( )
J 1,500,000 33 66 52 66| 1,903,846
J 1,020,000 24 48 52 52| 1,020,000
J 1,020,000 17 34 52 52| 1,020,000
A 1,000,000 26 52 52 52| 1,000,000
T 925,000 22 a4 52 52 925,000
4 v
10
V4
10 50 52
54 6
v v
52

(
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OooooOodd
2022
CEO
2022 80,000
2022 13,121,860
2022 164
100 ( )
92 24
( )
) ( )
(ii)2022 2022
(
) (i) (
)
2022
50 80,000
2022
13,099,487 22,373

CEO CEO
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2021
2021
80,000
2022

®
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OooooOodd
() 2023 2022 2023
( ) GAAP SEC
S X
( 38
59 ) 131
() 2023 2022 2023
(
( 23 103 ) )
193
) « ) SEC
« ) « )
() « )
134 2023 UFJ
139.19 (
)
)

()
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€))
( )( )
2023 2022
( ) 14,127 1,966,337 14,487 2,016,446
( ) 9,392 1,307,272 17,121 2,383,072
2 28,2
(021 »30 03 @2 014( 8, 5;3) ) 16,160 2,249,310 15,283 2,127,241
( ) 12,483 1,737,509 10,387 1,445,767
3,132 435,943 3,701 515,142
55,294 7,696,372 60,979 8,487,667
( ) 19,803 2,756,380 18,962 2,639,321
( ) 48,325 6,726,357 46,392 6,457,302
( ) 45,231 6,295,703 35,246 4,905,891
( ) 9,123 1,269,830 10,223 1,422,939
9,602 1,336,502 10,216 1,421,965
187,378 26,081,144 182,018 25,335,085
( ) 12,771 1,777,595 3,766 524,190
11,703 1,628,941 11,055 1,538,745
11,456 1,594,561 13,612 1,894,654
14,417 2,006,702 12,095 1,683,503
3,328 463,224 3,586 499,135
( ) 2,127 296,057 1,112 154,779
55,802 7,767,080 45,226 6,295,007
( ) 26,888 3,742,541 29,985 4,173,612
( ) 6,374 887,197 7,487 1,042,116
( 10) 6,767 941,899 8,898 1,238,513
( ) 4,306 599,352 5,713 795,192
10,437 1,452,726 10,686 1,487,384
110,574 15,390,795 107,995 15,031,824
C 19
( 2,000,000 ) — — — —
1.00 ( 12
3,120 434,273 3,120 434,273
( 4,320,000,000 3,119,843,000 ) ’ ’ ’ ’
« ) ( 13) (12,967) (1,804,877) (13,058) (1,817,543)
128,345 17,864,341 123,060 17,128,721
118,498 16,493,737 113,122 15,745,451
¢ 12 41,694 5,803,388 39,099 5,442,190
(506,246,000 490,878,000 )
76,804 10,690,349 74,023 10,303,261
187,378 26,081,144 182,018 25,335,085
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OoooooO
@
( )( )

2022 2021 2020
94,943 | 13,215,116 93,775 | 13,052,542 82,584 | 11,494,867
31,089 | 4,327,278 29,855 4,155,517 28,427 | 3,956,754
63,854 | 8,887,838 63,920 8,897,025 54,157 | 7,538,113
24,765 | 3,447,040 24,659 3,432,286 22,084 | 3,073,872
14,603 | 2,032,592 14,714 2,048,042 12,159 | 1,692,411
( ) 783 108,986 900 125,271 181 25,193

(490) (68,203) (53) (7,377) (111) (15,450)
( ) 276 38,416 183 25,472 201 27,977
« ) 1,871 260,424 489 68,064 2,899 403,512
(  20) 321 44,680 252 35,076 247 34,380
21,725 | 3,023,903 22,776 3,170,191 16,497 | 2,296,217
( ) 3,784 526,695 1,898 264,183 1,783 248,176
17,941 | 2,497,208 20,878 2,906,009 14,714 | 2,048,042
( 15)
6.83 951 7.93 1,104 5.59 778
6.73 937 7.81 1,087 5.51 767
( 15)
2,625.2 2,632.1 2,632.8
2,663.9 2,674.0 2,670.7
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ooooooo
©)
( )( )}
2022 2021 2020
17,941 2,497,208 20,878 2,906,009 14,714 2,048,042
C )
(1,796) (249,985) (1,079) (150, 186) (233) (32,431)
« ) ) (3,341) @ (557) 1 139
@4 (3,341) () (557) 1 139
« ) (160) (22,270) (169) (23,523) 1,298 180,669
« ) 1,854 258,058 4,318 601,022 (1,135) (157,981)
111 15,450 106 14,754 (229) (31,875)
1,805 251,238 4,255 592,253 (66) (9,187)
« ) 454 63,192 (199) (27,699) 1,000 139,190
(348) (48,438) (789) (109,821) (53) (7,377)
106 14,754 (988) (137,520) 947 131,813
« ) 91 12,666 2,184 303,991 649 90,334
18,032 2,509,874 23,062 3,210,000 15,363 2,138,376
2022 2021 2020 460
(64,027 ) 346 (48,160 ) 536 (74,606 )
(835 ) (139 (2022 2021 ) 461 (64,167
) 1,198 (166,750 )y 21 (2,923 ) 30
(4,176 ) 263 (36,607 ) 252 (35,076 )
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@
( )( )
C )
2019 12 29 59,471 110,659 (15,891) 3,120 (38,417)
14,714 14,714
( 3.98 ) (10,481) (10,481)
2,217 (931) 3,148
(3,221) (3,221)
71) 1)
« D 649 649
2021 63,278 113,890 (15,242) 3,120 (38,490)
20,878 20,878
( 4.19 ) (11,032) (11,032)
2,171 (676) 2,847
(3,456) (3,456)
« ) 2,184 2,184
2022 74,023 123,060 (13,058) 3,120 (39,099)
17,941 17,941
( 4.45 ) (11,682) (11,682)
2,466 (974) 3,440
(6,035) (6,035)
« ) o1 o1
2023 76,804 128,345 (12,967) 3,120 (41,694)
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@ (
( )( )
« )
2019 12 29 8,277,768 15,402,626 (2,211,868) 434,273 (5,347,262)
2,048,042 2,048,042
554 ) (1,458,850) (1,458,850)
308,584 (129,586) 438,170
(448,331) (448,331)
(9,882) (9,882)
90,334 90,334
2021 8,807,665 15,852,349 (2,121,534) 434,273 (5,357,423)
2,906,009 2,906,009
583 ) (1,535,544) (1,535,544)
302,181 (94,092) 396,274
(481,041) (481,041)
303,991 303,991
2022 10,303,261 17,128,721 (1,817,543) 434,273 (5,442,190)
2,497,208 2,497,208
619 ) (1,626,018) (1,626,018)
343,243 (135,571) 478,814
(840,012) (840,012)
12,666 12,666
2023 10,690,349 17,864,341 (1,804,877) 434,273 (5,803,388)
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®

2022 2021 2020

17,941 | 2,497,208 20,878 | 2,906,009 14,714 | 2,048,042

6,970 | 970,154 7,390 | 1,028,614 7,231 | 1,006,483
1,138 158,398 1,135 157,981 1,005 139,886

1,216 169,255 989 137,659 233 32,431

— — — — | @,148)| (59,790)

380)|  (52,892) ®617)|  (85,880) @i  (15,450)

(1.663)| (231,473)] (2,079)| (289,376)| (1.141)| (158.816)

an (2,366) 48) (6,681) 63 8,769

« ) 1,290y (179,555)|  (2,402)| (334,334) 774 107,733
@.527)| (351,733)|  (1,248)| (173,709) 265)|  (36,885)

1,008 152,831 2,437 339,206 5,141 | 715,576

D) 687 95,624 @1,94)| (273,369)| (3,704)| (515,560)

«C ) @,979)| (275,457)| (1,061)| (147,681) 744 103,557

21,194 | 2,949,993 23,410 | 3,258,438 23,536 | 3,275,976

(4,009) (558,013)]  (3,652)| (508,322)| (3.347)| (465,869)

543 75,580 711 98,964 305 42,453
( 18) (17,652)| (2,456,982) (60) 8.350)|  (7,323)](1,019,288)
(32,384)| (4,507,529)|  (30,394)| (4,230,541) (21,089)] (2,935,378)
41,609 | 5,791,557 | 25,006 | 3,480,585 | 12,137 | 1,689,349

49|  (34,658) 214 29,787 87| (137.381)
( ) 29)| (31,875) 08)|  (70,709) G221 (72,518)
(12,371) (1,721,919)|  (8.683)|(1,208,587) (20,825)| (2,898,632)

(11,682)] (1,626,018)| (11,032)| (1,535,544) (10,481)] (1,458,850)
(6,035)| (840,012)|  (3,456)| (481,041)| (3.221)| (448,331)

16,134 | 2,245,691 1,997 | 277,962 3,391 | 471,993
6,550)| (911,695)| (1,190)| (165,636)| (2.663)| (370,663)
2 278 5 696 7,431 | 1,034,321

@,138)| (297,031)] (1,802)] (250,820)| (1,064)| (148,098)

1,329 | 184,984 1,036 | 144,201 1,114 | 155,058
(28) (3,897) 281 39,112 333)|  (46,350)

93 12,945 114 15,868 @) (40,922)

(8,871)| (1,234,754)| (14,047)| (1,955,202)|  (6,120)| (851,843)

G12)|  (43,427) @)  (24,776) 89 12,388

« ) (360)|  (50,108) 502 69,873 |  (3,320)| (462,111)
( ) 14,487 | 2,016,446 | 13,985 | 1,946,572 | 17,305 | 2,408,683

( ) 14,127 | 1,966,337 | 14,487 | 2,016,446 | 13,985 | 1,946,572
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2022 2021 2020
982 136,685 990 137,798 904 125,828
933 129,864 941 130,978 841 117,059
5,223 726,989 4,768 663,658 4,619 642,919
2,114 294,248 1,811 252,073 1,937 269,611
— — — — 27 3,758
18,710 | 2,604,245 61 8,491 7,755 | 1,079,418
(1,058)| (147,263) @ (139) @32)|  (60,130)
( 18) 17,652 | 2,456,982 60 8,351 7,323 | 1,019,288
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2023
ASU  2022-04 - ( 405-50)
ASU( )
ASU 2023 12 15
2022 12 15
ASU
2023 ASU
( RRA )
RRA 102
A ( )
RRA 102

RRA
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30
10 - 20
2-13

( )
30 90
(
)

2023

2022 96 77
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GAAP
2022 2021 2020
1.0
2022
2.0 2021 2020 3.0
17
2022 2021 2020 11 11 10

1.0

GAAP
2022
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2022 2021 11
2022 2021 13 10
2022 2021 2020
2022 2021 2020

100

ASC 730
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(
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«
(
(Bayer HealthCare AG) XARELTO (AbbVie)
(Pharmacyclics LLC) IMBRUVICA
(Genmab A/S) DARZALEX
2022 2021 2020

21

GAAP

27 21

GAAP
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2017 (U.S. Tax Cuts and Jobs Act TCJA)
35 21
2018
15.5 8.0
2018 2025
2022 61 46
12
« )
2018 FASB
( )
( )
2017 12 31

2018
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2022 2021
2022
)
4,926 — 4,926 4,926 —
1,419 — 1,419 1,419 —
@ 873 @ 872 — 873
5,368 — 5,368 5,368 —
@ 446 — 446 446 —
13,032 @ 13,031 12,159 873
9,959 (28) 9,931 1,922 8,009
210 ) 205 — 205
352 @ 351 46 305
©) 10,521 (34) 10,487 1,968 8,519
14,127 9,392
2021
)
2,936 — 2,936 2,936 —
@ 1,006 — 1,006 90 916
1,659 — 1,659 1,659 —
@ 3,479 @ 3,478 200 3,279
1,901 — 1,901 1,901 —
@ 900 — 900 900 —
11,881 @ 11,880 7,686 4,195
19,485 ) 19,481 6,785 12,696
246 — 246 16 230
©) 19,731 ) 19,727 6,801 12,926
14,487 17,121
@
@
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2023
)
10,430 10,399
91 88
10 — —
10,521 10,487
2022 2021
) 2022 2021
2,070 1,592
1,700 2,287
8,713 6,508
12,483 10,387
2022 2021
) 2022 2021
859 884
12,989 12,882
30,431 29,774
4,974 4,139
49,253 47,679
29,450 28,717
19,803 18,962
2022 2021 2020
49 49 63
2022 2021 2020 27

27 26
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2022 2021
( ) 2022 2021
44,012 38,572
(22,266) (20,088)
() 21,746 18,484
22,987 23,011
(12,901) (11,925)
10,086 11,086
@
6,807 6,985
©) 9,686 9,837
16,493 16,822
48,325 46,392
()] (Abiomed, Inc.)
@
3) 2020 (XBiotech, Inc.)
( AD ) ( HS )
(bermekimab JInJ-77474462) 2022
AD HS AD HS

11
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2023 2022
(
2021 10,336 11,009 15,048 36,393
() — — ®
(517) (429) (192) (1,138)
2022 9,810 10,580 14,856 35,246
— — 11,056 11,056
(626) (396) (49) 1,071)
2023 9,184 10,184 25,863 45,231
12
21 2023 2022 2021
43 47 47
« )
( 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027
4,600 4,400 3,600 3,000 2,400
18
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2022
24
2022
2023
« D
2023
433 362 124 2022
458 374 100

2016
2022 2035
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2023 230
( ) 13
12
18
2023 2022 ( )
2023
C )
) ¢ )
(
)
— — — (1,098) —
— — — 1,008 —
C D
— — — 140 —
« )
¢ ) — — — 140 —
«C )
¢ ) 72) (271) 149 — (23)
¢ ) 5 319 61 — (113)
¢ ) — — — 425 —
¢ ) — — — 42 —
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2022
¢ )
) ¢ )
(
— — — (109) —
— — — 109 —
C )
— — —_ 174 —
¢ )
¢ ) — — — 174 —
¢ )
( ) 17 119 30 — 47
« ) (%4) (557) 123 — 146
¢ ) — — — 402 —
¢ ) — — — o —
2023 2022
) 2023 2022 2023 2022
8,665 9,793 (1,435) (142)
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2023 2022
(
C ) « )
2023 2022
« ) 94 70)
2023 2022
¢ ) () )

2023 2022 2023 2022
197 387 « ) _ _
766 548 « ) _ _

( )
2023 2022
2022 2023 2023
)
(¢))

1,884 (538) 770 576 576
500 01 107 698 698

2021 2022 2022

)
(¢D)

1,481 108 205 1,884 1,884
738 394 (632) 500 500

€
)
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ASC 820

51
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2023 2022
2022 2021

) @
— 629 — 629 540
©) — 1,534 — 1,534 796
— 2,163 — 2,163 1,336
— 511 — 511 881
©) — 2,778 — 2,778 979
— 3,289 — 3,289 1,860
— 38 — 38 24
— 68 — 68 28
®) 576 — — 576 1,884
) — 10,487 — 10,487 19,727
) 1,120 1,120 533

) 2022 2021
2,201 1,360
(2,176) (1,285)
25 75
3,357 1,888
(3,023) (1,855)
334 33
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) 2022 2021 2020
533 633 1,715
(6) (194) (52) (1,089)
) 792 — 106
(1) (48) (99)
1,120 533 633
(1) 2021 1,884 533
@
(€))
(©))
(5) 2023 2022 2021 1,116
520 594 2023 2022 2021
13 39
(6) 2020 (Auris
Health) 1,148
(7) 2022 704
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( ) 2022 () 2021 ()
0.250 2022

(10 1.1311)(3) — — 1,131 ® 0.26
2.25 2022 — — 1,000 2.31
6.73 2023 250 6.73 250 6.73
3.375 2023 801 3.17 802 3.18
2.05 2023 500 2.09 499 2.09
0.650 2024

(750 1.0651)(2) 792 @ 0.68 847 (3 0.68
(750 1.1311)(3)

5.50 2024

(500 1.2037)(2) 600 @ 6.75 672 ® 6.75
(500 1.3485)(3)

2.625 2025 749 2.63 749 2.63
0.55 2025 918 0.57 983 0.57
2.45 2026 1,996 2.47 1,995 2.47
2.95 2027 877 2.96 978 2.96
0.95 2027 1,394 0.96 1,478 0.96
1.150 2028

(750 1.0651)(2) 794 @ 1.21 843 3 1.21
(750 1.1311)(3)

2.90 2028 1,496 2.91 1,495 2.91
6.95 2029 298 7.14 298 7.14
1.30 2030 1,607 1.30 1,723 1.30
4.95 2033 498 4.95 498 4.95
4.375 2033 854 4.24 854 4.24
1.650 2035

(15 1.0651)(2) 1,591 @ 1.68 1,683 3 1.68
(15 1.1311)(3)

3.55 2036 842 3.59 974 3.59
5.95 2037 993 5.99 993 5.99
3.625 2037 1,336 3.64 1,475 3.64
5.85 2038 697 5.85 696 5.85
3.400 2038 992 3.42 992 3.42
4.50 2040 540 4.63 540 4.63
2.10 2040 828 2.14 974 2.14
4.85 2041 297 4.89 297 4.89
4.50 2043 496 4.52 496 4.52
3.70 2046 1,976 3.74 1,975 3.74
3.75 2047 812 3.76 971 3.76
3.500 2048 743 3.52 743 3.52
2.250 2050 808 2.29 983 2.29
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( ) 2022 () 2021 ()
2.450 2060 1,055 2.49 1,222 2.49
9 — 7 —
28,439 @ 3.04 @ 32,116 @ 2.89 W
1,551 2,131
" 26,888 29,985
@
(2) 2023
(3) 2022
0 2022 16 2021 32
2022 2023
364 100 2022 11 2023
1 21 364 100
SOFR
2022 2021
2022 2021 128
38 2022 2021 16
21
2023 4.23
112
2023
( ) 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2021
1,551 1,392 1,667 1,996 2,271 19,562
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) 2022 2021 2020
2,378 1,525 1,026
3,069 2,452 1,898
5,447 3,977 2,924
(2,081) 583 (76)
418 (2,662) (1,065)
(1,663) (2,079) (1,141)
3,784 1,898 1,783
2022 2021 2020 21
) 2022 2021 2020
5,369 6,110 4,312
16,356 16,666 12,185
21,725 22,776 16,497
21.0 21.0 21.0
(€)) (4.5 (16.4) -9
2.2 — —
Q@) (1.9) 6.7 2.7
— 1.3) 1.2)
(1.3) (1.0) (1.5)
®) 1.9 0.7) (0.3)
17.4 8.3 10.8
€Y
2020
@
2022 2022 2017
2021 2020
©)

257/439



2022 2021 9.1
2022
2022 2.2
2021
2022 2017

( 10-K

2021 2020

2021

16
Risperdal (Gynecomastia)
( 19
(2019
22.4
2019

Tax Reform and AHV Financing TRAF )
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AD HS
2022
(
2.5 2021
« ) 27
23
17
2021 1.3
2021
23.5
16.4
)
Ottava
(Federal Act on
2020 TRAF
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TRAF
TRAF 1)
2)
2020 TRAF
( )
2020 2020
( )
¢ ) 2.6
2020
450
2020
TRAF
2020
2020 1.2
2020
40 23.5
10
21.4

2019 2020
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2022 2021
2022 2021 (D)
)
725 1,244
687 679
(858) (876)
(4,271) ® (2,659) @
2,611 1,664
2,761 2,882
2,045 2,566
) 1,260 1,720
1,565 (1,693) 1,015 (1,461)
(3,547) (4,853)
1,053 (65) 870 (39)
476 (16)
13,183 (10,434) 12,640 (9,904)
@
[©) 23
(©) 18
(4) 2022 2021
( ) 2022 2021 2020
3,323 3,373 3,853
523 242 265
143 23 668
(148) (128) (551)
@) (187) (839)
(11) — (23)
3,829 3,323 3,373
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2023 38
IRS 2012
2013 2016 2020
2010 2012
2008
12
2022 2021 2020 139 44 32
2022 2021 651 512
2022 2021
) 2022 2021
2,698 4,088
1,734 2,069
2,832 3,117
100 181
7,364 9,455
597 557
6,767 8,898
2022 2021 4,581 4,436

10

261/439



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

Ogoooood
2015
(
) 2014
)
2021 2026
2026
2022 2021
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
2022 2021 2020
) 2022 2021 2020 2022 2021 2020
1,327 1,421 1,380 320 309 287
911 770 955 105 81 133
(2,757)  (2,645)  (2,461) ®) Q) Q)
(184) (181) 2 Q) 31) (1)
) 655 1,257 891 121 151 142
1 1 23 — — —
« ) “n 623 790 533 503 524
« )

10
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2022 2021 2020 2022 2021 2020
2.46 2.14 2.82 2.59 2.09 3.04
2.80 2.34 3.13 2.64 2.33 3.08
4.02 4.01 4.00 4.21 4.25 4.25
7.25 7.71 8.12
5.01 2.49 2.14 5.42 2.68 2.23
4.00 4.01 4.00 4.21 4.21 4.27

2022 2021
5.99 5.33
( 4.01 3.73
2047 2046
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2022 2021
2022 2021 2022 2021
41,582 43,300 4,878 5,028
1,327 1,421 320 309
911 770 105 81
67 67 — —
7 5 — —
Q) (12,213) (2,132) (704) (188)
— ) — _
) ™ — —
(1,228) (1,157) (393) (348)
(815) (683) () ®
29,631 41,582 4,197 4,878
41,930 38,195 102 90
«C ) (8,665) 4,439 an 17
270 969 386 343
67 67 — —
®) ™ — —
(1,228) (1,157) (393) (348)
(855) (574) — —
31,514 41,930 78 102
1,883 348 (4,119) (4,776)
4,581 4,436 — _
(132) (115) (461) (438)
(2,566) (3,973) (3,658) (4,338)
1,883 348 (4,119) (4,776)
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) 2022 2021 2022 2021
3,948 5,539 239 1,113
«c (1,417) (1,610) Q) 13)
2,531 3,929 232 1,100
28,023 39,049
« ) @n 623 533 503
« ) (793) (3,927) (751) (199)
(655) (1,257) (121) (151)
« ) 7 5 — —
« ) 183 181 5 31
(140) (136) (D) —
( ) ( ) (1,398) (5,134) (868) (319)
(1,445) (4,511) (335) 184
(1) 2022 2021
2006 (Pension Protection Act of 2006)
2022 119 151
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
20,937 27,944 — — 10,577 13,986 — —
18,394 25,041 1,937 2,703 9,024 13,428 276 410
17,696 23,985 1,872 2,479 8,202 12,212 253 373
2,543 2,903  (1,937) (2,703) 1,553 558 (276) (410)
3,241 3,950  (1,872) (2.479) 2,375 1,774 (253) (373)
2022
29 29 2021 39 42
2028
2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 5032
1,445 1,457 1,532 1,609 1,708 10,034
471 485 433 447 462 2,539
2028
2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 5032
123 128 136 141 146 816
)
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2022 2021 2023
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62 65 61
38 35 39
100 100 100
NAV
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NAV
NAV
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
€))

( ) ( ) ( )
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

33 102 13 1,033 — — — — 46 1,135

— — 5,863 7,016 — — — — 5,863 7,016

— — 3,681 3,505 — — — — 3,681 3,505
8,846 14,107 2 2 — — — — 8,848 14,109

— — 4,362 5,496 56 105 6,106 8,708 10,524 14,309

— — 33 34 13 15 2,506 1,807 2,552 1,856
8,879 14,209 13,954 17,086 69 120 8,612 10,515 31,514 41,930

€
2022 12 31 2021 12 31 78 102
( )
2022 12 31 21
0.1 ) 2021 12 31 385 (
0.9
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11
401(K)
2022 2021
275 256 243
12
( « ) )
2019 12 29 487,336 38,417
(21,765) (3,148)
21,760 3,221
2021 487,331 38,490
(17,399) (2,847)
20,946 3,456
2022 490,878 39,099
(20,007) (3,440)
35,375 6,035
2023 506,246 41,694
2022 2021 2020 3,119,843,000
2021 4.19 2020 3.98 2022
4.45
2023 2023 21 2023
1.13
2022 14 50
2023 25
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13 « )
( ) C )

C ) « )
2019 12 29 (8,705) — (6,891) (295) (15,891)
2020 (233) 1 (66) 947 649
2021 (8,938) 1 (6,957) 652 (15,242)
2021 (1,079) ) 4,255 (988) 2,184
2022 (10,017) [€) (2,702) (336) (13,058)
2022 (1,796) (24) 1,805 106 91
2023 (11,813) @7 (897) (230) (12,967)

C ) C )
10
C )
14
( 100
)
( )
2022
2022 2021 2020 13
« ) 2022 2021 2020
236 209
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15
2023 2022 2021
2022 2021 2020
6.83 7.93 5.59
2,625.2 2,632.1 2,632.8
140.1 138.0 118.3
(101.4) (96.1) (80.4)
2,663.9 2,674.0 2,670.7
6.73 7.81 5.51
2022 2021
2020
18
16
2023 2012
2022 2012
2022 26 (
) 2022
2022 150 110
40
40
40
2022 2022 150
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2022 1,138 2021 1,135
2020 1,005
2022 196 2021 218 2020
210
2022 2021 2020 282 223 248
2022 939 2021 862
2020 804 2022 2021 2020
1.80  1.78 1.76
10
2022 2021 2020
10
( )
2022 23.23 2021 20.86 2020
16.42
2022 2021 2020
1.98 0.83 1.47
18.00 18.59 15.33
« ) 7.0 7.0 7.0

2.70 2.50 2.60
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2023 2022 2021
(GID) ( ) ( )
2019 12 29 111,637 105.63 4,478
20,723 151.41
(16,275) 86.05
(1,835) 137.62
2021 114,250 116.22 4,703
18,525 164.62
(13,248) 97.48
(2,166) 149.75
2022 117,361 125.36 5,364
19,809 165.89
(16,310) 100.15
(2,188) 160.56
2023 118,672 134.95 4,949
2022 2021 2020 1,228
919 1,021
2023
« D
(€))
72.54 -100.48 17,221 1.5  93.07 17,221 93.07
101.87 -115.67 22,039 3.6 108.78 22,039  108.78
129.51 -141.06 24,870 5.7 130.88 24,228  130.85
151.41 -164.62 35,465 7.6 157.75 150  156.21
164.63 -165.89 19,077 9.1  165.89 23 165.89
118,672 5.8 134.95 63,661  113.06
@
2022 2021 117,361 ( 5.8
) 114,250 ( 6.0 ) 2022 2021
62,742 ( 104.42 ) 61,289 ( 96.97 )
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( )
200
2023
«c )
2022 14,122 2,312
5,154 753
(4,866) (637)
(794) 71)
2023 13,616 2,357
2022 2021 2020
153.67 152.62 139.58
2022 2021 2020
591 611 650
2022 2021 2020
170.46 179.35 160.54
2022 2021 2020
94 83 91
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)
2022 2021
) 2022 2021 2020 2021 2020
@

2,782 2,594 2,460 7.3 5.4

3,249 3,034 2,761 7.1 9.9

6,031 5,627 5,221 7.2 7.8

2,337 2,400 2,350 (2.6) 2.1

2,015 2,141 2,100 (5.9) 1.9

4,352 4,541 4,450 4.2) 2.0

635 637 683 (0.3) 6.7)

871 1,008 958 (13.6) 5.1

1,505 1,645 1,641 (8.5) 0.2

357 378 376 (5.5) 0.5

1,104 1,188 1,141 7.1 4.1

1,461 1,566 1,517 6.7) 3.2

13 13 13 1.7 (1.6)

891 905 888 (1.5) 1.8

904 917 901 (1.5) 1.8

475 495 480 (4.0) 3.1

224 243 240 (8.0) 1.7

700 739 720 (5.3) 2.6

6,599 6,516 6,362 1.3 2.4

8,354 8,519 8,088 1.9) 5.3

14,953 15,035 14,450 (0.5) 4.0

€))

11,036 10,843 10,175 1.8 6.6

5,899 5,907 4,880 0.1) 21.0

16,935 16,750 15,055 1.1 11.3
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) 2022 2021 2020 22351 zggéo
REMICADE
1,417 2,019 2,508 (29.8) (19.5)
204 236 346 (13.6) (31.9)
722 935 893 (22.8) 4.8
2,343 3,190 3,747 (26.6) (14.9)
SIMPONI _ SIMPONI ARIA
1,166 1,127 1,155 3.5 2.4)
1,017 1,148 1,088 (11.4) 5.5
2,184 2,276 2,243 (4.0) 1.4
STELARA
6,388 5,938 5,240 7.6 13.3
3,335 3,196 2,467 4.4 29.6
9,723 9,134 7,707 6.5 18.5
TREMEYA
1,844 1,503 926 22.7 62.3
824 624 421 32.0 48.2
2,668 2,127 1,347 25.4 57.9
17 21 — (18.4) o
0 3 11 o (73.3)
17 24 11 (28.2) o
1,680 2,249 1,735 (25.3) 29.7
3,769 3,576 1,808 5.4 97.8
5,449 5,825 3,543 (6.5) 64.4
COVID-19
120 634 — (81.1) o
2,059 1,751 _ 17.6 o
2,179 2,385 _ (8.6) o
EDURANT
(rilpivirine)
36 41 44 (10.8) (7.6)
972 953 920 2.0 3.6
1,008 994 964 1.5 3.1
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)
2022 2021
) 2022 2021 2020 2021 2020
PREZISTA PREZCOBIX
REZOLSTA SYMTUZA
1,494 1,508 1,587 (1.0) 4.9
449 575 597 (21.9) (3.6)
1,943 2,083 2,184 (6.7) (4.6)
30 66 104 (55.5) (36.0)
289 297 292 (2.6) 1.7
318 363 396 (12.3) (8.3)
3,570 3,347 3,091 6.7 8.3
3,323 3,641 3,435 8.7 6.0
6,893 6,988 6,526 (1.4) 7.1
CONCERTA
(methylphenidate)
151 172 183 (12.5) (5.8)
493 495 439 (0.4) 12.8
644 667 622 (3.5 7.3
INVEGA SUSTENNA XEPLION
INVEGA TRINZA TREVICTA
2,714 2,550 2,314 6.5 10.2
1,426 1,472 1,339 3.1 10.0
4,140 4,022 3,653 3.0 10.1
RISPERDAL CONSTA
257 287 296 (10.4) 2.9
228 305 346 (25.3) (11.8)
485 592 642 (18.1) a.7n
447 338 298 32.4 13.3
1,176 1,368 1,312 (14.1) 4.3
1,623 1,706 1,610 4.9 6.0
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6,930 5,958 5,002 16.3 17.0
9,052 8,590 7,275 5.4 18.1
15,983 14,548 12,367 9.9 17.6
DARZALEX
4,210 3,169 2,232 32.8 42.0
3,767 2,854 1,958 32.0 45.8
7,977 6,023 4,190 32.4 43.8
ERLEADA
968 813 563 19.2 39.3
013 478 176 o o
1,881 1,291 760 45.7 70.0
INBRUVICA
1,390 1,747 1,821 (20.4) (4.0)
2,304 2,622 2,307 (8.7 13.6
3,784 4,369 4,128 (13.4) 5.8
2YTIGA
74 119 373 (37.8) (68.1)
1,696 2,178 2,097 (22.1) 3.9
1,770 2,297 2,470 (22.9) (7.0)
289 110 83 o 31.7
283 458 738 (38.3) (37.9)
571 568 821 0.6 (30.8)
2,346 2,365 2,133 (0.8) 10.9
1,071 1,085 1,015 (1.3) 6.9
3,417 3,450 3,148 (1.0) 9.6
OPSUMIT
1,132 1,147 1,008 (1.3) 13.7
651 672 631 (3.2) 6.6
1,783 1,819 1,639 (2.0) 11.0
UPTRAVI
1,104 1,056 955 4.5 10.5
218 181 138 20.4 31.1
1,322 1,237 1,093 6.9 13.1
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2022 2021
) 2022 2021 2020 2021 2020
110 163 169 (32.3) 3.7
202 232 247 (12.8) (5.9)
313 395 416 (20.8) (5.0)
3,042 3,192 3,509 @.7 (9.0)
845 927 1,025 (8.9) 9.6)
3,887 4,119 4,534 (5.6) 9.2)
XARELTO
2,473 2,438 2,345 1.4 4.0
2,473 2,438 2,345 1.4 4.0
INVOKANA  INVOKAMET
193 308 564 (37.4) 45.4)
255 254 231 0.1 9.9
448 563 795 (20.4) (29.3)
&)
376 446 600 (15.5) (25.7)
590 673 794 (12.3) (15.2)
966 1,119 1,394 (13.6) 19.7)
28,604 27,954 25,735 2.3 8.6
23,959 23,726 19,440 1.0 22.0
52,563 51,680 45,175 1.7 14.4
*(3)
2,169 1,836 1,452 18.2 26.4
2,131 2,135 1,594 0.2) 34.0
4,300 3,971 3,046 8.3 30.4
5,321 5,126 4,779 3.8 7.3
3,267 3,462 2,984 (5.6) 16.0
8,587 8,588 7,763 0.0 10.6
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2022 2021
2022 2021 2020 2091 2020

943 878 793 7.3 10.7

571 602 487 (5.1) 23.6
1,514 1,480 1,280 2.3 15.6

851 787 743 8.2 5.9

508 538 427 G.7) 26.1
1,359 1,325 1,170 2.6 13.3
1,882 1,819 1,648 3.5 10.4

989 1,066 966 7.2) 10.4
2,871 2,885 2,614 (0.5) 10.4
1,645 1,642 1,595 0.2 2.9
1,198 1,256 1,104 (4.6) 13.8
2,843 2,898 2,699 (1.9) 7.4
3,897 3,867 3,249 0.8 19.0
5,793 5,945 4,983 (2.6) 19.3
9,690 9,812 8,232 1.2) 19.2
1,784 1,761 1,535 1.3 14.9
2,785 2,861 2,304 (2.6) 24.1
4,569 4,622 3,839 1.1) 20.4
2,113 2,105 1,714 0.4 22.7
3,008 3,085 2,679 (2.5) 15.2
5,121 5,190 4,392 (1.3) 18.1
1,990 1,857 1,557 7.2 19.3
2,859 2,831 2,362 1.0 19.8
4,849 4,688 3,919 3.4 19.6
1,522 1,308 1,213 8.9 15.2
2,022 2,043 1,781 (1.0) 14.7
3,543 3,440 2,994 3.0 14.9
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2022 2021
( ) 2022 2021 2020 2091 2020
468 459 344 2.0 33.5
837 788 581 6.2 35.7
1,306 1,248 925 4.6 34.9
13,377 12,686 11,036 5.4 14.9
14,050 14,374 11,923 (2.3) 20.6
27,427 27,060 22,959 1.4 17.9
48,580 47,156 43,133 3.0 9.3
46,363 46,619 39,451 (0.6) 18.2
94,943 93,775 82,584 1.3 13.6
*
** 100
@ ( )
2021 2020
) PROCRIT EPREX
@
«
2022 2021 2020
2022 2021
( ) @3 o) ()
2,930 1,573 (852) 24,068 25,081
15,901 17,969 15,250 58,436 64,376
4,607 4,373 3,044 70,956 53,372
23,438 23,915 17,442 153,460 142,829
624 1,072 945
@
1,089 67
) 33,918 39,189
21,725 22,776 16,497 187,378 182,018
* 2021 2020 ( )
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) 2022 2021 2020 2022 2021 2020
323 331 248 658 759 785
1,374 1,198 863 3,687 4,029 4,006
2,120 1,933 1,980 2,302 2,286 2,140
3,817 3,462 3,091 6,647 7,074 6,931
192 190 256 323 316 300
4,009 3,652 3,347 6,970 7,390 7,231
®)
) 2022 2021 2020 2022 2021
48,580 47,156 43,133 66,283 48,586
23,449 23,594 18,980 38,774 43,257
( ) 6,125 5,750 5,335 2,737 2,708
16,789 17,275 15,136 4,431 5,035
94,943 93,775 82,584 112,225 99,586
1,134 1,014
74,019 81,418
94,943 93,775 82,584 187,378 182,018
2022 16.5 13.0 12.0
2021
14.0 11.0 11.0
2020 16.0 12.0
12.0
@ « ) « )
@
(©)
COVID-19 15
2020 AD  HS
(InJ-77474462)
AD  HS AD  HS
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)
16
RISPERDAL
Ottava
®)
39
11
(6) 2022 2021 19,803 18,962
2022 2021 93,556 81,638
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2022 177 11
173
2022 ( )
2022 12 22
171 380.00
35.00 ( 16 )
( CVR ) (CVR )
165
CVR
a. 2027 2028
37 17.50
2029
8.75
b. ST ( STEMI ) Impella®
2028 FDA( )
7.50
C. PCI( ) STEMI Impella®
(

2029 12 31 ) 10.00
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2022
2021
2020

2020

9.5

18

2022 12

28

199

14

66

(Momenta Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)(

2020

16

73

20

60

11

Impella®

52

75

)
(Verb Surgical Inc.)
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109

70

2022



2020
(
2020 10
20 77
GAAP
2022
2021
( )
2020
445
2021

2022

(Verily)
)
61 (
( ) 60
16
2022 2021 2020

« )

8.3 11.8
337

357 )

( 2027 )

110 (120

2021
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)
12
13
(ldorsia, Ltd.)
( 28.55
2020
38.7
) 9.6



19

ASC 450-20-25

2023
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( )
ASC 450-20
ASR XL (DePuy ASR XL Acetabular
System) ASR (DePuy ASR Hip Resurfacing System) PINNACLE
(PINNACLE Acetabular Cup System) RISPERDAL
( JOHNSON"S ) PHYSIOMESH (ETHICON PHYSIOMESH
Flexible Composite Mesh) ELMIRON TYLENOL 2023
ASR XL ASR PINNACLE
RISPERDAL PHYSIOMESH
ELMIRON TYLENOL 170

1,400 9,000 1,100 40,300 2,100 2,000 170
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2010 (DePuy Orthopaedics, Inc.)(
) ASR XL ASR (
ASR )
(
) 2013 11 ASR
2013 ASR
ASR (
) 2015 2017
2013 2017 15 ASR
10,000
ASR
ASR
ASR
PINNACLE
( )
( ) 2022
2019

PINNACLE
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(Ethicon, Inc.)(

(VDL) 2021

) 2019 11

2022
2022 11 2023

2020
2021
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2016 PHYSIOMESH (

(MCL)
(C.R.
Bard, Inc.)
Proceed/Proceed (Proceed Ventral Patch)
(Prolene Hernia System)
2021
3,600 ( 4,300 )
2021 3,729
2,236

2023 208

PROCEED (PROCEED Mesh) PROCEED
2019

PROLENE (PROLENE Polypropylene Hernia System)
2020

2022 10 Proceed Proceed Prolene

PHYSIOMESH PROCEED PROCEED PROLENE
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RISPERDAL
(Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)( JPI )
80 (
2020 6.8 )
XARELTO JPI
2019 JPI
2019
2020
XARELTO
( JOHNSON = S )
Consumer 1Inc.)
2020

(Ingham v. Johnson & Johnson, et al.)
47 ( ED 207476 ( )]
21

25
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2019 10

2021

XARELTO JPI

XARELTO
2019 12

(Johnson & Johnson

2018

2021
2021
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ooo0000
2021 10 ( Jacl )
( 2021 ) JJCI @
(LTL Management LLC)(
LTL ) (b) LTL
(Royalty A&M LLC)( RAM )y (©
(
JJCI ) JJCI JJCI
( )
(
) (
)
2021 10
11
( LTL ) LTL
LTL JJCI
2021 11 15
( Pl ) LTL JJCI JJCI
( )
LTL 2021 11 Pl
2022 LTL
2022
2022
2022
2023 30 LTL
LTL

LTL
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20
20
LTL

2022

LTL
LTL

(Windsor Minerals, Inc.) 1989

(Imerys)
2022

2019
Inc.)

(Imerys S.A.)
)(

2021
2021

2022 10

(Imerys Talc Canada, Inc.)

2020

294/439
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LTL
LTL

2022

(Imerys Talc America,

(Imerys Talc Vermont, Inc.)

)
)

) ( FCR

2021 10
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2021 10 TCC FCR

( ) 11

( ) 2022 12 31

2021 (

)
TCC FCR
2021 10
LTL

2020 (Cyprus
Mines Corporation) (Cyprus Amax
Minerals Company)( CAMC )

(
)
2021 11
( )
11 TCC FCR
2021 10
LTL
2022 11
CAMC

CAMC 2023

295/439



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

OoOoOoOoOodno
2021 ( )
2021
2021 10 LTL
LTL
2022 LTL
2018
( JOHNSON =S )
2019
2019 2019 12
2020
2021 2021
2021 12 2022
2022 LTL

2022 2022
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JOHNSON = S (Consumer Legal Remedies Act)
65(Proposition 65)
2019
2019
10
2019 12
2020 2020
2020
2021
2021
2021 2021 10
2021 10
2021 12
2022
LTL
INVOKANA

2016 12
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ELMIRON

ELMIRON

2020 12

ELMIRON

TYLENOL

2022 10

TYLENOL
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2018
)
Inc.)(
906
(
906
2022
906

2023
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(Intuitive Surgical, Inc.)
(Intuitive Surgical Operations, Inc.)(

(Auris Health,

)
MONARCH Platform 6,522,906 (
) 6,800,056 ( 056 ) 8,142,447 ( 447
) 9,452,276 ( 276 )
056 447 276 906
USPTO ) 2019 12 USPTO 056
2020 USPTO 447 906
276 2021 USPTO 447
2022
447 USPTO
906 53
USPTO
2021 11 276 USPTO 2022
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2019 (RSB Spine LLC)( RSB )
(DePuy Synthes, Inc.)
2019 10 RSB

(DePuy Synthes Sales, Inc.) (DePuy Synthes
Products, Inc.) RSB ZERO-P-VA (ZERO-P-VA Spacer) ZERO-
P (ZERO-P Spacer) ZERO-P NATURAL (ZERO-P NATURAL Plate) SYNFIX LR (SYNFIX LR
Spacer) SYNFIX Evolution (SYNFIX Evolution System)
6,984,234 ( 234 ) 9,713,537 ( 537 )

RSB 2019
11 RSB
(Life Spine, Inc.) (Medacta USA, Inc.)
(Precision Spine, Inc.) 2022
234 537
2022 11
234

537 2022 12

537 537
( DOE )
RSB 12
2020 10 (Rasmussen Instruments, LLC)(

(Medical Device Business Services, Inc.)(
Attune
9,492,180 ( 180

Attune
583
2022
180

300/439

)
(Attune Balanced Sizer)
) 10,517,583 ( 583

2021
(Attune Balancing Blocks)

20
2022
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( ANDA )
FDA  ANDA
ANDA
2011 (2011 America Invents Act) USPTO
ANDA
ANDA
FDA

ZYTIGA

2019 (Janssen Inc.) (Janssen Oncology,
Inc.) (BTG International Ltd.)(

) 2,661,422 ( 422 )
ZYTIGA ( ANDS )
(Apotex Inc.)( ) (Pharmascience
Inc.)( ) (Or.
Reddy ” s Laboratories Ltd.) (Dr. Reddy s Laboratories,
Inc.)( DRL ) ( ) (Patented Medicines (Notice of
Compliance) Regulations) 2020 11
2021 422 2021
2022 2022 11
2021 2021 2022 DRL
( ) ZYTIGA

DRL 2023
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XARELTO
2021 ( JPI )
(Bayer Pharma AG) (Bayer AG)( )
10,828,310 ( 310 ) XARELTO(2.5mg)
ANDA
(Lupin Limited) (Lupin Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)
(Taro Pharmaceutical Industries Ltd.)
(Taro Pharmaceuticals U.S.A., Inc.)
(Teva Pharmaceuticals USA, Inc.) 2021 10
2023
2021 JPI1 310 XARELTO(2-5mg)
ANDA (Mylan Pharmaceuticals Inc.)
(Mylan Inc.)( )
2021 JPI1
( MDL ) 2021 12
MDL 2022 ANDA
JPI1
2022
MDL
2022 10
JPI 310 XARELTO(2.5mg)
2023 310
2022 310 USPTO
2022 ( PTAB )
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2022 (InvaGen Pharmaceuticals, Inc.) 310
USPTO 2022
310 USPTO
2022 10 PTAB
2022 JPI (Bayer
Intellectual Property GmbH)( BIP ) 310 9,539,218 (
218 ) XARELTO(2.5mg 10mg 15mg 20mg)
ANDA (USV Private Limited)( usv
) JPI
BIP  USV 310 XARELTO(2.5mg)
218 XARELTO(10mg 15mg  20mg)
2022 11 MDL
2022 JPI BIP 218 XARELTO(10mg 15mg  20mg)
ANDA (Mankind
Pharma Limited)( )
JPI1 BIP 218
XARELTO
2022 11 JPI1 BIP 310 218 XARELTO(2.5mg
10mg 15mg 20mg) ANDA
(Epic Pharma, LLC)( )
JPI1 BIP 310 XARELTO
(2.5mg) 218 XARELTO(10mg 15mg 20mg)
2022 12 JPI1 310 XARELTO(2.5mg)
ANDA (Apotex Corp.)(
) JPI

310 XARELTO(2.5mg)
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OPSUMIT
2020 ( )
(Actelion Pharmaceuticals Ltd)( )
2,659,770 ( 770 ) OPSUMIT 10mg
ANDS (Sandoz Canada Inc.)( )
( ) 770
2022 2022
2022
2020 770 OPSUMIT 10mg
ANDS ( )
( ) 770
2022 2022
2022
2023 2,659,770 2,621,273
OPSUMIT 10mg ANDS
(Generic Medical Partners Inc.) ( )
OPSUMIT
2023
(Actelion Pharmaceuticals US, Inc.)( )
7,004,781 ( 781 ) 10,946,015 ( 015
) OPSUMIT ANDA
(Sun Pharmaceutical Industries Limited)
(Sun Pharmaceutical Industries, Inc.)( )
781

015 OPSUMIT
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INVEGA SUSTENNA
2018 (Janssen Pharmaceutica NV)
( ) 9,439,906 ( 906
) INVEGA SUSTENNA ANDA
( )
2020 10 2021 10
2019 906 INVEGA SUSTENNA
ANDA (Mylan Laboratories Limited)(
) 2021 12
2019 12 906 INVEGA SUSTENNA
ANDA (Mallinckrodt PLC)
(Specgx LLC)( )
2021 11 906 INVEGA SUSTENNA
ANDA (Tolmar, Inc.) (Tolmar
Therapeutics, Inc.) (Tolmar Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)
(Tolmar Holding, Inc.)( )
2023 10
2022 906 INVEGA SUSTENNA
ANDA (Accord Healthcare, Inc.)
(Accord Healthcare, Ltd.) (Intas
Pharmaceuticals, Ltd.)( )

INVEGA SUSTENNA
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2018 (
) 2,309,629 ( 629 ) 2,655,335 (
335 ) INVEGA SUSTENNA
ANDS (Teva Canada Limited)( )
( ) 629
2020 INVEGA SUSTENNA
335
335 (Public Judgment and
Reasons)
2020 11 335 INVEGA SUSTENNA
ANDS ( )
2021 11 2022
2022 335 INVEGA SUSTENNA
ANDS ( )
2020 11 2022
2022 335
2021 335 INVEGA SUSTENNA
ANDS( ANDS ) ( )
( )
2021 12 2022
ANDS (Notice of Allegation) 335
INVEGA SUSTENNA ANDS
2022 ( )
2024
INVEGA

SUSTENNA
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2020
(Janssen Research & Development, LLC)(
)
(Mylan Institutional LLC)(
)
INVEGA TRINZA(546mg) 10,143,693 ( 693 )
INVEGA TRINZA(546mg) ANDA
2021
693 INVEGA TRINZA(819mg)
ANDA
2021 10
693 INVEGA TRINZA(273mg  410mg)
ANDA
2022 2020
693 INVEGA TRINZA
2022 11 12
2023
IMBRUVICA
2019 ( )
(Janssen Biotech, Inc.)( JBI ) IMBRUVICA
ANDA (Alvogen Pine Brook LLC)
(Natco Pharma Ltd.)( )
7,514,444 8,003,309 8,476,284 8,497,277 8,697,711 8,753,403
8,754,090 8,754,001 8,952,015 8,957,079 9,181,257 9,296,753 9,655,857
9,725,455 10,010,507 10,106,548 10,125,140
2019 JBI
10,213,386
2020 10 2021

2022 11
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2021
2,663,116 (
2,800,913 (
3,007,788 (
3,022,256 (
ANDS

)

2022 10
787

2023
788
ANDS

IMBRUVICA

IMBRUVICA
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( )
116 ) 2,928,721 ( 721 )
913 ) 3,007,787 ( 787 )
788 ) 2,875,986 ( 986 )
256 ) IMBRUVICA
( ) (Natco Pharma (Canada) Inc.)(
( )
IMBRUVICA
2023
116 721 913
788 2,851,808 IMBRUVICA
ANDS ( )
IMBRUVICA
2024
116 913 787
IMBRUVICA
( ) ( )
2023
721 256
( ) 8.2
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SYMTUZA
2021 11 (Janssen Products, L.P.)
(Janssen Sciences Ireland Unlimited Company)(
) (Gilead Sciences, Inc.)
(Gilead Sciences Ireland UC)( )
10,039,718 ( 718 ) 10,786,518 ( 518 )
SYMTUZA ANDA
(MSN
Laboratories Private Ltd.) (MSN Life
Sciences Private Ltd.) (MSN Pharmaceuticals Inc.)(
)
2023 10
2022 10
)
718 518 SYMTUZA
ANDA (
SYMTUZA
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ERLEADA
2022 (Aragon Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)
( )
(Sloan Kettering Institute for Cancer Research)( SKI )
9,481,663 ( 663 ) ERLEADA
ANDA (
)
2022 SK1
9,884,054 ( 054 ) 10,052,314 ( 314 )
10,702,508 ( 508 ) 10,849,888 ( 888
SK1 663 054 314 508
888 ERLEADA
2022 SK1
2022 SK1 663 054 314 508
888 ERLEADA ANDA
(Zydus Worldwide DMCC) (
) (Zydus Pharmaceuticals (USA), Inc.) (Zydus
Lifesciences Limited)( )
SK1 663 054 314

508 888 ERLEADA
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2022 (Regents of the University of California)( uc
)  SKI 663 8,445,507 ( 507 )
8,802,689 ( 689 ) 9,338,159 ( 159 )
9,987,261 ( 261 ) ERLEADA
ANDA (Sandoz Inc.)( )
2022 uc SK1
054 314 508 888
2022 uc SK1
2022 12 uc SK1
054 314 508 888
uc SK1 663 507 689 159
261 ERLEADA
2022 uc SK1 663 507 689 159
261 ERLEADA ANDA
(Eugia Pharma Specialities Limited)
(Aurobindo Pharma USA, Inc.)
(Auromedics Pharma LLC)( )
2022 uc SK1
9,884,054 ( 054 ) 10,052,314
314 ) 10,702,508 ( 508 ) 10,849,888
( 888 ) 2022 uc  SKiI
uc SK1 663
507 689 159 261 054 314

508 888 ERLEADA
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2022 uc SKI 663 507 054 314
508 888 ERLEADA
ANDA V(Hetero Labs Limited Unit V)
(Hetero USA, Inc.)( )
uc SK1 663
507 054 314 508 888
ERLEADA 2022 uc
SK1
UPTRAVI
2022 (
) ( ) 2,731,370
2,764,475 UPTRAVI ANDS
( )
UPTRAVI
2024
2022 11
( ) (
) UPTRAVI 8,791,122 ( 122 ) 9,284,280
( 280 ) UPTRAVI
ANDA (Alembic
Pharmaceuticals Limited) (Alembic Pharmaceuticals Inc.)
( )
UPTRAVI
2023 UPTRAVI 122 280
UPTRAVI ANDA
( )

UPTRAVI
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2021 11 ( )

(Nanosystems) (Elan

Pharmaceutical Research Corp.) (Elan Pharma

International Limited) 1999

(Alkermes Pharma Ireland Limited)

(Elan Drug Delivery,

Inc.) 2021 11
2003
2022 (
) (International Institute
for Conflict Prevention and Resolution) 2022
2022 2022 12
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AWP

AWP

AWP

AwP

2014

( J&J AWP

(Centocor, Inc.)

DURAGESIC  NUCYNTA

(Noramco, Inc.)(

JPI

EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)

oooooog
)
AWP
Awp
J&J AWP J&J AWP
AWP
(Ortho Biotech Inc.)(
) (ALZA Corporation)
( JPI )
NUCYNTA ER 3,500
(Tasmanian Alkaloids Pty, Ltd.)
2016 )
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JPI
38
2019
JPI
JPI
2021
2021 12
2019 10
2020 10
(

2017

JPI

2022

2022

10
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2021

2022
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JPI
465
2021 11
2019 10
JPI
2021 10
2022
40
50
2022
)
45
2022
2022
2022
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60
JPI 570
JPI 20
( )

2019 10

2019
(Controlled Substances Act)
2017 2019 12
2020
2019 11
2019 2020 2022
2022

2022
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2012 (DePuy, Inc.)(
) (Johnson & Johnson Services,
Inc.)( ) ASR XL
( )
2014
(False Claims Act) 2016
2017
2021
2021
2021 2021
11
2021 12 2022
2021 12

2022 12
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2012 10

2019

2020

2023

2019 2020
344

2022 11

2016

(Ethicon US, LLC)

2020 11

2022

2020

2022
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2019 10
4
2020 10
2019
344
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2014
(Johnson & Johnson Consumer Companies, Inc.)(
)( JJcl )
JJCI (Mississippi Consumer

Protection Act) JOHNSON = S JOHNSON = S (2012

)

JJCI
2019
JJCI

2021

2021 JJCI 2021
2021 12
JJCI LTL
2022
2022
2023 LTL
2022
2022 LTL LTL

2022 10
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2020

42

2022

2016

2012 12
2021

2020
2022
(Writ of Superintending Control)
2022 LTL
2022
2022 10
42 ( )
2022
2022 10 2022 12
HIV
12
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2020 12

60

LTL
2022 12

2022

LTL
LTL

LTL

PREZISTA INTELENCE

2022
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2017 ( JBI ) REMICADE
SIMPONI ARIA
2019 JBI
2019
2017 DARZALEX OLYSIO
REMICADE SIMPONI  STELARA ZYTIGA
2017
( )
2023
2018 (CADE)
(Johnson & Johnson do Brasil Indlistria e Comércio de Produtos
para Salde Ltda) 30
(Foreign Corrupt Practices Act)
2017 REMICADE
REMICADE
REMICADE
(In re REMICADE Antitrust Litigation) 2022

2023
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2019 ( FTC ) (
) REMICADE
FTC
2022 FTC (
) REMICADE
FTC
2022 (Genmab A/S) ( CPR )
Darzalex FASPRO
2022
2023
2017 10
(United States Anti-Terrorism Act)
2020 2022
2022
2018 10
(Actelion Clinical Research, Inc.)( )
TRACLEER
TRACLEER
2019

2019 10 2021
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2019
R&D (Janssen R&D Ireland)( )
HIV
(Gilead)
(Bristol-Myers Squibb)
2020
2020 2020
2021 12 ( )
2022
2023
2023
2019 10 (Innovative Health, LLC)
(Biosense Webster, Inc.)( BWI
) BWI
2020 BWI 2020
BWI 2021 12 BWI

2022 BWI 2022
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2019 11
2006

(Pfizer Inc

Health, Inc.)(

Ingelheim Pharmaceuticals, Inc.)(
2006
2022 11
(GlaxoSmithKline LLC) 2006
(Glaxo Wellcome)
2002

)

2016

2020 10
)

2021 12
2024
2022
(Emergent Biosolutions Inc.) EBSI
EBSI

2022

(

Arbitration Association)
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O( )
2019 11
(Sanofi Consumer
2016
2020
(Boehringer
)
(Warner-Lambert) 1993 1998
ZANTAC(
ZANTAC
(NDMA)
ZANTAC
ZANTAC
(Fortis Advisors LLC)(
)
)
2019
) (American
COVID-19
EBSI



2022 10
(Merck Sharp & Dohme Corp.)

2021

2021 12

COVID-19

(Neutrogena)

2022

2021 10
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10

(Aveeno)

2022

) 120

(Occidental Chemical Corporation) 2018

(Superfund)

(Lower Passaic River)

(Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act)

(
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20
2018
2022 )
« D
22 2022
2022
( ) @
2021 135 — 9 144
2021 (23) — 16 @
2022 112 — 25 137
— 15 448 463
44
@37 s (439) (432)
— (59) (59)
2023 @ 75 — 34 109
@ 2022
2023
@
(6))
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)
2002 404
2023
— (2013 ) (COS0)
2022 12 ( )
2023
2022
2022
SEC
2023
2023
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JOHNSON & JOHNSON AND SUBSIDIARIES
COMNSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
A January 1, 2023 and Fanuary 2, 2022
(Dodlars in Millions Exoepl Share and Per Share Amounts] (Sote 1)
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2022 2021

Asseis
Current assels
Cash and cash equivabents (Nobes 1 and 2) 14,127 14487
Marketahle sevurities (Notes 1 and 2) 49,82 1702
Accounts receivable lrade, bess allowances for devhiful sccounts £200 (2021, $20) 16, 160 156,283
Inwentories (Mobes 1 amd 3) 12,403 10,387
Prepaid expemses and othwr recelvables ER kR &
Toial current assets 55,204 60,979
Property, plant and cquipment, et (Noges 1 and 4) 19,803 18,562
||1L.l1|.g'|H|.' asapts, met [Males 1 and 5) 48,325 4B 192
Geondw HI (Modes 1 and 5) 45230 d5,426
Defermed laois on Incame [ Note &) 9,123 1023
Oither assets 602 10,216
Total sssets 167,378 182008
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current Halilinbes
Looams and notes payable (Note T) 12771 &, 766
Accounts payahle 11,704 1,065
Accrued labilides 11,456 15612
Accrisd rebalis, retifis al irsnotisns 14417 12,085
Accred compersation asd emplayee relased ohligations fulke 1 A5
Accrued axes on ncome (Mote 8] 2,127 1,012
Total current liabilities 53,02 45,226
l.uug—ll.'rln it [Muie 7) 2 EHE 28,4545
Deferred taxes on Income (MNote B) 6,074 TANT
Emplovee related obligations (Mote 9 and 10) 6,767 H
Long-term eaxes pavable (Mate L) 4,006 5713
Oiher Hahilitles 10,437 10 6HR
Tatal liabilities 110,574 107,995
i i and Contingencies {Noge 19)
Shareholders' equity
Prefemml stowk = witho par valise (authorzed ancd omissed 2 000,000 shars) — -
Commen siock — par value $1.00 per shaee (Node 12) (authorieed 4,520,000, 000 shares; [ssued
119,843,000 chares) 3,120 &120
Accumulated ather compeehensive Income (loss) (Mote 13) [12,967) [13,058)
Retained eamnings 128,345 1278,16500

118,490 118,122
Lasssz cuwmmion sinck huﬁllnlrmmr}'.u:w(hh!1H{mw1hmmmmtlﬂ<mnnﬂ ) RE A5 0E
Total shareholders” equity 76,804 TA023
Tatal liabilities and shareholders® equity 167,378 182,016
St Wores to Corsolidried Flianoinl Stmemenns

40
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JOHMNSON & JOHNSON AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSDLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

(Dallars and Shares in Millions Except Per Share Amounts) (Mote 1)
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Hx2 LY 202

Sales to cusiomers 5 g0 Q1775 B2, 54
Comt ol products sald A0 29,855 427
Crross profil 63,854 G350 54,057
Sellbng, marketing and adminiamtive expenses 24, 765 24 658 X2 niLe
lescarch and development experse 1dbind 14.714 12,154
In-process research and development {Nole 5) TE1 ] 181
mierest ingume (450} (53) [LARY
Irerest expense, net of poron capitalized (Now 4) 276 i[] 201
Oihver {income) expense, net I.871 49 2 99
Testractaring (Note J0) 321 a5d 247
Earnings belone provision for taxes on income 20,735 22,776 16,4497
Prowviskon for taxes on Income {Note &) 4,74 K 1,783
Met enirdings % 17,041 20878 14,714
Bel earnings per share (Motes 1 and 15)

Baskc 5 681 790 559

Diluted & 6.73 TRl 551
Awverage shares outstanding (Motes 1 and 15)

Basic 26252 2,632.1 2632.8

Diluted L6400 2,674.0 2670.7

See Notes bo Corsolidaied Financial Stmements
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JOHMNSON & JOHNSON AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

{Dollars in Millions) [Nate 1)
2122 2021 2020
MNet camings H 17,041 21,678 14,714
Other comprebensive income (Toss), net of tax
Fued gn curmency iranslaikon {1,796) [0.0¢7) [FER]]
Securilies
Unrealized holiking gain (low) arising during period (24) (4) |
Reclassificatlans o earnings — — —
Pet change (24) 4) 1
Fmplayes henelii plans:
Frior servioe credil (oos], nel of smoizalion { iy {1B9) 1,298
Ciadn {loss), net of amonization 1454 4318 (1.135)
E et ol exchange rales 111 108 {229}
et change 1005 4,205 ()
Drerivatives & hedyes:
Unrealized galn (boss) arising during period 454 {154) 1,100
Reclassifications o cormings [ELL] {7EN {53)
Met change 106 (1) [TH
Oths |.|.|1r|:||r|.'|:||:11=.I'u: Tcumie {luss) a1 21054 b=
Comprehensive Income 5 (-XTEF] L4062 15,463

T tax effects in other comprehensive inoome {or the fiscal yoars 2022, H021 and Mrﬂrﬂnlvﬂy; Foreign Cumency Translaton; 5460 milllon,
246 milliom amd $536 millkon; Securities: 36 million amd 31 million in 2022 amd 2021, Employee Benefit Plans 3461 nillion, 31,198 millioon oad $21
millina, Derivalives & Hodge: S50 million, $267 million and $252 million.

Eee Notes to Corsolidied Flimnetal Simtemenis
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JOHNSON & JOHNSON AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

(Deollars in Millions) (Mate 1)
Ammtﬂhl
Hetaimed Comprehensive Commaon Sieck Speck
Tokal Earnings Tncnme {Laoss Fssived Amosind A
Balange, Ddcembser 20, 2019 5 2l LIS5ea 1EL0] s 122417
B earmings 1714 LLTI4
Cash dividends paid (5358 per share) (149,441 (ND4R1)
Emgployes compensation and stock option plaem a7 (a1} 1,48
Repurchase of common sbock (2214 CL221)
ket (71 iy
Rt comnphehos]ve Income (loss), rel of @y [ il
Balaner, Jausary 3. 2021 E3FT0 TEYN {1530) oy s
Mt camings panip] J0UNTE
Cash dividends paid ($2.19 per share) {1001 (R vl
Enspliyee comperration mnd dck oplios plems 21m [BTH) Lnay
Mepurchase of cosmon siock (3,450 [356)
il comnprehemive Invone (s, oo of 2184 R
Dalance, January 2, 2022 48 123,080 (13,058) EXT) (0,099
Mei camings 175 1750
Cash dividends pabl ($2.85 per share) {11,602} (11,552
Emgloyee compensatinn and sieck option plar LAk [aTay 1440
Tepurchase of commion stock (e (6. 45)
Cithher comprehensbve Income (s, pet of @x 41 ]
Balance, Lanmary 1. 2023 § TR 12815 (12,967} 3120 (41,604)

Sew Nodtes to Corsolidmied Firvenctnd Simtemenis
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JOHNSON & JOHNSON AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

{Dhallars in Millions) (Nate 1}
At iy ok

Careh flows frean aperating crivities
el pamings 3 170 2470 14,704
Addjustments i econcile met camngs Uy cond Mows rm ogereasing ecivithe:

e bt by and amariizagion of proporty and lecangislies B0 e ] T

Sinck hased compensation i, AEL I, s

Assed wiilesdowns L2i6 Ty Pl

Contingeml comsidetatlon reversal -— — [EREL]

Rt gl oon sl i anbom diisinr (K] (BT} (i

Iiefprmed tax perwdsion (16T [2.07) (1.141)

iredi |lorses and acoounts seceivable allowancs 117 (] El
Changes in assees mnd Nabilites, wet af efects lrom scquisitions and divestines:

{ I ncreis WD [n ocomints eoeivahie {1290} 400 T

Ircraaser In inveninries 253n [1,248) [265)

Imcrease in aconunis payable and accrucd Bkl it B IR 2447 5041

Dhecrersesy InCreese) o viher ool sed mmn-corent dssets BT {1,501 {LT0d)

§ Decrease Vincrease | other corree and mon-curment, Habdlites (1.579) [AREST] ekl
Tt cash flows from operating sctivities FINC IH_E' 23,536
Cash Nows frem imvesting ackivities
Ao 0 propeety, plant and cquipmen (4,008} (R {1347)
Prvceeds From ihe dispesal of ssetchusinesses, net L1k T o
Acrjubsiliom, net of cash scquired (Mot 1) ErsT] () {73
Prmchisies. of Invesieniz (3L584) (340, 354) {21069
Kales ol investments A1 B 25,006 13037
Credil support agreements aceivity, net 244) 214 (k]
(her (primarily o= and milesionis) (L5) () 1521)
Nt cash wsed by investing acfivities 12371y (8.5 (20B25)
Cah flowes frean fimancing activities
Ty hdends o sharholders (AR F] [LLREER [RLIELEN ]
Repurchise of cornmmon siuck (6,085 [ha58E) (A1)
Prircecds from shordberm debt 15,10 1497 3990
Repaymemt of shart-term dels (6.550) [{R L] |LE63)
Proceeds Froem ling-tomm debl, net of ssuamor (osis s 5 7kl
Tepayment of kag-cerm debt [2.034) (1,602 | 1064)
Proceeds From the exercise of stnck aptions empleyec withholding tax on stock awands, net (Fe.: ] 1406 1,104
Credit support agreements scehvity, net (2H) an [An3)
mher Wk 114 [Z04)
Poet cach wsed by financing activities lgil! g [ﬂg
et o et bungde rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (312} (17E) =]
(Thecrease ¥ Incroase In canh and cash oquivalinis (360) 502 [E%Ful
Cash.and cash ool valests, beginning of yoar [Nege 1) 14,487 13,405 | 7o
Cashy andd cash equivalents, eond el year (Noer 1) 3 14,127 14487 13,585
Sapplemental cash ow data
Lash paid during the yrar o

|ier=t % 9 T} £t

Irterest, it of anound capbalised i i 21

oo xS 5,225 A, 7R A,608
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Seapplranenal sebedule of near-asd) Imeestiong anel Fianchg activities

Treaeary siock bsued (or conployes compensalion and stock opSon plans, netof csh prooecds)

emglyee withholding tax o stock awards

2114 (R L
Comvershon of debi _— —_ &
Arquizitions

Fair vallue i assets. scquined 1T wl .75
Fair value vl [Labilites assumed (3.658) [11] 412y
Pt carch pabd [or acouisions [ Note 18) 17632 i 323

See Wores o Corsolidmied Flnancial Séedemenrs
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies

Frinciples of Consolidation

The consolideted financial statements include the scoounts of Johnsen & Johnson and s subeidiaries (the Company). Intercompany scoounts and
tramsactions are eliminated. Columas and mows within ables may oot add due 1o roanding. Peroentages have been coboulated using scial, non-roeuamded
Frgumes.

Descriprion of the Company and Business Segments

The Company has approximately 152,700 employees worldwide engaged in the research and developmens, manufaciure and sale of a broad range of
mrislucts kn the healtheare el The Company conduicts busisess [n virtually all coundries afl the waorkl and s primany fscees §s on prodocts nelaled @
haman health and well-being.

The Company is organioed ineo theee business sepmens: Comsumer Healib, Pharmasoeaical and Medlech, The Consumer Healih segment includes a
hercvadd range o proslucss wsed inoibe Baby Care, Oval Care, Skin HealibhBeauty, Over-the-Comiber pharmaceutical, Women's Healih and Wound Cane
markets, These products ane marketed 1o the generall public and sold asnline (eCommerce] aml o metall outlets aml distributars thmaghost the world, The
Pharmaceutical segment is fooused on the following therapeatic arvas, incleding Immunelogy, Infectioes diseases, Newoscience, Onoology, Pulmomary
Hypertension, aid Cardiovasoular and Metabolic diseases. Produicts in this segment are distributed direcily o retailers, whelesalers, distdbutors, hospitals
andl bealtheare professbonals for preseriptbon dse, The Maed Tech segmaent inclisdes a broad ponfolio of produces ssed bn the Orthepacdic, Sompery,
Intervemtional Sobutions (oandbvascular and newmovascular) amd Visioa felds, These products ane distribuied o wholesalers, hospatals and retablers, and
mﬁlpllnl:lpall, I il |1r|||l':mi|ru.|| Tields |1:|.- [lll_l,lsul:inm. nurses, hisplials, eye care pml'l.ull:ul.lh and clindcs.

I Mewember 2021, the Company announced Its intention (o separate the Company®s Consumer Health bisiness (Kensvae as the name for the planned
Mew Consumer Health Company ), wiith the insention te creste o new, peblicly trsded company by the end of the fiscal year 2023,

Mew Accounting Standards
Recently Adepred Accounting Standards

There wene no vew material sccounting standerds sdoped in lscal 2022,

Recenily Issued Accounting Standards

Mot Adopred as of January 1, 2023

ASL 2022-0d: Liohilities-Sapplier Finance Programs (Topbe 405-50) — Disclosure of Supplier Finance Program Obligatiorns

This padaie negiines that a Buyer in s sipplier linance program disclose adidiional information abdol the program se allow Naancisl stibement e o
tretiier upderstaml thee effec of the prograns on an entity s working capital, lguidity, and cash Dows, This apdate will be elfective for the Company lor
liscal years beginning after December 15, 2022, except [or the amendment on nlll forwasd infonmastion, which is ellective for liscal years beginning after
Mewember 15, 2023, Farly sdoption is permitbed. The {':ump.rn].' is curmently ausessing ihe |n1.|1l|.1 nfl this u|1|:|.'||:- o s dlsclomures and will adopd this
sdanckand | the Tscal Tiesd gquamer of 3023,

Cash Equivalems

The Company dlassifies all highly liquid investiments with stated maturities of three monaths or less from date of purchase as cash equivadents and all highly
Hipuiled bnvestmeenis with sixied matarites of geeater than ihree months from the date of parchase as currend marketable securdes, The Compary has a policy
of making investments. only with commercial institotions that have ai least an Investment grade credil rating. The Company Invests is cash peimarily in
wowermmient securkibes amd obligations, comporate debit secudtles, money market funds amd reverse repurchase agreemenis (RRAs).

RIEAs are collateraliced by deposits in the form of Government Securities and Ohligations for an emount nol less than 102% al their valise. The
Company does nit recond an assel of lability as the Company is not peemitked o sell or repledie the associabed collateral. The Company has a palicy thal
the callateral has at leasi an A for egalvaleni) credit rating, The Company uilbizes a third panty cusiodion o manape the exchange of funds and ensure that
collaseral reoelved Is malmained at 102% of the value of the RRAs ona dally basis, BEAs with stated mataritles of greater than three manths from the daie
o purchase are clasified os marketable securities.

Invesiments
Frovestments clissiled as belbd o maturity vestments are neposied @ amoniaed cost and realized gaim or losses ane reponed bn samings. Invesiments
clussified as avallable-lorsale debl securilies are carried al eatimated fair valioe wilth unrealized gains and
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lusaes recorded & o component af accumilsed other compretiensive income. Avallable-lof-sale securities available lor cament operations ane classilied o
currenl asseds odherwise, they are classifbed as long torm, Marapgemem determines the appeopriae classification «+f (s invessmens in deb and equity
securities at the tme of purchase and re-evaluaies such determination ai cach halance sheet date, The Company reviews I investments Tor impalment and
adjusts these Invesimenis to lair value throagh camings, as required.

Praperty, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation
Propeny. plant and equipment ate sesied an cose. The Company utlizes the sirakghi-lee method of depreciation over ibe estimated usefal lives of the assets:

Budlding snd ballkding equipment 0 ywars
Lamdd amil lsasarhold Improvements 10 « H) years
Machinery and equipment 2= 14 years

The Company capltalizes conaln compuer solvwane and development costs, Included in machinery and equipment, whens incurred In connectbon with
develaping or ehiaining computer saftware for intemnal use. Capltalized soltware costs ane amontized over the estimated usefal lives of the soltware, which
generally range From 3 oo il vears.

The Company reviews long-lived asets o assess pecovershility using andiscounted cash Hows, Wihen centain events or changes in operating or
ceonomic conditlons ocear, an impalmem assessment may be perlormed on ibe recoverability of ibe carrying value of these assets. 11 the asset s
determined o be impalred, the boss s measoncd based on the difference hetween the asset®s falr value and s carrying value, 17 qunted market prices ase nist
available, the Company will estimale fair value wing a discounted value of estimated folore cash flows.

HRevenur Recognition

The Company recognlzes revenue [rom prdict salis whien oldigatlons undes the ierms of o comtruct with the customer are satisfied; generally, this sccun
with the transler of comiral of the goods o osstomers, The Company's global paymsent terms are typically berween 30 oo 90 days. Provisions [or ocrtain
rehates, sales incentives, trade promations, coupaons, produc retums, discounts 1o customers and govemmental clawhack provisions are socounied for as
variahle consideratlon and reconded as a neduction in sales. The Hahility §s reongnized within Accrued Bebaies, Refums, and Promnotions on the
corsalidaied balance sheet,

I'rodisct discounts granted are based on the tormas of arrangements with direct, indirect eod other marke participants, as well as morkiet conditions,
including consideration of compsetisns pricing. Hebates are estimited based on conraciual semms, historical experience, patient outcomes, trend analysis and
peraijersed muanker ool s in b varions markets served. A cignificans pordion of the Hability nedated o sehates |s from the <le of te Compary's
pharmaceutical products within the LS, primarily the Managed Care, Medicare and Medicald prog which an | tov $506 hillion and $7.7 hillion
as ol Janaary 1, 2020 and Lanuary 2, M2, mspectively. The Company evaluaies marken conditions for prodiscts or gmaps of peoducts primarily through
the amalysls of whilesaler aml ather third-pamy sell-through and market research data, as well as imemally generaved information,

Sabes retums are estimated and recarded based on historical sales and returns informasgion, Products that exhibit unasual sabes or rewm patiems due o
dating, compelition or ather maskeling matiers are specifically investigated and analyeed 2 pant of the socounting for sales retum accrsals.

Salis retirms allcvwances mpresent a neserve Tor products that may be et dise o explsion, destroction in the Geld, or i specilic aness, prosdic
recall, The sales peturms reserve |s based o historical requmn crends by produat asd by market as @ percent 1o gross ssles, In aocosdance with the Company's
accounting policies, the Compary genevally Bsues credil 1o customesens. for retuemed goods, The Company's sales returms nesernves ane sceounied for (n
accordance with ihe LS, CAAP guidance Tor revenoe recognition when right of retam exisis, Sales retums meserves ame recorded at sl sabes value. Sales
retnims n the Consumer Health and Phamascentical ssgments are almost exclusively nol resalable. Sales retims for ceraain franchises in the MedTech
segmend ane (ypleally resalable But are not material. The Company infrequently exchanges products frem Imventory for returmsd products. The sales relums
teserve fist the tolal Compainy has bees approcimately 10% of anmial et rade salies daring cach of e Gecal years 20022, 2020 and 2020,

Promeaticnal programs, sich as product Hsting allowances ard cooperative sdvenising amangements, are recorded in ibe same period as related sales,
Continaing promoticnal programs inclode coupons and volume-based sales incentive programs. The redemplion cost of comsumer ooapons is based on
hssosical redemption experience by product and valise. Volume-hased incentive programs are hased on the estmued sabes volumes for the ncentive pedod
Al ire revorded as products ane soll, These arrangemenis ane evalusted o determine e appropiote amounts s be delemed or eoeded as o odooio of
revienue, The Company also eams profii-share paymenis throagh collshorstive armangemenis for cenaln produces, which are included In sales w customers.
Profit-s hare payments were less than 2,00 of the sotal revenues in fiscal year 2022 and less than 30% of the mtal revenues in fscal years 2021 and 2030
andd are included in sl fo customens,
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Sew Mute 17 w e Consolidabed Finaocial Siaemeits for Tanber disoggoegation ol mevemne,

Shipping and Handling

Shipping and landling costs incurred were $5.1 billion, $1.1 billion ad $1.0 billion in Giscd vess 2022, 2020 and 2020, resprctively, and are included in
selling, markeling and administrative expense. The amount of revenar received bor shipping and handling is hes than 10% of sales 1o asomen for all
perionds prisented

Inventories
Inveniorics ane stated at the lower of cost or net realizable valoe determined by the first-in first-out method,

Intamgible Assets and Gondwill
The ambacitative erature om LLS. GAAT requires thal goodwill and intangible assets with indefinie lves be sssessed anmially [or impalrment. The
Company compbeied (s sanual impairment est for 2002 in the liscal fourth guarer. Future impainment iests will be performed annually bn the lscal fourth
ypuariet, or soaner Il waranivd. Furchased [n-process research and devebopment |s acooumted for as am indelingie lved Intangibie asset umil the urderlying
mject bs completed, af which point the intangible asset will be accosmted Toe as a definite lved intangible asset. 1D warsanged the purchasad insproces
research and development could be wriltten off cr partially Impained depesding on the underlying program.

Intangihle assels that have Gnite wselul lves continue o be amnottieed over thels useful lives, anil sre reviewed for impaimment when wiemaniod by
ceontmic conditioms, See Note 5 for further details on Intangible Assets and Goodwill,

Finandial Instruments

As requined by LS. GAAR all derivatlve instruments are recorded on the halance sheet at falr value, Fair valee Is the exlt price that would be received o
wpll an amard or paid 1o ramder a lishility. Fair valoe i o markeishased measurement delermined wing assumptinns. that market panicipanis wwould use in
pricing an asset or llsbiliey. The authoritaive lieranre establsbes o three-level hlerarchy 1o prioriize the Inputs wied in measuring fale valoe, with Level 1
having the ighest priovity aml Level 3 having the lowest. Changes in the fair valise of derivatives are neconled cach period in current carmings or olber
comprehensive Income, depending sn whether the derivatlve Is deskpnated as pan of a hedge transaction, amd If so, (he type of hedge ransacion,

The Company decuments all relationships between hedged fems and derivatives, The overall risk management strategry inchides reasons for
undertahing bedge ransactions and entering Into derdvatives. The objectives of this sirategy ane: (1) minimize forelgn carmency exposure's impact on the
Company™s (inancial perfonmance; (2) protect the Company™s cash low (eom adverse mavements in loreign exchange rates; (1) emsune the appropristeness
ol Tievancial Instramencs: amd (4) manage the enterprise risk associsted with financlal instiutlons, See Note & for sdditional information on Fieanclsl
Insimmienes,

Leases

The Company deiermines whether an arrangement |5 a lease ai contract inception by estahlishing if the contract omrveys the dght 1o contol tbe wse of
ldentified property, plant, or equipment lor o pedod of time in exchange for consideration. Right of Use (ROU) Assets and Lease Liabilities {or operating
leases are included in Onber assets, Accried Habilines, and Oiker lahilities on the consalidaged halance sheer, The ROET Assets present the dght o use an
underlying asset for the lease wenm and lease Habilities mepeesent an obligation to make lease payments arsing from the lease, Commdments under finance
I, are neat shpndfieant, aned are includald s Propeny, plant and equipment, Loans and potes payalde, and Long-em debt on the consolidated balapee
sheel

ROV Assets and Lease Liabilities are recogaized at the lesse commencement dae based on the preseat vabue of all minimum lease payments aver the
lease termy, The Company uses its incremental borrowing raoe based on the infermastion available a commencement date in detemyining the prosent valoe of
lewsi payrmenis, when the implicis rte bs mot readily determinable, Lease wnms may indlude options w estesl or weominege tie hease, These opions ane
Ine luded n the lease tlevm when [t ls reasonahly certain that the Company will exercise that option. Operating lease expense b recognlzed on o stralght-line
hasis over the lease term. The Company hes elected the folbowing pelicy elections on sdoption: use of ponfolio appmach on leases of assets ander master
service apreements, exclusion of shor term leases on the balance sheet, and pot separating bease and nn-lesse componens.

The Company primarily hes operuting lease foe space, vehicls, manafaciaring equipment and duta processing equlpment., The ROU assed penalning o
mprating leases was 51,1 hillkon and $0.9 hilllon in fiscal years 2022 and J21, respectively. The kease labilicy was $1.3 hillion and $1.0 billlsn i sl
yoears 2022 and 202 1, respectively. The operating leasc ooals wiene $0.3 hilllon im fiscal wears 2022, 2021 and 2020, mespectively, Cash pald for amoanis
ime: Iuidee] i the msasarement of lease lishiliies were 80,1 hillion in liscal years 2022, N21 and 2020, nespectively.

Prodict Liahility

Aoonaals for product Nabiliey clakms are recorded, on an undiscoansed basis, when 1t is probable that a labiliy hes been incurred and the amourt of the
lability cam be reasomably estimated based on exlsilng Information and aciuarlally determined esiimates whene applicable. The accrusls are adjesied
periodically as additional infeemation hecomes available. The Campany
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avcries an estimate of the legal defemse costs neadid w defend vach mateer when ithise costs are probalde and can b reasonably estimaied. To die exten
atverse venlicis have been rondersd agalnst the Company, the Company does sot recosd an accrual wniil a lass ks deiermined o be probadle and can be
reasanahly estimated.

The Company has sl insurance throwgh g swholly=owned coptive insurance compamt In addition o aoomals in the sell inurance program, claims that
cavwed the insurance coverage ane accrued when losses ane probable sod smownis can be reasonably estimatid.

Research amd Developamem

Research andl developnient expenses are expensed as incurred in accordance with ASC 730, Research and Deselopment, Uplront andd milesione paymenis
maile im ihind pariles in commection with resecarch and &ﬂ'lnlm callaharaibons e t'!;purunlu Encumed up imibe pnhtul' ngu'l.;lnr;r approval. Payminis
maile 1o ihind pardbes subaquent i egulaony approval ane capblalized and amostized over the remaining eselol lile of the melabed product, Amaants
capitalized for such payments are included In other intangibhes, net of sccumulaed amonization.

The Company enters inte collaborative amangements, typically with ather pharmaceutical o otechnology companios, o deselip aml commercialee
g candidaes or Inellectaal propeny. These arangements typlcally Involve two [or mare] partdes whao are active panticipants in ihe collaboration and ae
rapasl 1o significant risks amd reswards dependemt an the commercial success of the activities. These collshoratinns peaally invihee varioms activities by
N or e parlics, ncluding rmdl..:ﬂ].l]m'lrmrnml. sk eling: and selling snd distribution. CHben, these collsharatiom. regjuine uplront, mibestone il
royalty or profil shore payments, contingent upon the oocurresoe of comain e events loked o the sucoss of the st in development. Ansuants due
Trom callabarative partners related 1o devel opment sctivities are generally reflected a5 o redection of msearch and development exponse hecasse the
performance of eontraci development servioes ks ned ceniral 1o the Company's operations, In generl, the income satement presentation for these

collaborations 5 as follows:;

Matre/Type ol Collabaration Statement of Earnings Presentation
Third=party sale of product & prodil share payments. eceived Sabes i Cusiomeers.
Ihya]l]lﬁ.nuhm: st 1o collaborative panner (post-regulatory Costof prosdscs sald

approva

Rvyaltles recelved from collaboralive panner Ciibier Income (expense), net

Liplront pagments B milestones paid 1o collaibosative partner { pre- Teearch and deved opiment expense
reggalasey approval)

Besearch and development payments 1o collaborative partner Research and development expemse
Rescarch and devebopment paymients recelved from collaborative parineror  Reduction of Rescarch and development expense
overniment cnity

* Milesiones are capitalieed as Intangible aseets and amortized (o oost of produces sold over the usefal life.

For all years presented, there was o indivishea] project that represented greater than 5% of ihe o annual consolidaied research and development ecapense.
The Company has a number of produces and compounds developed in collaboration with strategic parisers including XARELTD, co-developed with
Bayer HeahhCare AG and 1MBRUNVICA, developed in collaboration and co-markesed with Pharmacyclics LLC, an AbdYie company,
Separstely, the Company has a namber of lcersing arrangements Tor products and compnuands including DARZALEX, leensed from Genmah As,
Advertising
Caes associabed with adventising are expensed fn b year iourred and ane included Tnselling, marketing and adminidrative expenses, Advertising
expenses worldwide, which comprised welevision, radio, peint media and Inemer advenising, were $2.0 billlon, 2.7 billion aml 2.1 billion in fiscal years
J022, 2021 and 2020, respectively,

liome Taxes
Income taxes are recoded based on amounts relundabde or pavahle for the cureemt year amd include the resulis of any difference bonween LS, GAAR
accounting and tax reporting, recorded as deferred a assets or labilities, The Company estimates delerned tax assets and lahililies based on enacted tax
rejpalations aval mtes. Puture chonges im tax baws and rabes may affect mecorded delemed tax asaeis and [labilibies Inibe Qe

The Company has unrecognized tax beneliis Tor sncertadn s positbons, The Company folbows LS GAAR which prescribes o secognition theeshalsd
ancl measurement atiribate for the linancial statement recognition and measurement of a ax position tken or expected g be taken in o Lax reun.
Management belicves thal changes in these estimates would not have a material effoo on the Company’s results of operations, cash NDows or fisencial
rsiiine,

T 2017, the United States enacied into law mew ULS, tax leglislation, the US. Tax Cuts and Jobs Act [TCIAL This Law included provisions lor u
comgirehensive overhaul of the corporae income tax code, incheding a reduction of the sambory coepoie tas e from 35% i 20%, effecive on tanaary
T, 2008, The TCIA, included a provision for a s on all provicusly
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undistribiged eamings of 1.5, companies located in foreign jurisdictions. Undistriboted eomings in the fom of cash and cosh equivalens were taxed st a
rate o 15.5% and all ciber eamings were txed ata rate of B.00%. This ax s payable over B years and will e acomie indeoess, These paymienss hegan in
2018 and will continue through 2025, The remalning balance ai the end of the 2022 was approximately $6.1 hillion, of which $4.6 billion ks classified as
noncamrent and rellected as “Long-tenm taxes payable™ on the Company s alance sheet, The halance of this scooust is elated o receivables from
authoritles pot expecied b be recelved Intbhe pext 12 months,

The TCIA ko incledes provisions [or a 1ax on global imongible low-taxed income (GILTT) CGILTT is descoribed & the excess ol a U5, sharebodder s
lala] el Boreign income over a deemed relam on laagible assers, o prowided by the TCIAC bn January 2018, the FASH bsued guidance that allows
o & 4o elect as an acoounlin lcy whether bo recond the tax effeots of GILTD inike the ta liahiliiy Is generated (L, “period cos™) o
Mt deferml tax assris nn:l?lmlll:l.ln relapel go hasis differences that exise and are mrrcﬂ::ll o elTect the E-.;..‘:ﬂ..' il I.'IEI In:lnmn in lunire years
upea reversal {1, “deferved method“). The Company has elected waccount far GILETE under the defenned method. The defened i amounts reconded are
based on the evaluation of iempaorary differences that ane expected 1o reverse as GIETT is Incurred in Tulare poriods.

The Campany has reconded deferred tax [Labilnbes on all undistrbuced eamings prior 1o December 31, 2017 from (s inernational subsidisries. The
Company has not prosided defermed tases on the undisiributed eamings sabsequent o kanoary 1, 2008 from certain iniemational subsidiarkes where the
carnings ane considered w be ndefiniely reimvestal The Company inends 1o cominse 1o nnvist these esmings in those inemational operations, 1 the
Company dedides at o Later date 1o repatriate these eamings o the U5, the Company woukld be required to provide lor the met tax eflects on these amants.
Thr Company estimates that the tax effect of this repatriation sould ke approximately 30,5 billion onder asmrently enacted gax laws sl regulations and at
current currency exchamge rates. This ameint does ol include te possible benefil of U5, foreign s credits, which muy substmtially offse dhis cost.

Sew Mote B Lo the Consolidsted Financial Sdatements for further information reganding income wxe,

Met Earnings Per Share

Hasic rarnings per shane is compueed by dividing nist carnings svailable i commaon shaneholiers by the weighted avenige nomber of common shiares
omitstaniding for thee period. Diluted eamings per share reflects the pasenclal dilution that coald soour I secaritles were exercised or comverved Inso common
stk using the teasury siock methad

Use of Extimates
The p.rq'unﬂ.l:m af consalidasted Mnancial siatements in nnﬁmmh:p with accounting principles generally accepied Inthe LS, nqdmsrmawrbrnl 1o make
eatimates and assumplions that affect the amounts reporied. Estdimates are wsed when sccounting for sales discounts, rehaies, allowances and incentives,
prodact |Eebdliies, ibcome txes, withholding laves, depreclation, ansoetization, employee benelits, comtingencies and intangibhe ssset amd Tabiliny
valiaticans, Actaal sesulis may o may e difler foon those cstines,

The Company follows the provisions of U5, GAAP when recosding lidgadon relaed condngencles. A lahiliny Is recoeded when a loss |5 probable and
can he ressonably estimated. The best estimate of a luss within a range s scorued; bowever, I o estimate in the range s better than any other, the
mimimam amount i stomied.

Annual Closing Dare

The Company follows the comoept of a fiscal year, which ends on the Sunday nearest to the enad of the month of Deoember. Nommally cach (iscal year
comsbats ol 52 weeks, hut every live or sis years the llscal vear consists ol 51 weeks, and therelore Includes sddidonal shipping days, as was the case in
liscal year 2020, and will be the case again in fiscal year 2006,

Reclasilication
Certadn peige period smoints have been meclassified 1o conform io cumment year prosemtation

g
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hallars b Sillisrs 2022
Current
Carmying Unmecognized  Estimaled Fair Cash & Cab Marketabli
Amaunt Lims Valise Eguivalenis Spcurilies
Clash 5 45926 - 4,906 4,926 —
LS, Revorse repurchase agreements 1418 — 1418 1419 —
Coporate debt securities 7] ) A2 - 7
Money market funds 5368 - 5,368 5,368 —
Thioe depronles!! 445 = 445 445 15
Subtotal 5 13paz (1 13,0041 12,153 H73
LIS, Gow’t Securitles 5 5,969 (2m 9,501 1942 L0
U5, Gon't Agencies 210 (5 5 - 205
Coeporate and olher debt securities 52 ] a5l 46 05
Sulstotal available for sale® 5 1052 {34} 10,417 1,968 a519
Tetal cash, cash equivabents and current marketabile
sECUTilies 5 14,027 9392
allars m Milliane] 2021
Ca Fi Cash & Cah arkelabl
il 1
S gt B e S e
Cash 5 29005 — 2,915 2905 —
Nan-11.5. Soverelgn Secarlies’™ 1,06 — 1,046 401 516
115, Revense repurchase sgreements 1,655 —_ 1,655 1,659 —
Croaporate debit securites™ 3479 (i} 478 i 3279
Musney market finds 1,501 - 1,501 1,901 —
Thme deposies! L] - 00 S0 -
Suboial (R M=) (L] 11,1840 7, hiR 4,185
LS, Gaow't Securitles 5 19445 [4) 19,4481 6, THS 12,6596
Conporatie amd ather debt wcurilies 245 — 245 [ 25}
Subtotal availlabile for sale™ 5 187 ) 19,747 ,501 12826
Tetal cash, cash equivalenis and current marketahle
securities E 14,487 17,121

FHHeld 10 maburity imvesimends are reported of amonized cost and realized gains or losses e neponied in samings
B Ayailable Tor sale debt securities are reporied al fair valoe with unrealized gains amd bsses reported met of e in other comprehensive income,

Fair value af governmment securities and obligations and covporase debi securities were estinated wsing quoted hroker prices amd significan other

vhservable inputs.
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The contreciul maturitbis of tie availalde Gor sale dobi secorites al lasoary 1, 2023 are as follows:
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10,3558

Bt

{DunlLars i Adidlhos Crst Masis

e within one year 5 10,430
e after ome year throagh five years 91
[ae alter five years through ven years —
Tatal debt securities 5 10,521

10,487

Ihe Company invests |is excess cash in hoth deposits with major banks throighout the waorld amd ather high=guality money market Inaruments. The
Company has a policy of making investments only with commencial instid ons that have a0 beastan invesament grade ordil rating.

¥ Inventories

AL the end of fiscal years 2022 ard 2021, inventories wene comprised of:

(Mhsllars b Ml 2021

Raw materials and supplice 5 1552
Coods in Mo 1287
Finlshed goods S
Tutal inventicies L1 10387

4. Property, Plant and Equipment

AL the end of Tiscal years 2022 and 2021, propenty, plant and equi proent al cost and scoumilated depreciation wene:

[Thalliars bn Milliens) 2022 2021

Land and Jand Improvements ] Bl
Bhuallulinnggs avl Budleling vepuipnent 1489 b2 A
Machinery aml equipment 431 0,774
Consirecalon in TS 44974 4118
Tl preperty, plant amd equipment, gross A45.051 47,679
Le=ss accumulated depreciation 20 450 .77
Tosal property, plane and equipment, net 19,803 18,962

T Comspany coplalizes interest expenae as pant ol e cost ol comsomiction of Bacitites aml equipment. [nterest espense capitaliosd in Tscal yoam 2000,

2021 aml 2020 was 5449 million, $3% millkon and 563 million, respectively,

Depreciatbon cxpense, inchiding the amanizaton of caplialized Interest In fiscal years 2022, 2021 and 2020 was $2.7 hilllon, $2.7 billian and $2.6

hilligmn, mespectively.

Uipon retiresnent ar olber disposal of propeny, plant and equipment, the coss and reboed amvounes of accamilsted depreciation or amonieation ane
climinated from ihe asset and accumalated depreciation accourts, respectively. The difference, il any, bitwoen the pet assel value and the procesds are

recorded fin camings

n2

340/439



EDINETOOOO
OO000000000000O00O(E05943)
oOoOooodn

5. Intangible Assets amd Goodwill
An the end of fiscol years 2022 aend 2021, the gross and net amoungs of intangible mssets wene:

(Wil o Ml 2022 2021
Intangible assets with definite Hves:

Patenis anel trademarkes R £ 44012 AT
Less gocumulaied ameonizalon {24, 266) {20n08H)
Paterits atel trademarks — net™ 5 21,746 18,484
Custamer relationships amd other intangihles — gross. 5 22987 23,011
Le=ss acoumulaied amosribzsbon :!3.9131] {11.925)
Custamer relationships and other intangibhes — ned® 5 10,085 11,006
Intangible assets with indefinite lives:

Trademarks £ GA07 i, 55
Puschased |n-process reseanch and development™ bk 2,447
Total intangible ssus with indelinite lives 5 L6453 16,822
‘Total inmangible assets — et 5 48,325 i, 392

Uit change was primarly pelabed o the intangihle s soquired wiih the aouilsiios of Ahlomed, Inc. which was pandally offee by smonieation experss of previasly
exdsiing Intangihle sty and the msult of comoncy tranakatien effects.

e maprity bs comge e of costomer nelatonsbi e

™ he reduction wiss primarily refated 10 an infangible @ssct Impalmment charge of approsimaicly $008 billion reoonded (o che flscal vear 2022 related (o an insprocess

research aed developrent asset, bermebimeb (faf-TTAT4E6Z), an investigackonal drag for the ivatment of Alogic Dematiils (AL and Hidmdendtis Suppurativa (5]
scijuized with the scgussivion of XBmiech, Inc. in the flecal vear 300, Addiiloml sfomatios eganding cificacy of the Al and HS indlcalons Became avallable which leid

thee Crommpany’ to the declsbon s lemminasie the development of bermekimab lor A D and 15, An additional reduction ol $0.7 billloa was driven by Monarch assets thal
reached commerclalization and are nivw classified 2 having deflinlie lves. This was panlally offset by approximately $1.1 billion of 1PRED acgaebed with Ablomed, Inc.

Goodwill as of Jarmary 1, 2023 and lanuary 2, 2022, as allocated by segment of business, was as follws:

AWkl b i) Consamer Healih Pharmacentical sedTech Total
Gooewill at Jamuary 3, 2021 5 10,1365 11008 15 M2tk 36,393
Cionedwill, relaied o acouibsithnns == — - rE=
Ciooewill, related o divestitures (1] - — ()
Cumency iranskatlon'other {517} (429) {1492] {1,140}
Crondwill v Jasary &, 2022 5 L] 10,580 14,856 5,246
Goodwill, relsted o acquisithons — — 11,056 11,056
il related m divestitures. - — — —
Cusmency transhatbon'other {626} ] (4] (1071}
Goodwill ar Jasuary 1, 2023 ] 9,184 10,184 25,063 45,231

The welghted average amortization period for paents and rademarks B 12 years. The weighted average smaoriieation period for customer eelatioeships and
ther Imangihle asscis b 21 years. The amonizastion expense of amoctizable assets included in Cosi of products sold was £4.9 hillion, $4.7 billion and $£.7
hillicemn heione Lax, for the fiscal years ended January |, 2027, lanmary 2, 2022 and January A, 2021, respectively. Indang ble aset write=downs e included
I Ehiber {ncome) expense, el

The esimaled  amortization  expense  for approved  prodicts,  belore s, Tor the  [ive  succeeding  years i approximately:

Ml i Wil
2025 024 EIZ5 2025 M7
54,600 4400 3,600 3,000 2,400

See Mote 1A o the Consolidated Financial Stasements for additional details related 1o ooguisitions amd divestimures,
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The Company wses forwand foreign exchange contrscts 10 manage s exposuns o the variability of cash flows, primarily relsted 10 the (orelgn exchange
rale changes of fubime ntercompany prodocts and thind-pany parchases of materials denominated bn a forelgn curency, The Campay uses crss cummency
Imierest rale swaps s manage cemency risk primarily related 1o bormawings, Both types ol derivadives are designated as cash Mow hedges,

Additionally, the Company primarily uses inbenest rate swaps as an instrament o manage interest rate risk related to lixed rate bormwings., These
derivatives ane designated as fakr valies hedges. The Company uses cross cumrency infersd rate swaps and lorward forcign exchange contracts designated =
et investrent hedyes. Additomally, e Company uses Torwand foreign exchange comracts to offset its expostre o certain lomrlgn curmescy assees and
liabilkties. These forwand foreign exchanpe comracis are nod designated as hedges and therefore, champes in the Tair valves of these derivatives are
recognd el In camings, therehy ellsciilng the curmemt eamings effect of e edated Torelgn carrency saeis aml Habillghes,

Invthee fiscal fourih quarter of 2022, the Company entered inio forwand staning Intesest rate swaps with notional amounts otaling $2.4 ballion in
contemplatian o hedging interest rabe risk ssociated with lang-teem livancing for the Comsamser Healith sepment separation. These forwand slarting mierest
rule swaps are naol designated as bedges and therefore, changes in the falr values ol these derivatives ane recognized in earnings. At the end of the Tiscal
year J022, the changes In falr value was sod materlal and therefore nil included inihe table helow,

The Company dhses ot ener inbe derivative Tinenclal instruments for oading o specalasive purposes, or thag contedn credin risk releied vontingens
[eaiures. The Cismgpany maintains cnedin suppon agreements (C5A) with certain derivative coumerpanies establishing colloteral thresholds based on
respoctive onedil ratings and meiting agreements. As of Japuary 1, 2023, the i1al amoant of cash collateral pald by the Company under the CSA amounbed
Lo S0 billkon net, related w net investment and cash Now bedges. On an osgoing basks, the Company monBors counber-pany credii mings, The Company
comblers credil nem-performance Hsk o be low, bocatse the Company primorly enters ingo agreements with commencial institutions that have ai least an
Imvestment grade credit rating. Hefer 1o the table on significant fimancial assets and lishilithes measured at falr vaboe contalmed inihis feoinose for
recelvables and payabies with these commercial instinsmions. As of January 1, 2021, the Compasy had notional amourts casanding for foeward Torelgn
eachamge conbradls, crms currency intensy rate swips and interet rote swaps of S48 Wilion, $36.2 billion and 5124 hillion, respectively, As of Janary 2,
2022, the Company had notlenal amaounts outstanding for forward forelgn exchange contracis, cross curmency inferess rate swaps and interest mbe swaps of
S45.4 hillion, $37.4 hillion and S1000 killikn, respectively.

All derivative instruments are recorded on the balance sheet at Lair value. Changes in the Fair value of derivatives are recorded esch period in airrem.
carnings of other comprehonsive income, depending on whether the derivative s desigrated as part of a hedge wansaciion, and if so, the type of hedge
iramsaction,

The designation as a cash flow hedge Is made at the entrance date af the dedvative contract. At inceptlon, all derlvatives ane expected o be highly
elfective. Foreign exchange contracts designated as cash flow hedges are accounted for under the forwand method and all gainausses associaied with these
coniracts will be recognized in the income ststement when the hedged tem impacs eamings, Changes in the Fabr value of these derivatives are recorded in
avcumulased other camprebensive income il the undedying imrsacton affeces camings, amil ane tben reclass) e go carmimgs imibe some sccownt as the
hedlizedd mansacibon,

Craines s lomses assoclabed with imterest rate swaps atml changis in fair value ol hedged debit atrributable @ |:h.'|||gc1. i Imteresd rabes are recoeded 1o
imterest expense in the period in which they occwr. Gains and losses om et imvesoment hedges ore acoounted thrsagh the cumency iranslation acooum within
accumulated other comprebensive income. The portion excluded Tom ellectiveness westing is recorded through imensst (income) expense using the spot
mieihad, Un an ongoing hasis, the Company assesses whether each derivalive comtimues b be highly elfective in offseiting changes of hedged ivems. 1T and
wehiem a derivative b oo longer expected 1o be highly eilecive, edge scoounting s disooiined.

The Company designated its Fum denominated potes issued in Moy 2006 with dise dotes ranging from 2022 1o 2035 a5 a oot investment bedge of the
Company's nvestinents in corlain of s inlemstional subsidiaries that dse the Euro as their lanctional cormency in onder 1o neduce the volatility caased by
chanpes in exchange raes,

s of anuary 1, 2023, the balince of deferned net Jons an derivatives incheded 0 ocoamulated other comprehensive income was 5230 million alier-aa.
For mldlitlonal Infoemation, sec the Comsolidaied Staiements of Comprehemsive Inoome and Noie 11 The Company expects thai auhslunl]u]lr all of ihe
amaunts relatesd o lorwand loreign exchange contracts will be reclassified into camings over the next 12 months as a result of ransactions that are expected
10 socur over Ul period. The maximum length of dme over which the Company is hedging ransaction esposine is 1 months, excluding inlerest rae
coniraces and net investment hedpes, The amoust ulimately realized |n camings may dilfer as forelgn exchange rates change. Realized galns and losses ane
wlimately determined by actual exchange rates a0 maturity of ibe derivatlve,

i
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T folbowing talde s o sunmiary of te activity ndated o derivatives and lodges for the Tscal years eoded Jamsary 1, 2023 aml January 2, 2022, et of tax:
Jamuary 1, 2023 Janwary 2, 2022
Costal Imlerest (her ol ol Intemest eher
Produdes R&n {lacome)  (Income) Products. R&d (Ineome)  {Income)
(sl in Millioas Sales Sald Eaperse Expense Expense Hales Sold Expense  Expense Expense

T effects of fairvale, nn
itvralmett and cash o holgiag:
Giaim [Lowx) om lair value
hedging relatisnship:
Iniemesd rabe wwaps onmiracis:
Hedlged it L — —_ — £ 1,0m) — —_ —_ — {1184 —_
DevEwail

s derabgriatend s banlging,

Gain (Lots) nm net investmend
Elhr:z-i-:ﬁb.l
Crmes rurreny inderest rale
W Conl
At ol of s |
n o
Trom elfestivensss

nesting, 5 — —_ — 140 — — — — 174 —_

et 0 gais of {lows)
et in ATKC] -— — — (1] — — —_ — 174 =

Caain [Loss) om cash Mow
Tordigng rahipet
Farwaril lurcige rachangs
coairacis:
Acmpund o ain oo il
recaaifind fmem ACKA 10 income {72 'Fxih] 1449 - (25 17 14 30 - 47
Ameuint of gaim o flisa]
recopmined bn ATHC 5 A9 &l —_ [ 103} (5} {5571 123 —_ Ld&
s tiirrency inderest rale
s Cnirae
A meund il gais o {loa)
rocLyabfid b ACECH bnin o - - - 425 - - - -_ 402 =
Ammum of gain or {loe)
15 in ALHT]

A ol January 1, 2023 and January 2, 2022, the lallvwing smounts wene recorded an the consalidaged balance sheet related to cumulative basks adjwtmient
T fale vaalue headges

Comulative Amount of Fair Yahe Hedging

Lime itemn in the Comsolidaved Balance Sheet in Adjustmeent Incheded in the Carrying Amoumt of
which the hedged e is lncbuded Carrying Amount of the Hedged Lisbiliry the Hedged Liabiliny

{ Tl L s WAL ima ) Ranuary 1, 2021 Jatary 2, 2022 Ranuary 1, 2023 Jamuary 2, 2022

Lang-erm Debt 5 BEES  § 4791 % (1435) 5 {142)

w
in
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The Inlboswing tabde is the elfect of dedvatives nid desigmaged as hediging imstrumend (or the Tiwcal years ended Finuary 1, 302 aml Janmary 2, 2022

Waain{ 1 oms
Lasatban of Tiain AlLsas) Heosgnized in Herngeared |m
Dl in MiHjma Imwinee on Therivadive Tibitie o Dderivative
Trerinstives Ml Designatnd o= Hiedging Instrumemis Jamiiary 1, FOXR Latiidery 2, 3002
Farrign Exchangs Cantracss Other (incomec) expense L] W {7y

The folbowing table is the elfect of net invesiment hedges for tee Tiscal vears ended Janaary 1, 2023 and Tamiary 2, 2032:

s Locatien of Gakn Reclasaified frons Heclaasified From
Revogiord In oo el oo whinee SR gy i a5
Accumudated OC1 Imta Inromme Intn Income
1 Eallirs in Mdillioma Jarmiary ¥, 200 January 2. N2 January 1, 2024 Januzary 2, N2
et 5 197 T Intenest (incme ) expense — —
Cross Currency ingerest rabe
wwaps 766 S4B Inberest (Income) expense - -_—

The Company holds equity Invesimerts with readily deierminable fair values and equeity investmeenis withous readily deierminable fair valwes, The
Company measures equity investments that do niod have readily deserminghle falr values at cost minus impairment, iF any, plus or mimes changes resulling
Trom ahwservahle price changes, in onderdy tramsactions for the identicall or 2 similar investment of the same ksuer,

The falbvwing abde |5 o summary of the activity related 1o equily invesiments fior thie Gscal years enced Jamary 1, 2028 anal Ranary 2, 20

Ranuary 2, M2 Lanmary 1, 20271
Charges in Falr Vo
Eellecied in Mot Sales Mon Curvent Ciber
{sllars i Millivas Carrying Value Income M Furc hasew/ Cither' ! Carrying Value Asseis
Equity Investmonts with readily
determinable value 5 1,864 (538) (770} 576 57
Equity Investiments without readily
determinable value £ S ai 17 Rl =l
Tanuary 3, 201 January & 0z
Lh i Falr Ve
Riellected in Mot Salew Man Current Other
[Daller o Milliows) Carrying Valup Incems ' PuschusesA hep Carmying Value Assrt
Eapuity Invesimants with readily
ceterminuble value 3 1,411 196 205 1,184 1,884
Equity Investments without readily
determinable value 5 T4 and (532D 1] 500

" Becomded In Chber Imnoume ¥ xpense
I Coiher includes Impact of cumency

i
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Firr thse liscal yeors cidod January 1, 2028 anc Janvary 2, 2022 for eyuity Investments without realily determinable market valoes, $51 million sl S28
million, respectlvely, of the chamges In falr value reflecied In ned income were the resubi of Impalmmonis, Thene were of fsetting Impacis of $142 millien and
422 million, respectively, ol charges in the fair valie reflected in net income due io chamges In observahble prices and galns on the disposal of investments,
The npact in fiscal year 20028, was driven by the gain on disposal of the Grail investment. In Hscal vear 20062, the Company sold all of s egquigy
limvestmenis in angenx SE for proceeds of S0.8 billion.

Fair value is tlse exil price that would be received 1o sell sn asset o paid (o ransfer o liability, Fair value is o marketl-hised moasarement determined using
assumptioes that marked participants would wee i peicing an assetor lahiing, In accondasce with A%C B20, a three-level hierarchy (o prioritiee the inpus
used in measuring fair valoe, The levels within the hicrarchy are described below with Lesel 1 having the highest priority and Level 3 having the lowest,

The Labr value of o dedvadve lnanclal istroment (e, [arward forelgn exchamge comriocts, ingerest rile comracis s ihe Jmﬂ.ﬁdlluuh}'wm‘y wl all
luture cash Naws discounted to its present valoe at the prevailing market interest rates and subsequiently converted Lo the 128, Dsllar 51 the current spot
Toreign exchange e, The Company docs not believe thar Tair values of these dedvative insmaments materially differ from e amounts that could be
realized upon settlement or maturity, or thist the changes in falr value will have a material effeol on the Company s resulis of operations, cash Nows or
lnancial posbilon, The Company also bolds sqalty Imvesdments which are clasiiled as Level 1and IJH'I securiiies which are clissiled as Level 2. The
Company holbds soqaisition relaved contingend Habilities hased upon certain regulatory and o lal events, which are classilied s Level 3, whise
valies are dewermined wing discourted cash flow mothodologies or similar u.-rhmw: lor swhich the deverminstion of Tair value requires signilican
Judgmen or estimations,

The folbowing theee leviels of Inpus are used i measurne falr vk

Level 1 — Cuated prices in active markets for Idenibcal assets and liabilithes.
lewel 2~ Signilican oiber shwervable inputs.

Level 1 — Signilicam unohservahle inguts.
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The Company s signilicant lineocial sssets oo liabilities measunad al feir valoe o of the liscal year emled Joswary 1, 2023 amd Janvary 2, 2022 were o

Tillaws:
2022 2021
(Mallars i Millioms) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Tostal /'
Derivatives designated as hedging instrisments:
Asspisr
Frwanl Toreign exchange coniricts £ — 24 i 5l
Interest mbe coalraces — Lakd Lok v i
Tustal i — 2,163 Za.g 1336
Liahilities:
Forwanl foreign exchange contracts — 51 5n el
Interest mile conlracts 4 _ 27T — Il'.‘-"J'H b e
Total 3 — 3,289 3289 1,860
Derivatives not desig A as hedging instr
Asseis:
Frrward foreign exchange coniracts. 3 - m * 24
Llahilinies:
Frerwaml farvigin e xchange contracts -— BH il 20
Avallable For Sale Other Invesimenis:
Equily nvestents™ 576 — 576 I, IE84
Dehit secisres® — 10,8487 10487 19,727
Other Liabilities
Contingent Consideraion'™ £ ] 1,120 53
Ciroes o Mot Derivative Hoooncilistion My 021
{Ensllars in Adiflions§
Tkl Giross Assiets 5 2201 1,360
Crodit Support Agrecment [CSA) [2.176) (1,205
‘Total Mot Asset 25 75
Total Gmas Lishililes TA57 1 A
Credin Sappon Agrecment (C5A) {3021) { 1.155)
‘Total Mot Lishilities 5 A3 0
Summarized information about changies in labilities for contingent considerston 5 as Gullows:
2022 ozl a2
[Dollars in Millioes )
ESeginning Falanae ] kK] LY LTS
Cliaiiges in estimated Lair vahie ™ {154) (52} (1089
At ™ 792 — e
Paymenis (1) (48} (EE)
Entling Balance 5 1,120 311 HiEl

2021 assets and Nabilities are all clissified as Level & with the cxoeption of equity investmends of $1,0883 million, which are classilied as Level | and

cuntipgend consideration of $533 millhen, chssifod o Level 3
W@ Includes eross currency inlerest rate swaps and Enferest rale swaps.
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Classilied s pisi-curnemi utler asses,

ClassHied & cash equivalents and curnent marketable securites.

Includes $1, 1156 million, 8558 million and £55%4 milkion, dassified & non-curmeni other lahilities o of .I-I.I1.I1I.ﬂf,' 1, 20204, January 2, 2022 arul l:mu.lnr:r 1,
HEEL, respectively. Inclucles 34 million, 513 million amd 589 milkion classilied as corment liabilities as ol Jenuary 1, 2K, Josmary 2, 2022 andl

Janisary 3, B021, pespectively,

Ongning fakr value sdjustment amounis are recomded primarily in Rescorch and Development exponse, The Company reconded o contingent
cunsiderstion roversal of 51,148 million in 2000 related g0 the timing of cerain developmeaial milestones wssockated with thie Aurls Healih acquisition.
The reversal of ihe contingent consideration was recorded in Ogher irncome and expense.

In Biscal yeas 2022, the Compary reconbed $704 million of contlngest consideration related 1o Abjomed.

S Motes 2 anl 7 for [nancial asets and lablities held on carrying amoust on the Corsalidated Halance Sheet
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7. Berrowings
The crmmnmuuﬂmg—lwm diche are as Follows:
Effective Rate Effective Rate
(Thallars b Millines) 2022 % 2021 i
(LT Motes due 2000 (11 Eom 1,1311)"
5 — - F 113) ™ s %
L25%: Notes due 2022 —_ —_ 1NN 23
6.7 ¥ Debemures due 20275 250 | 250 G.7H
TSN Motes due 2021 il 17 IR Xln
205% Nobes due 2023 500 208 A5 X
(UAGAFN Motes due 2024
{TS0MM Euo 10651 P TH0MM Furn 1,031 50 752 @ 168 47 ™ X
S50 N it 2024
(O0MM 1LHERT GRP LM GRP 134857 600 = RIS 672 ™ w7a
20255 Motes die HI25 Ta4 nt Tl IRy
(L55%: Mobes dwe 2005 918 057 48t 057
LA45% Notes due 2026 1 45 247 1,545 LA7
LE05% Mubes due 2027 HT? L1596 ki | FL -
L95%: Notes duse 2027 1.194 .96 147 [R5
L5 Noles due BIEE (750MM Edro L0651 Y5 7500M Euwn
L3y : s e 14 Tk 121
LM Mobes due 2028 A9 291 1495 91
£ 90% Notes clue 2029 298 .14 291 T4
1.30r% Mobes duse 2000 1607 1.30 1,713 130
24.95%, Debemures. due 20013 400 4095 491 4595
AA75% Motes duer 2003 154 4 RS54 424
L 50% Motes due 2035 (158 Eure 1LOGSTFO1SH Furo 1.1311) T = ey e
B55% Nobes due 2096 a2 .58 474 158
S95% Mobis dwe 2037 LK 59 1 ik
AhHE5% Noles due 2057 148 A 1475 A4
S5 Dolemures due 2008 687 585 (i} it i
AN Motes due 2050 a2 L4 qa2 24z
4.50% Debentures due 2040 540 463 San dhd
210% Notes duse 2040 nxa 214 974 214
4 5% Mobiss clue 2041 97 489 i 4.
4.50% Notes due 2047 496 452 454 452
LTI Notes due 2046 15976 a4 1975 T4
375 Mobes dwe 2047 nez TG 471 TG
5009 Motes due 2048 43 a5 T4 a5z
2.2 Moles due 2050 g 229 483 2.4
LAS Motes due 20640 1.055 249 1222 245
Clther E —_ i —
Subtatal IR.439 W YT I2016 2R % W
I currend partion 1,551 AR
Total loag-term debi § 26888 5 29,985
T Weiphted average eifective rae.
@ rranslacion rate ot Jamuary 1, 2023,
A Translation mbe at Jasuary 2, 2022,
o
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Thee excess of e carrying value over e fair valae of debi wis $ 16 Willion o thee el of Tscal year 20022 and the exoess of ihe fair vabie over the
carrylng walwe of deba was $3.2 hillion at the el of fkscal year 2021,

Falr valuee ol the long-term dehi was estimated using market prices, which were cormobarated by quoted hroker prices and significant siher observahie
impeais,

The Company has scoess 1o substantial saurces of funds ai numerous banks worldwlde, In Sepember 2022, the Campany secunei o new Wed-day
Crodit Facility of $10 billion, which explres on Seplember 7, 2023, In November 2022, ihe Company secured an addid onal 364-day Credil Facilisy of
$10 hillliom, which explees on November 21, 2023, Inieresi chared on bomowings under the oredit line agreement is based on eliher the Term SOFR
Relerence Hate o otlver applicable market rabes as allowed urder the terms of the agreement, plus applicable mangins, Consmimeent fees uider the
agredments afe nok maberial,

Throughsut (iscal years 202 and 2021, the Company contined fo have access to lguidity threugh the commerchal paper maskel. Short-term
Bearrowings anad the current portion of bomg-term debt smounted v approximeiely SE20 billion and 538 bllion s she ond of Tiscal years 2002 and 2021,
respectively, The carrent portion ol the bomg term debt was 51,6 hillion and S2.1 hillion in 2042 and 2021, respectively, and the remainder 5 commencial
paper amd local borrowing by Inlemational suhsidiaries,

The current debt halance @ of January 1, 2021 includes $11.2 hillion of commercial paper which has a welghted average inlerest rate of 4.277% and a
welghled average maturity ol approxi |y twan L

Ayggrepate maturities of long-lerm debt ohligation commencing in 223 are:

(Dballaars o Millimns]
2033 934 pLES] 2026 2037 After 2036
81,551 1,302 1,667 1,595 2971 19,562
B Income Taxes
The provision lor xes on income comrsius of;
{Thallars an Millisns) Tor: Foril 2020
Currently payahle:
U5, mxes £ L3 1525 14136
Intermnational taxes 3,065 2,452 1850
Toaal curremly payable G447 1,977 20924
Dreferred:
L5, axes (2081} LATa {76}
Intertational taxes 4 {2, 662) {1,045}
Tidal deferred {1,653} {2,079) [1,141)
Prevision lor taxes on income 5 3,784 1,898 1,783

il
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A comparison of income tax expense i the LS statulory rate of 21% in fiscal years 2002, 3021 and 2020, © the Company's el lective Lax rate s o

[Palars in MilEns) 2022 2031 pLr]

TE 3 =0 w110 FETF]
Imernatknmal 16,556 16,66 12,185
Farmings belore taxes an income g .75 1276 16,4497
e = — N — ]

LS, statwtory rate 3.0% a0 .o
Imternational aperations (4.5) [16.4) 99
Consumer healib separatlon 2.2 —_— —_
L5, mxes on ipternational ineom: ™ {19 6.7 L7
Tax benelits from b on capital assels — {1.3) (1.2)
Tax henefits on share-based compensation (1.3) (1.0} (1.5)
Al oher 14 0.7 01y
Eifective Rate 17.4 % A 1.8

Tellowen:

W Earall pﬁlml: ru'm'nbu,l ihe f'.iu'np.'ln].- hews suibshillarics opesiing In Puenio Rlco mnder varios tax iscentives. Internailsnal apera b relloi ihae Impanli
of operations in jorisdiclions with statwony tax rajes diflerent than the LS, paboulasly Irelamd, Switrerland and Puerio Hicn, which is a lavorabde
mpact om the elfective lax rte & compared with the LS. statutory rate. The 2021 amoants include the reorganization o ntemational sabsidiaries; the
) amaunts include the impact of the new wx legislation enacoment in Switeerland, both of which are further described below.

1 e sl the impact of ahe GIETT sax, the Farelgn-Derived Intangibde Income dedection and oiher foreign income than §s taxahle undir the LS, tax code,
The 222 amount inclodes the impact of oemtain provisions of the JO17 TCIA that hecame effective in fiscal 2022 The 2001 amounis inchnde the
rewmgrandzathon ol inermat sl subsidiories; tbe 2020 amonis Il gl dmpasct ol e pew tax JEgIsLJIJLm enaciment in Switeerhand, both of which
are further describoed below,

M Certain prior year amomints have been neclssilied s conlorm b curment yoear presentalion.

The fiscal year 2028 elfoctive tax mie increased 5, 1% as compared 1o the fscal yeas 2021 effective wy e, As part of the planned separation of the

Compamy s Consumer Health business, the Company has recogiized approximately $0.5 hillion in net incremental wx oosis in lscal yesr 2022, which
Increassd the 2022 effective iy rbe by approximately 2.2%,

Additionally, the Company recorded certain mor-necurring lavershle wx ilems in fiscal yeor 2021 which resalved in an undavorable impescn w the
Comgpany s lscal 2022 efleclive ax rae when compared 10 Uhe prior fiscal year, These llems are described below, The Company ‘s 2022 0% rale alsa
trenefised irom certaln provisions of the Tax Culs and Jobs Aol of 2007 that becane ellective in lscal 2022, ibe impaimment of bermekimab for AT and HS
IFR& I { bor furiber infommation see Moge 5 of the 2022 K Consnlidated Financlal Stalrmentsh and changes in the (air valoe of scceritles i the
Loy s investment ponfolie, both mecosded & the U5, stawlary rie,

The flscal year 2021 tax rate decreased by 2.5% companed o the Tiscal vear 2020 tax rate, which was primarily driven by ibe following bems, 1o fiscal year
2021, the Company reorganized the ownership siructune of centain whaolly-ewned international subsidiaies. As pan of this reorganization, the Company
Increased the tax basis of cemain assets w [alr value in sccondanoe wilth applicable bocal regulations. The net impact of this resrecuring was approximaely
20,5 hillion net bemelit or 2.7% benelit 1o the Company's anmual effective tax rase, comprised of the following tems:

= approximately 5273 hillion of lecal defermd tax assets 1o recond the remeasuremient of the tax basis of these asets 1o Fair valuoe, ihis beneli has
been rellecied as “Internstional Dperations™ on (he Companys effective iy rale reconcilation,

+ approsimately 517 hillion of L5 defemal iax eapense relaiiing o die GIETT defernad s liabiliyy resaliing fmom die remeasusenient of (e
deferred tax assois. This expense has been reflected as “ULS, wx on Iniemational Income® on the Company s effective tax mie reconclliatbon.

Ao, in b fiscal Tounh quarier of H121, the Company recogni sed a loss on ceraln LS affllines relad ioibe previomsly impainsd book valae of cenain
Intengiles, which reduced b 2021 sy e by approximetely 1.3 which is mellecwd as o =Tax benefits [rom loss on capiial asseis™ on the ellecive
rale pecomsciliation. Additionally other fiscal 2021 impacts o the rate wene primarly driven by lidgation end scquisition related fems as follows:
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+ e Conppany accmied addivioal legal expeises, of approaimsely 516 billkon for b o an elfecive tax e of 22.5% and S08 billiom fog
Rispendal Gynecomastia sciilements at an ofective tax rate of 16.4% (See Note 19 40 the Comsal idated Financlal Ststements For more deiakls),

+  the Company recorded a partial IPR&D charge of $0.9 billion for the Ouava Inangible asset (aogquired with the Auris Health aoquisition in 2015)
af an ol Tective rabe of 22 4%,

In Fiscal year 2002, Swiseerland enacted the Federal Act on Tax Reform and ANY Financing (THAF) and became eflealve for fiscal year 20240 The
Federal transitional provishors of TRAF allow companies, under certaln comlitions, 1o adjust the ax bais in cortain assets i falr value (Le., “step-up™] o
bee depreciabed and amortized resulting i an incremenial Swiss tax deduoction over the transitional peried.

TRAF alsa provides Tor parameters which enable the Swiss cantors us establish bcalieed (ax rawes and regulations for companies. The new cansosal tax
parameters include favorahble tax benefits for patents and additional reseanch amd development tax dedwciions. The cantonall iramsitbonal provisions of THAF
allowed companies @ clect elther 1) ey hasds stepeup similar toibe Federal tamsdtion benefit or Z) aleernasive stalubory’ lax rate for a perbod not go cxceed &
e, 'l'lul"mmpm}' has sperations located in various Swiss canlons.

Iharing i fiscal year 2000, ibe (inal canton whiere the Compasy maintales signilicant operatioes enactid THAF bepiskation. Additianally, the Company
received ruligs from the Swiss Federal aml cantomal tax sutborities in the remaining jurisdictions where it has significant operations. These mblings
resaulted i the Company revising s estimade on tbe lax hasis adjustment (e, “step=up”) for it asets and as a reale, the Company recorded ackdstional
delerrod Lax benefits in 20200 The Company recogidecd a vt benefit B the fiscal year 2020 lor Swiss Tix Relorm of approximately $004 billion or 26%
beetwelin b the Ccimpany's aneial eifective s rte, comprised of the Tolbowing iens:

= approximastcly S0 billion 1ax benefit relating 16 the remeasurement af Swis deferred lox assets and labilities Tor ibe change inibe Federal aml
caniaml bk rates, whene ensctment ocourmed in the Gscal year 2020, this benefil has been reflected & =Inematbonal Operations” on the
Company s ellective tax rate reconciliation.

+  a 8450 million defemred tax asset relaced o the estimated value of a Federal tax basis step-ap of the Company's Swiss subsidiaries® sssits s
described aharve; this benefit has heen reflectod as “Iniemational Operations™ on the Company's effective tax rate reconciliathon,

= approximtely 03 billoo of LS defermed o capense relating o the GIETT deferned o 1iabiliny nsuliing fom the remgssurement of the Swiss
deberred tax mssets and liabilities in the (seal yesr 2000, This benefit has been rellected s *ULS, lax on intemalional income™ on the Company's
effective tax rabe reconcillatien,

The Company does not expect o reocive Tutune mibings regarding the transitionasl provisions of TRAF,

Alsa, in the fiscal year 2000, the Company recognized a capital loss an centain LS, affiliaies related 1o the previowshy impaleed hook value of cenain
Intengibdes, which redaced the 2020 iy rate by approximetely 1.2% which is rellecied & o =Tax benefits [mm loss on capital asseis™ on the ellective L
rate reconstciliation. In addithem, in te Ascal year 2020, the Company ud kewer income in higher oo jurisdictions, primarily drives by:

= the impact of the sccrual of |i|.|:,|,.:l]|:|1 cosds e labed o tabe for $4.0 billion which reduced the 1S, camings belone tanes at an elfective tax mie of
TSN

+  the accrual of addnional legal costs, inscluding an additional £ 00 billlon assoclaved with a revised agreement i principle 1o sele oplobd ligation
an an effecthve tax rate of 21.4%

The Company also reduced ibe contingent consideration liabiliny related 1o ibe Auris Health acquisivion in 2009 sl reversed some of iis unrecognized tax
benefies dise 1o the completin of several years of tax examinations in certain jurisdictions. during the Tscal year 2020,
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Nemporary diflerences snd carylorwands at the end of (kscal years 2022 and 2021 were as lolbws:

2022 Deferred Tax 2021 Deferved Tax'!
(TFallars i Ml At Liability Asitl Liabality
Employes related shilgalon 5 755 1244
Stk bised compermation (i (]
Mepreclation of propeny, plant and cqulpment (15) (A7)
Copewill ansl intangibles (4271) ™ (2,859) @
RED capitalized for tax 2611 1664
Heserves & liabilities 2,761 2082
Income reporied for lax purposes 2,045 2,566
Met realtzable opesaring liss camy forwank™! 1,260 1720
Lindtseributed forelgn camings 1,545 (1,4653) L5 (1.460)
Glohal iviangible low-taxed Income {547 (4.853)
Mizcelaneous international 1,053 155) T {19)
Misorlancos LS, 4Th LI5)
Tatal deferred income taxes 5 13,163 {10,434) 12,640 (9,904}

" Cerraln petos year amounis have been reclassified o conform (o curremt year presentation.

9 Aamownt |s inchusive of the 223 billion deferred tax asset established s part of the reamganized ownership structure of certain wholly-swned iniemational
sathldliarivs, as previous|y described.

M Al is Inelusive of the $11 billion defered tax lishility due 1o the scguisition al Abiomed.

e of valustion allvwances of 509 hillion Gy both 2022 amd 2021,

The Company has wholly-owned interestional subsbdisries that have comulative met losses, The Company believes that itis more likely than ned that these
subsidiaries will generaie latare taxable income safficient to wilize these deferred 1ax asseis, Hweyver, in certain juisdictions, valuation allowanges have
heen reconded against deferred tax asseis for Inss carmylnrwands that are ool more I]ktﬂy ikan il e b eealized,

The folbowing whle summarizes the activiey relaed w unrecognized @y benefis:

(Whallaars o Ml 022 2028 1030
Theginning of year 5 338 3373 3,853
Encreases relaied to curment year lax |1|mllir|l'n. 51 247 05
Increases related] to prior period i positians 143 23 FhRA
Decreases relatesd b priar perice Lix pesitions (14H) (12} (551}
Settlements (i} {187} {Ha)
Lagrses of statute of limiaibom {11} —_— [23)
Enil of year % daxm e

The anrecognized 1ox bencfits of S0 billion at January 1, 2023, il recognized, would sllec the Company’s anual effective tax rate. The Company
comilucts business and fles ax rebarms inomememous countries amd carrently has tax andiis in progress with a nomber of G asborities, With respect e the
Unitied Stabes, the TS haes completed its audin for the tax yeas thirough 2002 and is correnily suditing tax years 2013 through 2006, Tn the Tscal year 2020,
the Comgpany made its final payments for approximately $0.7 billion 1o the LLS, Tressury related o the final senlement of 2000-2012 vax audin liahiliey,

T withier ettarjoor jurisalictions wiwne tdoe Compan u.lldl.l.L'i Imsittes, the years that remain open o Las audlh Bkt b year 2006, The Company
helleves |t is possthle that snme 1 anellis may b completed over ihe pese twelve months m:lng Mlll‘llbdt s {m s fursdicrions, ln:[wll.:_\hg in ihe
United Swies. Howeser, the Company ks st able to provide a neasonably reliable sstimate of the timing of any other future wx paymess or chiange in
uncertain fax positions, If any,

The Company classilies liabilithes for unrecognized tax benelis and relaved interest and penaliies as long-term [Rabilities. Interest expense and penaliies
related to unrecognioed tax benelits ane dlassilicd as income tax expense, The Company recognized afier tax inerest expense of 3159 millson, $44 million

anad $32 million in Mscal years 2002, 20210 and 2000, respectively. The total amoum of aconeed interest was 5651 million and 5512 million in fiscal years
222 arwl F21, respectively,

e
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9. Enployes Relatemd Obligations
A the end of fiscald 2022 apil fiscal 2021, employee relaved obligations reconbed on the Cossalidaied Balande Shevts were:

[Mhallars in Millinns) 2022 plri ]

Pemsion bemelits 5 24,508 4,048
TPusiretirement bemelile 1714 3,069
Postemployment berselis 2832 ansT
Dieferred com pensation 1061 11
Total emplayee obligations 764 9,455
Liss curnent henefits payable a7 55T
Emplayee related obllgations — nan-curment 5 6,767 #8098

F‘n:]u.il] emplloyvee relatedl ohiligativons o $4.5681 million and $4, 406 millbon for 2022 and 2021, espectively, ame included i Other assets on the
Comsolihsted Balanoe Sheets

10, Pensions and Other Benelin Plans

The Company sponsoss variois relirensent and pension plams, including defined benefin, defined contribiation and emintion indemnity plass, which eover
sl e boyoes worldwide, The Company alse provides post-retiement benelits, primanly bealthcare, usall eligible 105, retined employees and their
iependents.

Many international employecs are coversd by government-spa d pmigg anid the cost to the Company s not significant.

T the VLS, noneainion pension benedits for emplovees hined belore Tanoary 1, 2005 are primarily bosed onibe employes's compensation duaring tbe Last e
years belore retirement and the number of years of service (the Final Average Pay Tormula]. 1.5 persbon benefit lor employees hired afier 2004, are
calevilated using a different loimula bsed on employee compensation over tolal years of service (the Retinement Valiee formila).

It Jamuary 2021, the Company ansounced thal, elfeciive on January 1, 2026, all eligible ULS, nan-union employoees,

reganedliss of hire date. will eam benefies under the Retinoment Value formula, This amenidment does noe affeon the benelis

acerved under the Final Average Pay formula for service before Jamary 1, 2026,

Intemational subsidiarics have |1Iuru. umidler which funds mik'pm.il.td with trusices, annultics are purchased under group contracts, or reserves are provided.
The Comparsy dues nat fund netinee healihcane bemefits in advance aml has the right oo madify these plans intbe e

I 20007 anel 3031 the Campany et Diecember 10, W32 aml December 40, '.‘ﬂ'.!!.mpmlvrly.mlhr mieaasremsent date for all U8, amd internation)
retirement and ather benelis plans.

et perlmlic bemelltcosts for the Company s defined benelil relirement plans and other benclie plans for 2022, 2021 and 2020 inchude the following
COMUNENL

Retiremeni Plans Ouher Benelit Plans

{Thailars b Millioms] 2023 021 2020 P o2l 2020
Service cost 3 137 1,421 1,380 am 309 28T
Interest cost 911 770 55 105 m 11k
Expected retumn on plan assets (2.757) [2h45) (2.461) #) k] 7}
Amortieation of pebor service oot {164) {181) 2 {5 {%1) (31
Hecognizod aciarial losses (galns) h55 1257 Erfl 1 151 142
Custallments and senlemenis 1 1 3 — —_ —
Net periodic hemefit cost credit) [ SR ) THR -~ TN T - [ T Y
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The service cost companent of net perfodic benefil cost bs presented in the same line items on the Consolidsted Suement of Eamings where otber
employee compensation costs ane reponed, including Cest of pmducts sald, Research and development experse, and Sclling, marketing and administrative
eapenses, Al other components of net peviedic herefit oost ane presented as pan of (eher {income) expense, net o the Consolidated Staiement of
Eamings,

Unrecognized galns and losses for the L5, peaston plans ane amaontized over ihe average remalning futune service for each plan. For plars with no active
employees, they are amoetized over the average lile expectancy. The amaornizeation of gains and bosses [or the other 1.5, bepefit plans is determined by osing
a V0% cosrldar of the greater of the markel value of s of the oo laked o I hemelt obligation. Towl unamoriieed galns and losses In
eacess of the cortidor are amistized over the average remalning Iuine sorvice,

Priar servboe costsbenedits for tbe U5, penslon plans ane amarized over the aversge romaining foure service of plan pantidpanis at the dme af the plan
amendment, Prioe service cost/benefit Tor the otber ULS, benefil plans is amosiized over the average remaining servioe to full eligibility age of plan
participanis al the tme of the plan amendmient.

The following table rep it the weighied-average actmarial assumptions:

Retirement Plans Other Benelit Plans
‘Worldwide Benelit PFlans 2022 2021 2020 2022 2021 020
Nt Periodic Benefit Cost
Service oost discoum rate 246 % 214 2 254 g g
Interest cust ilkscoum rate .80 % 234 213 L4 L3 208
Raie of increase in compensation levefs 4,02 5% 41 4,00 4.1 .75 4715
Expecied Inng-term rate of retum on plan assets. 715 % i | A2
Benelit (iligation
[scaunl raie 5.01 % Lag 114 Sl L.eH 1.
Fate nf increase In compersation levels A% 4in 4.1 4n 421 417

The Company s discoant rates are determined by consldering current ylebd carves represending high quality, long-term lixed income Imstruments, The
resulting discount rates. ane consbstent with the duration of plan labilities. The Company's methadology in delermining service and inlerest cost uses
thirathin specilic spol rates along that vield corvee to the plans Hakility cash Nows,

The expecued raees of retum o plan asset assumpians neprosest the Company™ assessment of long-ierm nenems on diversified Invesiment poetiolios
glehally, The assessment s determined using projecibons from exiernal financlal saurces, lomg-term hisaorical averages, aoal retumes by assel class amd the
varinge el class allocatlons by marceL

The folkvwing tabde displays the assumed bealthcane cost rend rates, for all individuals:

Healtheare Plans 2022 2021
Healthcare coal irenid rate assimed for nexd yeir naq N, RAT W,
Hate 1o which the cost rend e is sssumed 1o decline (aldmatbe imend) FEI R LTE W
ear the rale mosches the uliimate trend rate 2047 2046
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The inlbowing tabde sets farth inlormaiins relaed i the benedl obligaion amd the (aie valoe of |1hn ansets @ fiscal :.ra-rml 2022 and N fow 1w
Coompany s delined benedit retinement plans and other posd-retirement plans:

Retirement Flans Ciher Benelit Flans
Akalliars i Miltinms) 2022 2021 o 2021
Change in Benefit Obligation
Projecied henefin chiigatiom — beginning of year ] 41,582 A3, WH0 4,470 S028
Service cosl 1,327 1421 6. a0
Interest cost atl T 105 Al
Plan panticipent contribution [l [l — —
Amenilmenis 7 5 - am
Acniarial (galns) losses! {12,213) (2052 {70} {18y
IMivestitomrs & anquisitions _ 2] - —
Curtallments, setilemenis % restrucuring 7 in — —
Frenedits paid fromm plan 11,228) {1.157) LR [a0Ep
Eilleer of exchange nales (B15] {6E) 19} (4}
Projecied henefit chligation = e of year 5 29,631 41,582 4,197 A H87H
Change in Plan Asses
Plam assets an falr value — heginning of year 5 41,530 34,195 o2 al
Actual return {loss) on plan assets. {H,565) 4,479 {17} 17
Camnpany contrbutions L s Jah i
Plan panticipant contributions. 6T 67 -— -
Seulemeris (5] (k] — —
Mivistitures B acquisitions — {2 - -
Eenedits pakd from plan assets {1,.028) 11157 [k5) (K1)
Effect of exchange rales [E55] {574) — —
Pl # st AL e Vet — il 0 Y tEm =ﬂ£§. =¥ﬁ 102
Fumihed sauiais — end ol year § 1,863 148 [4.119) [4.776)
Amounis Recognized in the Company's Balance Sheet consist
ol thee Tollowimg:
THOn-cament assets 5 4581 4406 [ —
Cusvent lishilities {(132) (15 (461} {43
Mon-current Habilities {2,5085) 28713 [LGSH) [, K08}
Total recogmized in e corslidated balunce sheet — end of year 5 1,883 Ha (4:119) (4,776)
Amounts i Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income mw Tollawing:
Pt acinarial b L1 1,940 ] %9 LI
Prior service cost fenedin) ' {1417) {1,510 7 (13)
Unmecmgnioed med transition ohligation = = -— =
"Tokal hefore ax cffens 5 g 3829 22 ’g,
Accumulated Benefit Ohligations — end of year 5 2B,02% 33,049

e aciniarial gain for retiresmnen) plans In 2022 and 2021 was peimarily relaved b increases 1n idiscount raes.

&7
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R PMans Other Benelit Plans
ATkllars i Millinee) ez 021 02 2021
Amounts Recognized in Met Periodic Benefit Cost and Other
Comprehensive Income
Met periodic hemefit cost {omlic) 3 {47 621 533 503
Mt attnarial [gain) loss (793} {3,927) (751} (199%)
Amortieathon of net actuarial loss (655) (1. 257) (121) (150
Prior service cosl lr.n'dll] 7 5 — -
Amortieatbon of pebor service (cost) crodit 163 181 5 £l
Eilfect ol exchange raies e [1E] (1 —
‘Total loss{Income) recognized in other comprehensive Income,
before tax s {1,398) {5.134) ] (319)
Tatal recogmized in met perodic benefil cost and siber
comprehensive income ] {1,445} (4.510) (335) 184

The Company plars 1o cominue o fund s U5 Cualilied Plans o comply sith e Penshon Protection Aol ol 2006, Intermational Plass are (usdal in
accordance with local regulations. Adiienal discretionary comtributions are made when deemed appropriate b meet the long-term ohligations of the plam
For certakn plans, fumding is mot a commeaon practice, as funding provides no coonomic benefi. Comeguemtly, the Company has several pension plans ihat
ane mob fumided.

I 2022, thee Company contribused S 119 milllon and $151 million 6o it U5, and internasions] peision plans, respectively.

The folbowing table displays the funded status of the Compeny’s LS, Qualilbed 8 MNon-Ouialilied pension plass and | iomal Tunded and unfunded
petsdion plans ot December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively:

LA, Plams Inviernatiomal Plany
Cualifbed Mans Mati-Clualidied Plans Funniied Plais Unbuisded Plans

Alkallars m Willinde) e pi | 2022 il 2o Har 2022 picd |
Flan Assets ¥ 20937 FEATC S — - 10,577 13,56 — —_
Projecied Benclit Oblkgation 18,354 25,041 1,537 2.0 k4 13420 P 4100
Accumilated Benelit Ohligation 17,656 1,985 1,872 2479 202 12212 53 a7
Over (Under) Funded Stats

Profected Benelit Obligatian 5 2,543 20 {1,937) (4,70 1,552 S5 (276} (410
Accumibated Benelit Obligation 3,241 1,959 (1A72) (2ATHY 2,175 1,774 (253) {371)

Plans with accumalased henelit ohligations in exoess of plan assets have an accamulated benefit obigatbon, projected benelit obligation and plan asseis
of 2.9 hilllum, 2.9 billion amd 3003 billion, respectively, ot the end of 2002, and 339 billbon, 34,2 billion and $0.3 bliow, respectively, ab the eod of 2021,

The folbwing table displays ihe projected Future benefil paymenis from the Company s reticement and other benelit plans:

iMhslliars b Milibessn) 0% T4 2005 025 2007 20282032
Projected future benefin paymients

Hetirement plars § 1445 1457 1532 1 i 1,704 10,0024
Cither benefit plans 5 471 485 41 447 462 257

The folbsing wble displays the projpecial Tuture minimum contributions w the unlumsded redrement plans, Thesc amoums do pol inclede say discredonary
coniribations tha the Company may elect io make inihe futiene,

{Whalliars  Millicsn) ploral 24 025 MG 2007 2O20-2082
Prejected future comtributions 5 123 13 136 141 sy Hi&
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Eah pension plan b overscen by a local commitiee or bodrd iat is responsible for die overall adminisiration and invesument of e peision plans. In
determining Invesimend pollckes, straiegles and goals, each commiliice or board coasbders Factors including, local pessbon rules and regulations; local tax
reggalations; avablahility of investment vehlches (separate accounts, commingled accounts, Insurance funds, ete §; Tunded statis of the plams; mtio of actives
I retirees; duration of Habilities; and other pelevan Gectors includiog: diversilication, liguidity of local markets amd Siquidity of bate cummency. A majority
ul the Company™s pension lunds are open w new entrants and ane cxpected w be on-going plans, Fermitoed invesoiments ane primsarly Gguid andfor liseed,
with lnke reliance on illigald and pon-troditonal investments such as hedge funds,

The Company ‘s petlrement plan asset allocathon @ the end of 20052 and 2010 and target allocations foe 2008 are as follows:

mn-:;. Allacation
oy 2021 ary
Warldwide Retirensent Plans
Exquiny seduriiles il Ny 65 % 51
et secumities AR 15 i
Total plan assets 100 4% i %% 180 %

Determination of Fair Vialue of Plan Assets
The Plan has an established and well-documenied process Tor determining fale values. Fale value s hased apon quated market prloes, whene avallable, 17
listed prices or guodes are not avaklable, fair valoe bs based upon modiels that primandy use, as inputs, market-hased or (ndependently sourced market
praranesers, incluling yielkl carves, bt rtes, volatiliie, sy or Gebt prices, e eschange robes amd il curves,

‘Whilc the Plan helieves its valustion methods are appropriate and consisient with other markel participants, the wse of dillerent methodologies o
assumpioas o determine the fabr value of cenain financial instrimessts could eesult in adifferent esdmace of Tair value aothe reporting dae,

Waluation Hierarchy
Thit autharitative lierature establishes 3 three-level hierarchy o priceitize the inputs weed In measuring fair value, The levels within the hierarchy are
describend in e tahle below with Level 1| having vhe highest priociy and Level 2 having the lowesa.
The Nel Assel Value (NAV) is based on the value of the undedying assets owrred by the fund, minus its lisbilites, and then divided by the mmbser of shares
oaitstanding,

A Tinancial instment s categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon ibe lowest level of inpat ithat bs skgnilicant 1o the Gir value
mCasurement.

Follawing i a description of the valuation methodologies used for the investments measwed at fair value,

*  Sharr-derm imvestimint fumds — Cash and quosted shit-lerm instruments are valued at the closing price or the amount held on deposit by the
custidian ank. Oeher invesiments are (heoagh iesomsent vehiches valoed using the NAY provided by the sdminiseratoe of the fuml The NAY s a
guated price in @ market that is not ecive and dassilied as Level 2

= Cieweramaend and eapeod v securities — A limived nember ol these Investments ere valued at the closing price reporied on the major marke on
which the individual securities ane traded. Where quoted prices are availoble in an active market, the investments are classilied within Level 1 of
the valuation hierarchy. I quoted market prices are not available for the specific secusity, then Tair valees are estimabed by using pricing models,
quirted prices of secunities with similar characteristics or discosnted cash Nows, When gaoted market prices lor a securily ane not available inan
active marked, they are clasified & Level 2.

o Db fastruments — A limited e ol these | are valued at the chusing price repomed on the major market on which the individual
securities ane traded. Where guoted prices are available in an active markey the investmients are dlassilied as Level 1, 1 quoted market prices are
niod avallahle for the specilic security, then Falr values ane estimased by using pricing models, queobtid prices of securities with similar
characierbiics or discoumel cash (lows and ane classilied as Lesel 2, Level 3 debs instrumenis ane priced based on anohservable inpuis.

= Bauiry securitles — Equity seouritles are valoed at the closing price reporied on the major market on which the individual secoritkes are sraded,
Substamtially all equity securities ane classified wiithin Level 1 of the valuation hicrarchy.

o Comimlrgled fumds — These Invetment veliches are valued using the NAY provided by the Tlund adminisiratos. Assels in the Lovel 2 calegory
have a quoted markel price.
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= e msels — Oiler esseis ane pepresenied primarily by limieed parmeshigs. These investment vehicles are valued esing e NAY provided by
the Tund adminisirator, (aber assets that are exchange Hsied and sctively trded are classiliod as Level 1, while inactively raded sssets ane

classilieel as Level 2

The folbowing table wets forth the Retiremeni Plans’ investments measured at falr valoe as of Decembser 30, 3022 and Decembser 10, 20212
m;n:ad Prioes Significant

Artive Other w
Markets lor Cilmrrvalibe Ui aldr Tivvestrarits Mrasinrd
Idderitical Asiets. ligpiats Impars! ol el Assel Vale
{Lvel 1) [Lavel 2} {Level 3) Tatal Assris
(Thalliers o Millims) 20r2 Fea) 2022 2021 22 2021 2022 2021 022 2021
Shaori-term inveitmonl
Turuls. 5 n 12 13 1,033 — — — — dh 1,135
Giovernment and agency
securitles 5063 TR 5,061 T4
bl istruments -_ - ET 3,505 -_ - -_ - ABAL 1,505
Fruity securiiles fIRIETH 14,107 2 2 — — - — LR 14,149
Commingled funds — — 4362 Sah6 5h 105 B, 106 B.708 10,524 14308
Cither sssets - —_ A M 1 15 2,506 1807 2562 1,85
Invesiments at falr
walue 5 #8879 14,200 13,954 17,086 2] 120 B612 10,515 31,514 41,930
T — — — —— e—— Ie— I——  — — —

"V The activity for the Level 3 assets Is not dgnificant Tor all years prosenied.

The Company's Other Benelit Plans s unfunded except lor 1.5, commingled fusds (Level 2) of S78 milllon and $102 milllon a1 Decemnber 31, 2022 and

[ecember 31, 2021, respectively.
The Tair walue of Johnsaon S lohnson Comman Siock direcily beld in plan assets was $20 million (0.0% of wial plan asseis) at Decembser 31, 2002 sl

S35 milllon (0,5% of 1t plan asseis) at December 31, 2001

11, Savings Mlan

The Company has I'II]ImtJ.I"' 200k} savings plans deslgned 1o enhance the existing retinement programs covering cligibls t'mrlhq-m'lhl.' Clmmpany
matches a percentage of cach employee's contribitions consistent with the provisioes of the plan for which be/she b eligiblie. Total Company matching
conim butions (o the plans were $275 million, $256 milllon and S249 million o Nscal years 2022, M21 uad 2020, respectively.

m
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12. Capital and Treasury Stech
Chanpes in treasary siock were:

Treasury Sinck

{Amaunis in Mlllians Fyoepd Treasry Sisck Shame = Thasands) Shares Amouni
Balance at December 39, 2019 457316 § AT
Employes compensation and stock option plies {21.765) [ERECT]
Heparchase of commen stock 21,760 an
Balamce at Jamuary 1, 2021 LR EL 400
Employee compensation amld stock mpiien plins (17.359) (2847
R purchase of common siock ), 945 3,456
Balanue ai lanuary 2, 2022 450,478 099
Employee compensation smd stock opiion plans (20,007 A0y
Reparchase of commuon stock 35375 6,015
Balance at January 1, 2023 506246 % 41,6594

Aggregale sheres of common stock issued were approximastely 3,119843,000 shares 21 te end of lscal years 2022, 2021 and 2020,

Cach dividends pald wire $28.45 pershame bn fiscal year 2022, compared with dividends of $2.19 per chane in Tacal year 2020, anl 598 pier share in Tscal
year 2020,

Oin Janmary 1, 2022, the Noand of Direciors declansd o regular cash dividend of $1.03 per share, pavahle on March 7, 202340 sharehaolders of reconll =
il Fohruary 21, 20235,

O Seplemiber 14, 2022, the Company annesincel tha s Boasd of Directors approsed o shaoe repinchase program, suthomzing (he Company o
parchase wp o $5.0 billion of the Cempany's shanes of comman stock, Share repurchases may be made 3t masagement s discretion from dme (o dme on the
agpen market o through privately negotlased irnsactions, The nepurchaese program has oo tme lmdyand may be suspenided for perods or discomiinus =
any time. Thmugh January 1, 2023, spproximalely 32.5 billion has been repenchased onder the program.

13, Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income {Loas)
Components of olher comprehensive income (hoss) consist of the Tollowing:

Total
Coalw’ Acciemulaced
mfﬂm Gk Loss) D Enaplever Benelii ﬂmlh L= -F.::!r'l-l

o e
Wkl lars b Ml Translation Secrrities Flans Helgrs Lo {Less)
December 29, 20149 5 (8,705) — [[8:. 18] (295) {15.851)
Met ) changes (311 1 {R) 947 44
January 8, 2021 [, 530 1 16.957) had (1hd4d)
Ned 2021 changes L1079y {4} £, 155 [RHE) L4
Japary I, 2023 ey 3 {2,702 {33e) {13,058)
Mt 2022 changes {1,796} (24) 1,005 106 41
damury 1, 2023 5 (L] [£7) [ (230} {12,967)

Amounts in accamulated oaher comprehersive income are presemed net of the related tax impact. Poredgn cunency translatbon |5 mot adjusted for income
lawes where il relstes 1o permanent investmenls in internation subsidianes, For additional details on comprehemsive income see the Consolidaed
Satements of Compeehenslve Income,

[etalls on reclassilications vat of Acc lated Other Comprebensive lncame:
Galn/f Loss ) Cn Securithes - reclssifications released w Other (Incomse ) expense, s,
Emplayee Heneflt Flans - reclissilicaibons are included in net periodic benefit cost, See Node 10 lor additional detalls,
Crabruff Lawes} Chn Derbvatives & Hedpes - reclassilcatlons o camings are recorded in the same soonani as ibe hedped ransaciion. See Nobe & far
adkditional details.

m
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14, Imternational Currency Translation
For iramsLatbon of its subshdiaries operating bn non-LLS, Dallar cumencies, the Company has ditermined that the local currendcies of its insemational
subsidiaries are the funciienal currencles except those in highly inflatbonary economies, which ane defined as those which have had compouml cumulative
rales of inflation of 1008 or mone during the past thoee years, or where a substantlal portion ol [gs cash faws are not in the local cumency, For the majorily
ol the Company's subsidiaries the local currency is the functivnal carrency.

In enmsalidating intemational subshliaries, halance sheet carrency effects are recorded as a component of acoumalated ather comprehensive Income,
The oiber current and non-carment assets Hne wilhin the Statemem of Cash Bows includes the impact of forelgn carrency mranslition, This equity account
I luddes thee residis ol iramskating certain balance sheet assets and Nabilitles at curmest exclhonge rates and somi accourts al hissarical rates, excepl lor those
lecated bn highly inflatenary eonnombes, {Argenting and Veneouela), Beglnning In the (lscal second quarter of 2002, the Company alen sccoumted foe
operations in Turkey as highly inllationary, The imnslatkon of bakance sheet sccounts Tor highly inflatienary cooromies are rellected i the operating
resailis

Arolllorwand of the chanpes during liscal years 2022, 3021 and 2020 for Torign currency translation sdjusaments is included in Mose 13,

Nt currency mansactlon gakns and kosses Included in Ciber (Income) expense were Iosses of 8328 million, 5236 million and S2009 méllian in fscal
years JI22, 2021 and 200, respectively.

15. Eammings Per Share
The folbowing s o reconciliation of basic met carmings per share 1o diluted et comings per share for the fiscal years ended Jansary 1, 2023, Janiry 2, H22
anal kanuary 1, 221

{1 Ml Faiega Per Share Amaoits) pLiFe] w20 2020

Beasbc et carmings per share H L8 5] 7., h53

Average shares iitstanaling — haslic 25252 THE20 25128

Posential shares exercisable under sisck opiion plans 141 1mn s

l=ac shares pepurchased under ety slock meghod (L Y] {96.1) (Bld)
Adjussed sverage shares outstanding — dilued 2RELY 26740 26T0.7

ilated med carnings per shane 5 6,73 T.H1 ]|

The diluted net camings per share caloulstbon lor the fiscal years 2022 and 5021 included all shares relaied to siock opglons, as the exercise price of these
oplions was less than the average market value of the Company's stock.

The diluted net comimgs por share caloukation (o fiscal year 2020 exclsded 18 million shanes related 1o soock aplions, as the exencise price o These opfions
was greater thas the average matkel value of the Company's stock.

16, Common Stock, Stock Option Plans and Steck Compensation Agreenents

Ar lanuary 1, 20620, 1he Company bl one stock-hased compensation plan. The shares outstanding are lor contracts under the Companys 2002 Long-Term
Ircentive Plan and the 2002 Long-Term Incentlve Plan. The 2012 Lomg=Term Incentive Plan explned on Apdl 26, 2022, All swands {(stock options,
resdricted shares units and performance share units) granied sabsequent o that date wene under the 2022 Losg=Term Incentive Plan. Under the 2022 Loag-
Term Incentive Plan, the Company muy fsaie apin 150 million shares of commaon stock, of which ap o 110 milHon shares of commoen siock may be Bsoed
subject 1o stock options or stock appreclation righis and up o 40 millien shares of commen sock may be ssoed subject w Tul] value awands. Awards will
penerally he counted on & 1-for-1 basis against the share reserve, provided that if mare than 40 million full value swards ane gramed, cach Tull value award
In cxcess of 40 millken will be counded on a S-lor- 1 basis against the share reserve, Shares avallable Tor fusure grarts under the 2022 LongsTerm Incentive
Plan were 150 million al the end ol Nscal vear 2022,

The compersation cosa that has been charged against income for these plans was 51,138 million, $1.035 milllon and $1,005 millkon for lscal years
2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively, The total income tax benclit recognized in the income statement Tor share-based compensation costs was 5196 meillinn,
200 million ard 2210 millkon bor lscal Years 2022, 302] and B0, respeciively. The Company sl recogmized additioma] income lax benelits of
$2682 milllion, $22% million and S280 million for iscal yesrs 2022, 2021 and 200, respectively, foe which opiions were exerclaed of restroned shanes were
vested, The totall umrecognieed compensation cost was 59539 million, $952 million and $504 million for fiscal years 2022, 3021 and 2020, respectively, The
welghied average poriod Tor this cost b0 be recognized was 180 years, 1.70 vears and 1.76 years for lscal years 2022, 2021, and 2020, respectlvely. Shan-
hased compensation onsts caplialize) as past ol inveniony were inslgnilicamt in all periods.

The Company sebes emploves benell equity Bssances with treasury shans. Troeasury shanes are meplenisbed through markel penchoses, throughout the
year [or the number ol shares used w seobe eimployes benefin egquity Issdances,

n
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Stk Oyptions
Sack optbons explre 10 years from che date of grant and vest over service perods thal range from & montks 1o 4 years, Al options are granded ot the
average ol ihe high and low prices of ihe Company®s Commaon Siock on the New York Suock Exchange on the date of gram,

The fair value of each option awand was estimated an ibe date of grast using the Dack-Schodes option valuation mode] that uses the assumpiions noted
im the lollowing table. For J22, 2021, and 2020 grants, expecied volstility represents a blended rate of 10-yeor weekly hissorical overall volaiifity rate, aml
a S-week average implied volaulicy rase based on a-the-money raded Johnson & Johnson optlons with a life of 2 vears. For all promts, historical data s
usied o desermine the expected Nile of the option, The risk-free rate wis hased on the L5, Treasury yield cumee in effect at the dme of grant.

The average Tair value of options granted was 523,23, S20.86 and 51642, in liscal years 2022, 2001 and 2030, pespeciively. The fair value was estimated
haseil aim ihe weighbed averape assampdions ol

2022 2021 20
Ftlsk-free rase 1.54 % 081 % 1.47 %
Expeceed volatlity 1800 % 55 % 1548 %
Expected life {in yean) T 7.0 70
Expecwed dividend yield 270 % 250 % 260 %

A summuary ol sption activity under the Man o of Janesry 1, 2023, January 2, 2002 and lanaary 3, 2021, and changes during the vears ending on these
it s presented helow:

v msle
Wrightnd Valur

hares in Thasands Chitstanding Shares  Average Exercise Price [Deallars im Millioms)
Shares al December 39, 2019 111,637 § WsE1 3 447
Ciplioes granted 0,721 LT
Cipthivers exercised [16,275) RS

Ciptiors canceled/Torfelsed [ 1,835) L1762

Shares ot Jamnary 3, 2021 114,250 152 4,73
Ciptines granted 18,52% 16462

Ciptiies exercised {13,248) 7.4

Ciptioes canceled/ Tarfelied (2, 166} 148,75

Shares at famimary 2, 2022 117,361 12536 5,04
Clpthes gramted 159, 1Kk 165.04

Ciptioes exercised {16, 310) 10015

Optiors canceled/ Torfeited (2, 18H) 160,56

Shares at Jamuary 1, 2023 LEG72 8 13405 4948

The botal intrimsic value of aptions exercised was 1,228 million, $919 million and $1.021 million In lscal years 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

e |
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The folbowing talde summarizes stock aptions outstanding aod exercisalde ot Jamuary 1, 2023

{=hares b Theismilsy Crutstaniding Exercisable
Weighted Average Weiglted Aver

Extrise Price Rangs Opticns Average Life!" E?wciul’rkv Options Fﬁﬂﬂ Pﬂﬂm
ST154-5100.48 1722 15 20007 1721 4007
SINLET-8115.67 22,038 ik SME. TR 22039 SIHETHR
S129.51-8141.06 H4AT0 57 LIRIE 2420 S1AS
S151.41-5164,62 25,465 Th SI57.75 150 515621
BS54 55165, B9 19,077 a1 516589 21 S16589

118,672 5.0 5134.95 [ 113,06

" Awerage comtrachial 1 nemaining in years.

Stock oplions outstanding al Janoary 2, 2022 and Jenuary 3, 2021 were 117,361 and on average le of 5.0 years and 114,250 and an average Dife of
B years, respectively. Stock oplions exercisable of Jansary 2, 2022 and January 3, 2001 were 62,742 a4 an average price of $104.42 snd 61,209 01 an
average price ol $96.497, respectively.

Hestricted Share Unlis and Performance Share Unlis

The Company grants restricted share units which vest over servioe periods that rasge rom 6 months 1 3 years, The Company also grans perfommance
share units, which are paid in shanes of Johnion & Johmson Common Stock aller the end of a threesyear perfomance period. Pedormance shans wene
ranted with two cqually-wetghaed goals that direcily align with or Belp drive long-teem ial sharchalder returmz adjusted opemtional camings per share
anl relstive total shareholder retrmn, The number of shares actaally eamed i the end of tbe threesyear period will vary, based only on aciual perfomiance,
[ruam (¥ 1o 2007% of the tagyet number of peranmamree share nbs graned.

A summary of the restricted share units and performance sham wnles aabvity umder the Plans as of January 1, 2023 bs presented below:

Outstanding Restricted Ouaesta

(=l in Theisaidsj Share Units Performance Share Units
Shares al Japary £, 2022 14,122 2312
Ciranted 5154 7
i {4, 566) 1637)
Cancebed forlesed adjusted (T94) 1)
Shares al famuary 1, 2023 1316 2157

The average foir value of the restricved share unis granved was $15367, 315262 and $135.58 in fscal years 2022, 2021 amd 2020, respectively, using the
Faly market value & the date of gram, The Talr value of restricted share unis was discounted lor dividends, which are ot padd on the restricied share unls
turing the vesting period. Thee Fair value of restricted share unlts beued was $591 million, 8611 million amd S50 million in 2022, 2021 and 32020,
respuslivedy.

The weighted average Tair value of the perlormance shire units graned was S170.46, $179.35 and $160.54 in fiscal years 2022, 2021 amd 2020,
waloulated ushig the welghted average falr marken vabue for vach of the compoment goals at the date of grant

The falir walues for the sales and carminggs per share goals of cach perfoemance share wnit were estimated on the daie of grant using the fair market value
ol the shares ot the time of the swand discounled for dividerds, which are not paid on the performance share onits during the vesting perind. The [air value
T ihe relative sl sharehobler retum goal of esch perlormance share it wis estimated on e date of grant using the Monte Carlo valisstion idel. The
Tair wahie of perlormance share units issoed was 594 million, 383 million and 591 millon (o fscal years 2022, 2021 el 2020, respectively,
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17. Segments ol Business® and Geographic Areas

Sabes 1o Customers i Change
(Tl in Millioma ) 2022 w2 Tozo X2 e 21 21 v, 2D
CONSUMER HEALTH™
orc
(LR 5 2,702 2554 2460 73 % 4
Tndermatianal 2,049 LI5S 2,751 71 949
Winehilwiibe 6,031 S6XT 5221 7.2 T4
Skin Healih/Beauty
s, 2337 2400 2350 {26) 21
Indprmatianal 2015 4.141 211K 5.4) 1.%
Warldwiile 4152 df5a1 4,450 {4.2) L
Oiral Care
s, B35 a7 B 0.3 (6.7}
Indcrmationa 71 | Ay a5 [FEX] fl
Warehlwiile 1,505 1645 1641 {8.5) 0.2
Baby Care
LS, a57 i ATk (5.5) 5
Indermationmal .10 1 1ER 1.141 {7.1) 4.1
Warklwide 1461 1566 1517 {6.7) iz
Waomen's Health
[15. 9 13 13 13 1.7 [Lt)
Iiderinsloml BEn 905 0] {1.5]) 14
Winhlwiibe Hod a7 Hrl {1.5) 1.4
Weound Care/Oiher
s, 475 455 A0 {4.00) R
Indermaiomal 124 243 240 LR ] 1.7
Waeklwide 70 T 70 (53) 246
TOTAL CONSUMER HEALTH
L5, 6594 Bl 662 1.3 24
Indermsdizina] B354 B51% LI {19) 53
Wirhdwlide 14553 15,0305 14,450 (5] 40
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PHARMACEUTICAL™

Immunalagy
LIS, 11,036 IR 10,175 1.8 b6
Irdermatinm] 5,9 5,907 o, 1y {00 2140
Wikl wide 16,1935 1,750 15,055 Ll 11.3
REMICATE
s, 1417 2,019 2,500 {29.8) {18.5)
L%, Exports 4 FE b [146) (31.5)
Indermatiomal rr a5 e [22.8) 48
Wik lwile 27341 3,190 1747 [26.5) (14.9)
EIMPON] ¢ SIMPONLATEA
LS, 1,166 1137 L1565 a5 [2.4)
Indermatiomal 107 1,148 Loen [11.4) 5.5
Winrkiwlibe FA LS FRe L [EHL] 1.4
LELARN
LS, B LR Wt 76 143
Indermatinmal 3335 2,196 24T 4.4 2946
Waorkdwide 0.7 1 7.7 ] 185
JREMIYS
ik, 1,184 1508 Wik 27 L )
Indermatiomal (LeE] b4 421 LRIl ans
wWichilwiide 2/b6HE a,1d7 1347 254 57.9
ATTHIET: IMBALINGLCRGY
[15.% 17 21 o [ LEL&) _—
Internatianal n a 1 " (73.3)
Warklwide 17 24 11 [28.2) "

Infections Diseases
LS, 1,640 2249 1.7A5 [25.5) 2.7
Riernaid il A,.760 1576 I B0 5.4 g748
Waorkdwide h449 S0 fLAC ] (6.5) 4.4
us 120 LR ] —_ [ma.a) -
Internativnal 2154 1.751 — 176 -
Waorldwide PR 2005 — {#B) =
LLS, £l 41 -+ [roEy [T
Indcrmationas] 972 a5 W2 20 A4
Warldwide 18 S e, 15 a1
EREZISEA f FREZCENAIN ( RELOLSTAS

SUTIAIFS

LS. 1,494 1,508 1,587 (L) {31
Indermational 445 575 a7 [21.9) L&)
Worblwide 1443 2,083 L1B4 (E.T) {5}
OTHER INFECTIOUS TESEASES
s, an [ 104 [5.5) (36,0
Internatianal G 297 2 {2.6) 1.7
Waorklwide 318 361 196 [12.3) {B.3)
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Mrurescienoe
LS, 3,570 BT Loal 6.7 fi )
Intermational 3323 R 31435 8.7) a0
Warhilwiide i, H I3 R A,526 [1.4) 7.1
LCOMCTITA © meshylpheniibale
L5, 151 172 LE3 {12.5) (5.0)
Indermationas] Eox 495 A5 (4] 1240
Warkdwide il BET B2 15) 73
s 2,714 2A5 2114 B 102
Intermational 1,426 1472 1,339 (311 TikAY
Waorlidwide 4,140 4002 1A51 an (18]
HLEPEHAL LONSTA
LS. 257 2RT i ] (A LUE T} [L.3)
Iermatimal 228 Aok ] (25.3) (1LY
Warkilwide 445 L FS el [REIR N (il |
OTHER NEUROSCIENCE
IS, 447 A3 Fir ] ad 144
Intermations] 1176 (0] L3z {14.1) 41
Warkdwiide 1,643 170w LbliF 14.4) Lxl
Oimcology
LS, 6,910 nAGH 5052 163 170
Iermatiomd 4,052 550 T.275 S 1H1
‘Worklwide 15,503 14, Geblh 11367 a8 176
DARZALES
s, 4,210 L16% i nn 420
Indermatians ATRT LRS54 1558 xn A58
Waorkdswiie .8 B2 ERE a4 410
ERLEADA
LS, 568 n Gl 192 L)
International g3 ATH 176 et i
Workdwide 1,801 1291 TE0 57 T
EABRLVICA
(EE.H 1,350 1747 12D [FLLE ] [k}
Intermat bl 2404 pl v .r] 2307 BTy 116
Wi hilwiike 3784 & 6% 4,120 (12.4) v}
s, T4 14 473 (x7.8) (6.1}
Intermational 1,506 LITR LiET (£2.1) in
Warkdswide 1,770 287 2470 (x29) (700
ATEELEH, QUL A,
LLE. 8 288 11 B3 = T
Indermations 200G 450 Tl {513 (37.9)
Wioeklwiide 571 Sel 21 0.6 {08y

i
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Pulmenary Hypertension
LS, 246 2065 2,133 {0L) [
Il 1071 1,085 1,015 (1.3 (o]
Wcklwide 417 1,450 Alan {1.m 4
DFSUMIT
[FE. 1,132 1,147 1,06 {1.3) 13.7
Indernatioml w5l hT2 il (4] [
Waorkdwide 1.783 (O] 1639 {20 1.4
LIETHANT
LS, 1,104 1,056 4ok 4.5 8]
Internationsl 21n 11 130 204 KNS
Waorkdwlde 1422 1237 1055 Uik 141
OTHER
LS, 1140 161 (1] [42.5) [£T)
Indermatianal 202 i 247 [12.8) (29
Wacklwlibe E1E] 55 416 [400) (50K

Cardiovasoular / Metabolism h_mh!r

LS. a0z 3,192 3,500 {4.7) (5.0}
Indernatianal a5 a7 1,025 A9 [
Wacklwide 3,887 4,119 4,534 {5.5) (9.2)
KARFITO
L5, 2473 240 L5 14 A0
Indermatiom —_ - — — —
Warcklwide ZATY 240 25 14 A4
ENVORANA INVORAMET
LS 153 30l fibd (17.4) (45.4)
Indernatiomal 255 254 231 ni b1
Warkdwide A 5E1 a5 [20.4) (29:3)
LIEHERE™
LLS: 476 adii A0 {15.5) (25.7)
T ermatiomasl SEH 673 a4 [12.3) {152}
Wirkdwide ¥k 1113 Tabd [136) (157

TOTAL PIIARMACEUTICAL
LS. 28,504 7454 25, 7TA% 2 &
Indernationad 435959 FERP ] 19,450 0 .0
Winrilwlibe R2NET 1AM 45,176 L7 144

H
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MEDTECH*"
Interventional Solutions
LS, 2,169 1,835 1452 18.2 264
Intermatiom 2,03 A B 1594 (02) M0
Worklwiide .00 387 BRI 83 304
Orthopardics
LS, 5421 5.8 4,778 a8 7.3
Indermianml AI6T A4k 2984 L] Tht¥
Waorklwiibe BT HoE Toisd o Tkt
S
LS, 4 H7a T s | {15
Indermationasl 571 w02 487 15.1) 2%
Worbdwide 1514 1.4 1,360 23 156
BNEES
LS, H51 THTY Ta3 H2 58
Indermatioml O %l 427 5.7) 261
Wichlwiile 1359 1315 L1700 26 133
TRAURMA
[1E.# 182 1419 1,65t 4.5 14
Internatianal L] 10066 Yk (7.2) 14
Warklwiibe 2871 2085 A4 05) ([
LS, 1,545 1,642 1,585 0.z 29
Indermational 1, 1590 1,456 L1044 [4.5) 134
Wachlwlide 20473 2094 2 oAy 19 T4
Surgery
LES: AT A0ET 3,200 (ulE} 1900
Indermagiaomad 5,79% 545 4.908% (28] 1494
Wocklwide 9,660 G182 B2 nz 192
ADVARCET
LS, 1,704 1,761 1,505 12 1449
Indcrmaional 2,785 LBb1 204 (26) 24.1
Warbdwide A58 44612 LH38 (1.1 204
CENERAL
LS, 2113 FALE L4 04 .y
Indermation A 006 31,085 26789 125) 152
Wikl wide 512 h,150 47952 (1.3 181
Wiskon
LS 1580 1LAGT L5567 7.2 153
Intermationsd 2459 2430 k2 .o 140
Warhlwiide EHIEL] 460 1919 a4 156
LS. 1522 1.5 L3 4 15.2
Tidermatiom: 2022 2043 1,781 {1.0j 14.7
Wrklwlide A% 3,440 L an 144

|
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SURGICAL
LS, Ll 454
Ingermatioml war TRE
W bl wlide 1,106 1240

TOTAL MEDTECH
(I8 177 120666
Indermatiomal [ERLS L] 14,374
Warkdwide 27427 27060

WORLDWIDE
LS, 48, 58D 47,156
Internatiamal AR 36T 46519
Winellwlide 5 541 Q77N

*{gnain praw year amosars: have boea reclassd lbed o conform 12 curment. year [rescotathon
=*Pemeniage jyester han 1R or nid moasing vl

344
il
a5

11,75
11,923
22559

43,113
a5
2,504
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20 315
62 an.T
45 KR!
S4 1459
(23) 2iL6
14 179
an 0.3
(0 1.2
13% 106

Wapproaimatidy $0.4 billkn by baoth the fescal 2020 and 20080, of certaln intemational CTC products, prinsarly in Chisg, wese reclassifled (oo e Pharmacenbcal segmeni

i the Comaumer Headth sogment hased on changes
Elinctusve of PROCRIT § EPREX which was proviously disclkosed siparaiely
N Preyiously relerned o as Medical Devices

Income {Loss) Before Tax* Tdentiliable Assris
{Whallars i Millisns) oz ™ 2021 ' 2020 22 fori
Coasumer Health & 2,500 1.573 (A52] % 24,068, 25,001
Pharmaseutical 15,50 17,565 15,250 Sh 4006 54,075
MedTech 4,507 4073 4,044 70956 53,472
Tutal 23,4338 3815 17,442 150 ARl 142 f29
I Fxpense not allocared o segmens ™ hld 1,072 a5
lLi=as Consuimer Health sefuifitl o cosls 1,018 b7
Cieneral corporate = 3818 169
Warbdwide imtal 5 21,735 2,776 16,497 & 187,378 182018

v tefere Loy of gpprimasely B2 Sl sl 1.2 ellion n b Baaed e JI00 and JTOR rreper serty b e pey i el o et weensional SFT 1 peeiie s, e rmerly i Ul s e el fren e Flasrmsrnie s
e

srgivm i e ©vmnsars eads s vt B o g sl ¢

APlant & Equipment it gy

Wkl b Wi asses) 2022 2021 2020 2022 2021 2020

Comsamer Health 3 a RE| 40 5 A5 758 785
Pharmaceutical 1,174 1,10 [} AGET 4,029 R
MedTech 12 1,932 1,560 2002 2,206 2,140
Sogments il AHET A, 462 NG 6,547 7074 6,911
Cieneral corporate 14 140 256 k] A6 30
Wirkdwide iotal 5 - 3652 347 § 6,570 7300 7,231
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Sales 1o Custaiiers Laong-Lived Assets '
(Wallars b Millinm) 2022 2021 2020 2022 2021
United Spaies 5 441,500 47,156 41133 % 166,203 4,506
Eunpi 23,448 23,554 1,500 H.7re A3, 257
‘Westem Hemlsphere excluding L5 6,125 5,750 5,135 2747, 2,708
Asla-Tacific, Alrica 16,71 17,275 15,136 &40 5,015
Segments olal 1,543 H3,775 2,504 1215 HELGHE
Cleniral carparaie i, 134 1,014
Chther non boag-lived asses Ta019 Bl d1A
Worklwide (mial 5 04,543 51,775 B2584 & 1RT, 278 1EE 018

= ———8 k& ————§______—— ]

See Mote | lor o description of the segments in which the Company operabes.

Expaort sabes are nod significani. n lkscal year 2022, the Company utilized three whelesalers distdbuting prodhices {or all three segments that represented
approximately 16.5%, 13.0% and 12.0% of the total consolidsted revenues. In fiscal yeor 3021, the Company had three whaolesalens distributing produocts
Ter all three sepments thal represented approximstely 14.0%, 11.0% and 11.0% ol the waal consalidaied revenoes, In fiscal year 200, the Campany had
three winlesalers distributing produscts for all thiee segments tha represented approximately 16,00%, 120%, and 120% of the ol consolidated revemies,
M Ameunts nol allocated o segments, Include interest fincome) expense and gener! conporate (income) cxpense.
B Coneral corporate includes cash, cash equivakents asd markeishle securites
T Comsumer Heahih loclules;

*  Litgakon expense of $0.2 hilllon

= A restructuring related charge of 2.1 billion

Pharmaceutical inclsdes,
© One-gime COYID-19 Vaocine manulaciuring exii related costs of $1.5 billion

*  An intanglhle asset impaiment charge of approximately $0.8 billion related to an m-process pescarch and development asset, benmekimah
(= TPAT 48620, an nvestlgatlons] drug Bor the ireatment of Atople Dermatis (AN and Hidradeniils Suppurativa (105) acgubred with the
acjuisition of XBiotech, nc_ in the fiscal year 20200 Additional information reganling efficacy of the AT and 118 indications becume
availabde which bed the Company 1o the decision o terminate the development of bermekimabs for AD and 05

+  Litigakon expense of $0.1 billlan
= Laea of 30.7 billion relased o e change im e Gair value of securities
= A ressrugturing related charge of 30,1 billion

MedTech inchides:
+  Litigatkon expense of $0.6 billlon primarily for pelvic mesh related cosis
= A restrinctiring relsted change of S0 billien
- .ﬁ.n.ﬂ|u|su|l||.u| it Ivieggrasilemn relabed cosas of S0 billlon p.rlm.lrL'I:,' melaie] llllhl.'d'.qlllh]lll.ul ol Ahkmed
+ A Medical Device Regulmion change of $0.3 hillion

B Ciopsumer Healih includes:

®  Litgatkon expense of 16 billion, primatily ale relabed comis
= Arestructuring related charge of £001 billien

I"harmscetical inchades:
®  Litigatbon expense of $0.6 billion, primanily rdated 1o Risperdal Gynocomastia
®  Divestiture gairs of $0.6 billioa
*  Caims ol S05 hillion relaged o ibe change inthe Dair value of securidies

= A restruciuring relasted charge of $0.1 billion

1
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MedTech includes:
= A resructuring relsted diage of S0 billion
* A inprocess research and development expense of $005 hillion selated o Ottava
= A Medical Device Regubation charge of $0.2 hilllon
= Litigation expense of $0.1 billian
T Consumer Uealth includes:
= Litigation expense of 539 hillion, primarily tale relabed conis and ceain settlemenis.
Iharmaceutical Inclades:
= Llglgathon cxpense of &0.40 hilllan, primarily reloted 1o the sgreemient in principle (o setile |.'|:||n4:] litlgation
= A padnoof S5 billion related 1o the change in the Taiir value of secusities
* A restructicing relsted charge of $0.1 billion
MedTech includes:

* A conlingent consideration reversal of $1.0 billkon relaced o e dming of cenain developneenial milesiones msocisied with the Auis Health
anejidsiiion,

*  Litigation expense of S0 billlon
= A restructueing related change of $0 billion
= A lineproces reearch and develapment expense of S002 billion

= A Medical Device Regulation charge of $0.1 hillien
" Lomng-lived psaets include propeny, plant and equipment, net for Gscal years 2022, and 2020 of 19,803 and $18,9%62, respectively, amd intanglhle sssets
anl goodwill, net for liscal years 2022 and 2021 of $93.554 s $81,638, respectively.

18, Aciuisitions and Divestitures
Phating the fscal year 2022, certain businessis were acquined Tor $17.7 bhilllon in cash and $1.1 billion of labilities ssumed. These couisitions wore
avcounted Tor wing the acquisitbon method aml, scoondingly, reales of operations have been included intbe financial statements from their respective dates
il acgjuisition
Thie excess of purchase price over the estimated Tals value ol tngible assets aoguired amounted o 5173 hillion and has been assigaed u ident fiabbe
Imangitde assews, with any residual reconbed o grodwill

The fiscall year 2022 acqaisitions primarlly Iecloded Ablomed, Inc. (Ablomed) The remalning scquisitions were nmt material

On December 22, 2022, the Compuny completed the soquisition of Ablomed, a besding, first-o-market pcmrhi:rnl cardiovasoular medical technodogy
wilth a lirsebn=kind partlolio loe the treatment of cornary anery disease and heart Tailure shich alao haes an extensive Ennnvation pipeline ol ileaving
technologies. The rasecion brosders the Company's posbibon as 2 growing candivvasoulas lmmovator, advancing te standard of care i bean Faibure amd
recovery, one of hoalthcare's largest aeeas of unmet need, The ransactbon was accounded or as a business combination and the results of operations were
Imchuded lin the MedTech segment as of the date of the acquisition. The acquisition was completed through a wnder affer for all soistanding shares. The
corshleration pakl in the sogquisition conslsted ol an uplrom payment of $2080,00 per share in cash, amounting 0 $17.1 billkn, net of cash svguirel, as well
as @ non-tradeah e contingent value right (*CYR®) entiiling the halder io recelve ap o S25.00 per share in cash (which with respect o the CVRs otal
approximately $1.6 hillion in the aggregste) il ceriain commercial and clinical milesiones are achieved. The comesponding enlerprise valise (wilhow taking
Imim accoum the CYH) of approximately $16.5 hilllon Inclodes cash, cash oguivalents and marketahle securliles acquireal.
The milestones of the CVIL consist of:

o S17.50 per shane, payabile il net sales lor Abiomed products exceeds S3.7 billion during fehnsoa & Johnsan's liscal second quarier of 2027
el liscal list gaarber o 2028, o il this teeshald B oot met daring this perod and s sobseguently mel during any rollisg (our guaser period
up o the end of Johnwaon 8 Johason®s Gecal (it guarter of 2009, $8.75 per share;

b, 5750 per share payable upon FUA premarket application approval of the wse of Inpella® prodects in 5 T=elevaled myocandiol inlacion {STEMI)
patients withouot candiogenic shock by Jamuary |, 2026; and

c. S per share payable upon the first publicatlon of a Class | ecommenelation for ibe use of Impella® producis in high risk NCTar STEMI wiih
or withoui candiogenic shock within four years from their respective clinkcal endpodne publication dates, bt in all cases o Later than December 31,
Flra s

Thee Tair walie of the scquisition was sllocated b assets acguired of $19.9 hillion fnet of $0Chillion cosh scguined), primarily o goosdwill for
L1004 billisn, amorilcabe Imtanible assets Tor 36,6 hillloan, IPR&D o 1.1 hillks, marketable
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securities of $0.6 billion and lishilites assamed of $2.8 billioa, which includes the lair value of the contingest consideration mentioned above for
20,7 hillion and deferred taxes of 1.8 billioa, The goodwill is primarily stributshle 16 the commencial acoeleration and expansian of the potlolio and i
nat expecied (o be dechctible for . purpeses. The ocontingent consideration was reconded in Cther Liabilitbes. on the Corsolilated Balance Sheet

A the acguisition cooured in December 2022, the Company s still fmalizing the allocation of the puchase price to te individual assews acguined amd
liabilities ssumed. Thee allecation of the parchase price inchuded in tbe current period balance sheet B based on the best eslimate of mansgement and is
el iy anad subject to change. T assis management inihe allscabor, the Compary eagaged valuation speclalists o prepare appraisals, The Company
will finalize the amounis recopnized as the infemation necessary o complete the analysis is obtained, The Company expects o finalee these amouanis as
s as pesalble but oo later than ane year fron the acquisbiun dage,

The amorizable intangible assets were primarily comprised of abready in-market products of the Impella® platform with an average weighied Tie of 14
years, The [PR&D assets were valued Tor wohmology progranss. for unapproved products, The valoe of the IMRED was caloulased using probability-
ailjusted cash (low projeciions discounted for the sk inherent in soch projects. The peohability of sucoess factor ranged from 52% (o J0%. The discount
rate appliad was 9.5%.

In 2022, the Company recorded acquisitien related costs belone tax of approximately $0.0 billion, which was reconded in Other (incomelexpense,

During lscal year 2021, the Company did not make any material acquishtions,

Purimg [scal year 2000, cenaln businesses were acguined Tor $7.3 killion in cash ared $0.4 billien of Babilibes asamed. These scquisivons were
accoanted for wing the acquisiibon methed and, sccordingly, resalts of operations have been included inibe financial staiements From thelr respective dates
ol acaqulsition

Ther excess of parchase price over the estimaied falr value of tangihle sssets aogquired amounied 10 $7.5 billion and has been assigned s ldentiflable
Imangible assets, with any resldual reconded to goodwill,

Thee fiscall year 2020 acquisitions primarily incloded: all rights o the investigational compound bermekinab, which has muliphe denmatological
imdications, along with ceraln employees [rom X Biotech Inc. | XBistech), Moments Pharmaceuticals, bine (Momenia), a company that discovers and
develops povel theraples for immune-mediobed diseases and the outstanding shares in Verb Surgical Inc. a company with significant robotics and data
scleice capabiliches,

Purng the fiscal (ied gquarter of 20240, the Company mﬂp'lnl.ﬂ] the smuisition ol all righis o the invesslgational compaund bermekimab, which has
murltiple dermatologlcal indications, abong, with cenain employees fmm XRBintech Inc,, for o purchase price of SO0 billion, The fair valae of the scquisition
was allocsted primarily 1o nonsamonicahie nangihle assets, primardly IPRSD, for 0.8 billion applying a prohability of seccess Lactor that ranged [mom
209 o B i reflect inborent developmend, regulatory and commercial risk for the different indications. The discount rale applicd was approximately
16%, The transaction was aceonmied o as a business combination and included in the Phamacen ical segment. I Tseal 2022, he Company reconled an
Imangitde asset impairment change of approximastedy S0 billioa related 1 dhis n-process. reseanch and development asse.

Additionally, in the fiscal fira quaster of 2020, the Company completed the acquisition ol all cotstanding shares in Verh Sarglcal Inc., a company with
significant robotics and dats science capabilities, inclading those shares previously bedd by Verily, The tanssction wis accounsed Tor s o busines
comhination ard included inibe Medlech segment. The Talr value of ihe acquisition was allocaced primarily w non-amonizable inangible assets. primarily
IPHEDY, for $0.4 billlon, geadwill for $0.2 billion, ather assets of $0,2 billlon and Habilies assumed of $003 billion, The Tair valoe of the Companys
[Iﬂlﬂu\.l}' kel upll:‘\r Investmend bn Verh Suq;h:al Ing. was 0.4 hilllen.

On Octaber 1, 2020, the Company compleled the acquisBion of Mamena for a purchase price of approximately $6.1 billion, netof cash scquired. The
lair value of the acguisiiinn was alloceled primarily s nonsamorieshie inangibde asels (IPR&DD) of S50 hilkion, geodwill of $1.2 billios, alher asels ol
$0.5 il lion and labdlities of $1.6 billiomn. The sssets scguired ane ntended o sdiness substantial unmen medical need in moemal-feval disonders, e
inflammatory disorders, rhesmatology, demmaiology and astoimmune hemaiology. Depending on the assel, probability of success factors ranging from 2006
1o 77 woere used in the Lair value coboukation 1o reflect inberent development and regulatory risk of the TFR&ETD. The discoum rate applicd was
approximately 173%, The goodwill is primerdly anribatable o synenges expeced 1o el from the Business acguisition amd §s not expected 1o be deductible
For tax purpases, The tramsaction wes sccounted for as a businesa combination and incladed In the Pharmaceutical segmens.

In accordance with LS, GAAP standards related #0 hasiness combinations, and goodwil and ather inangihle assets, supplemental pre forma
Imfuamation For fscal years 2032, 2021 and 2020 i nol provided, a the impact of the aforementioned acgaisiclons did not have a maietial el on the
Companmy s resulis of operations.

Dlivestiires

During fiscal year 2022, the Company did not make any maserial divesimres,

Purimyg fiscal year 2021, In separate trarsactivns, the Company divested pwa brands ousshile the 15, within the Pharmaceutical segment. The Company
recognized a prestax gain reconded in Othar {income ) expense, net, of approximately $0.6 billion,

a3
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Duriing liscal year D000, the Company sobd 108 millien shares of orsia LTD {ldorsia), of it 8.5% ownership o e compsiy @ it dme, T
iramsation resulied In gross proceeds of approximately CHF 337 milllon ($357 millllon based on a sales price of CHE 2R55hare ard resilied bn an
immaterial pet boss. At the end of fiscal 2020, the Company had rights 1o approximately 2.7 million shares throagh a convenible loan with 3 prind pal
amoant of CHEF 445 million (clee June 2027) Duaring Necel year 20281, the Company convered CHE D0 million (3120 million) of (his loan inio
approximaiely 9.6 million shares of Idorsla which were nelbeoisd ot Lair valee os of Janoary 2, 2022, Durimg ibe fiscal thind quarter of 2021, the Company’s
wnidrawn oredin Tacility with Idorsia was ierminated,

19, Legal Procesdings

Jahnson & Johnson and certain of s sibsidiares ae involved in varows Lawsulis amd claims rnegarding product liahilicy; imedlecual propony; commercial;
il ilication aml eiber matters; grovemmental investigations; and ather egad procecdings ihat arise Trom tome e e n e ondinary oosiese of thr
beusdams.

The Comspany recands accruals lor loss contingencies associated with these legal maters when it is probable that a liability will be incurred, and dhe smount
ul ihe loss can be reasonably estimabed. As of Jamuary 1, 2028, the Company has determined that dhe liahilives assoclated with centain licigation matiers ane
mrobable and can be reasonably estimated, The Company has accrued for these matbers and will cominee 1o monior cach related legal ssue and odjuss
accruals as mighi be warranted bhased on pew Information amd Turther developmenis in scconkince with ASC 450-20:25% For tbese and other litgatkon and
regpulasory matters discusaed below lor which a loss s probuble or reasonably puuLlﬂlr..dtCumplrly s unable @ cstimate the possible loss or range of loss
bevoad ihe amounts sceniel. Amounts sccrued lor legal comingencies alten resall fram a complex seres ol judgments aboul e events and
uncertalngles that rely heavily on caimates and assumpitbons including dming of related payments. The ability 1 make such estmares amil judgments can be
affecied by varlous factiors inclsding, among ather things, whether damages sought in the prceedings am unsaibstantiated ar bndeterminabe; sclemiflc amd
legal discovery has ol commenced or b not complete; procecdings ane in carly sages; matiers present legal uncertainties; there are significamt facts in
ihingute; procedural or jursdictional s the uncertaindy snd unpredictability al (i nambser of potential claims; ability s schisve comprehensive mult-
pany senbements; complexity of relsted cooss-claims and coumerchalms; andioe thene ame mimeroes paries Involved. To the exient sdverse svands,
Judgments or verdicts have been rendered agaimst ihe Company, the Company does not record an acomial until a loss is determined 1o be probable amd can
hee reasmnabily estimated

Imabse {‘.rlnpany‘t npinian, hased on [ examinatiom ol these maiters, s rx[udprh.'rlmhrr anal disosskons with comer], the uftimate oneonme af lepal
mracecdings, net of lLabiliies scomed inthe Company®s halance sheel, bs mol expected 1o have o material adverse effea anthe Company®s financlal
pesdtion. However, the resalution ol, or increase in accmals for, one or maore of these malters inany meporting pericd may have o meterial sdverse eflect on
the Company’s results of operatbors amd cash (lows for thal period,

PRODUCT LIABILITY

The Company and cenaln of s subsidiaries ane Involved in memerous produc Bahilliy claims and wsalts involving multiple produces. Claimanes in ihes:
cases seck substantial compensalory and, where Ilahle, punitive o. ges. While the Company belicves it has suhstantlad delenses, i bs not leasible to
peredict the ultimate outcome of Higstion. From time o tme, even i it has substantial defenses, the Company considers jsolated senbements based on a
variely ol clroumstances, The Company has established accrssts for product Hability clalms and Lowsuits In complianoe with ASC 450-30 based on
currenily available informatkon, which insome cases may be limited, The Company accrues an cstimate of the legal defense costs necded o defend each
matter when those costs are profable awd can be reasonably estimated. For centain of these maiters, the Company has accneed acifitional amsunts such as
catimated costs associated with settlememts, domages and other losses. Product liability accruals can represent projected product lability for thousands of
chyins around the world, esch in different lingation covironments amd with different Lact patterns. Changes so the seensals may be reguined in the futune as
addinional infemation becomes available,

The morsd signilicans ol these vases includes e DePoy ASK XL Acetabular Sysiem aml DePuy ASR Hip Resusfacing Sysveim; the FINNACLE Acetalnlas
Cup Systomy; pelvic meshes; RISPERDAL; bady powders cantalning tale, peimarily JOHNSON'S Baby Powder; ETHICON PHYSIOMESH Flexibhle
Croamposite Mosh; ELMIROEN; and TYLENGL, As of January 1, 20278, in the Uindeed Staies there wene :pfumlnun'l_\- 17 |1h|l1lf|1 with direct claims In
meenling Lawsuits regarding injuries albegedly doe o the Defuy ASR XL Aostabuler System and Deifuy ASH Hip Hesorlacing Syaem; 180 with mespect
1 the PINNACLE Acetabaler Cup Systeny 9,000 with nepect o pelvic meshes; 1100 with respect w RISPERDAL; $0300 with nespect bo body powders
coniaining talc; Z 100 with mespoct i ETHICON PHYSIOMESH Flexible Composioe Mesh; 2,000 with respect to ELMIIRRON; and 170 with respeat 1o
TYLENGL. The mimber of pending lawsulis ks expeated o fluciuate s certaln lawsulis are setiled or dismissed and additbona] lawsuits are filed,
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I Ampust 2010, DePuy Onbopsedics, Inc, (DePuy) announced o worlibwide valumtary recall of its ASH X1 Acetabular System and Del'uy ASE Hip
Resurfacing System (ASH Hip) used in hip replacement susgery, Claims for personal infury have been made agalvst Delay and ibe Company. Cases filed
Im fedieral courts im the Unbied States have heen oeganized as a maltd-district ltigation n the Unlied States Dhisarict Cour for the Morbern Disirct of Ohin
Laigation has also heen Aked in countries vaisice of the United States, primarily in ihe Unived Kingcdom, Canada, Ausiralia, brelamd, Germany, India and
ltaly. In Movemnber 20073, Delfuy reached an agreemant with o Court-appointed o ltten ol lawvers mepr img ASH Hip plaintifls o establish o
program 1o setide claims with cligible A%R Hip paticnts in the Unied States who had seigery 1o replace their ASK Hips, known @ nevision sungery, as of
Augarst HH 3, Defuy reached adilidonal agreements in Febeuary 2005 and March 2017, which furber extended the setilement program o include ASH Hip
patienls whe had revision sungeries afier August 2005 and prior o Febroary 15, 2007, This sestlement program has resolved mare tham 10,000 claims,
Ilmn.'hy brimgghagg 1o resadutivn signilicant ASH IIJp litkgatiom ativity im the United States. However, lowsaits nihe Unbied Stites remain, and the setgemem
pregram does not address litigatbon satside of the United Swate. Bn Australio, a closs action settlemeont wars neachod that resodved the claims of the majority
ol ASIE Hip patbenis in that coumtry, In Canada, the Company b reached agroements o sende the class actions fibed in s country. The Company
coniinues io recelve Information with respect 1o polential addiional costs associated with this recall on a worldwide basis, The Company has established
accrusls for the wosts assockated wiib the Undled States setibement program and ASE Hip-relatal produsct Habilicy Nakgathn,

Claims for persanal infury have also been made agains DePuy Osthapaedics, Inc. and the Company [collecively, Deltuy) relating to the PINNACLE
Acetabular Cup System used in hip replacement sungery. Produsct Habilicy lawsuits continue w be filed, and the Company cominues to reccive informatian
wilh respect 1o pobential costs and the anticipated mamber of cases. Most cases ke in federal courts in the United Swaies have been omganized as a moulii-
ditsaricy Hcigation in the Unied Sises Disorien Coan for the Nonhem Disaionof Texas (Texas MOL ) Beginrdng o June 1, 2022, the Judicial Fanel on
Muliidisrion Livgstion coased mansfer of new cases imio the Texas MDL, and there are now cases pending in Tedeeal ooun auasiide ibe Texas MIDL,
Litigation also has been fhed in state courts and in countrics outside of the Uniled States, Prior w 2009, several adverse vemlicts had been readered againsi
IePuy, ane of which was reversed on appeal amd remanided Tor retrial. During the 1ind quarter ol 2019, DePuy edabdished a Dniled States setibement
peroyram (o resolvie these cases. As part of the senbement program, silverse vendios have been settled. The Company has established an sccrual for prodoc
linbility litigaion associaied with the FINMACLE Acctabular Cup System and the relsted senbement program.

Claims for persanal infury have heen made against Fithicon, Inc. (Ethicon] and the Company arising out of Ethicon's pelvic mesh devices used so weat
wtrras wrimary incontinence and pelvie ongan |1mla|'lw|. The I'fﬂrn[nn‘l,r inmiknses i recelee information with nespen i pnqr'rlhl s andl sldiviomal cases,
Cases (iled in federal courts inthe United States bad been onganized as a multi-disra lugation (ML) in the Unived States Distric Court for the Soathen
IMstrict of West Virginia. In March 2021, the ML Court entered an order closing the MDL. The MDL Coun has remanded coses. for trial o the
jurisdictioas where the cawe was eriginally filed and additional pelvic mesh lowsuits have been filed, and remain, cuside of the MDL. The Company has
setilionl e onherwise resnlve the majoring of the Unbied States cases and the estimated costs assoclaied with these setlements and the remainlng cases ame
reflecied in the Company s aconeals. In addition, class actions and individual persenal injury cases or dlaims secking damages (or alleged injury resaliing
Troan Fihboon's rlelui: mesh divives have been commesosd In varfor counries outside of the Unived States, including dlaines amd cases inibe United
Kihﬂﬁurn. the Netherfands, Belgiem, France, Treland, ILJ]_I.-\. S pain and Slovenia and closs aciioms in sracl, Auaralia, Canads and Soaik Alrca. In
Mevember 2009, the Federal Comrt of Avsiralia issued a judgment reganding its lindiegs with respect 1o liabiliny in relation 1o the thoee Lead Applicants and
generally in relation to ihe design, manafachare, pre and post-markel assessments and testing, and supply and promotion of the devices in Ausiralia used
tread siness wrinary continense and pelvic ongan prolapse, In Seplember 2022, alier exhausting bis appeals, the Company eached an in-principle
agrecment o resalve the two pelvic mesh class actions im Australia, pending Federal Court approval. In Movember 2022, ibe application for approval of the
settlement was liled, and a hearing on the seitlement has been schedaled for the end of Febraary 2023, The class actions in Canada were discontimied In
2040 a5 a resub of a settlement of o groap of cases and an agrecment o resolve the sraell dass scton wis reached (s May 2000, The parties i ihe Larad]
class action are cummently Tmalleing the terms of the setibement, A mstion (o approve the settlement was (ed wich ibe Coan, The Company has established
accrsls wH.hrﬂ.pccl iim |1ﬂ:uh|.1 liahilizy likgotion associabed with Fihicon's peln.-'ic mesh prnducbu.

Follerwing a Junie 2016 worlibwide market withdrawal of ETHICON PHYSIOMESH Flexible Composite Mesh {Physiomesh), claims for perssnal injury
have been made againat Ethicon, Inc. {Ethicon) amd the Company alleging personal injuery arising out of the use of this hernla mesh device. Cases filled in
Feaderal coirts in the Limived Saaves have been arganboed as a mudu-dissricn D gatson (ML) in the Ulndued States Exisarion Coun foe the Nonbeon Diswcn of
Cieorggha, A mulil-county lnkgation (MCL) abso has been formed in New Jersey state count and asslgned o Adlantic Cownty for cases pending in New Jemsey,
I aibditiom o thee matters in the ML and ML, there are additional lawsuits pending in ihe United States District Coan foar the Sautherm Disirkc
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el i, iy e part of tie MOL for ol ypropyleme mesh devioes manuifociunad by CO8 Banl, T, aid Lewsaits pemding in two Mew Josey MULs
Foomes fior Proceed Proveal Ventral Paich and Prolense Hemla sysiems, and lwsuits pending outsibe ibe Unlied Staies, In May 2021, Eihloon and lead
coumsel for the plainelifs entered inlo a term sheet 1o resalve approckmatcly 3600 Physiomesh cases (oovering approximasely 8,00 plaimiffs) pending in
the BAINL and MAOCL af that ime. A mader weltement agrement (MSAY was entered imto in September 2020 and includes 5,729 coes in the MDL and
MCL. Al deadlbnes and trial seings in those procecedings ane currestlly swyed pending ibe completion of e setlbament sgrecment. OF the cases subject 1
the M5A, L1236 have heen dismissed with prejudics. Pest-settlement cascs in the Physiomsesh MDL and ML are subject o docket control osders requiring
early expert reporis and discovery requirements. As of lapuary 2023, there ane approximately 208 active cases suhject to these onders which are being
reviewed and evaloaled,

Claims have alsao been lied agains Fiblcon and the Company alleging persanal Infures arsing from the PROCEED Mesh and PROCEFD Veniral Paich
hemnia mesh products, In March 2009, the New lerey Supreme Court entered an order comalidating these coses pending in New Jersey as an MCL in
Atlantic Courty Superior Cour. Adiditional cases have been (iled in various federal and stace cours in the Ulnived States, and in jurisdicbons ousbde the
Linlied Siaies,

Etlsitm and the Company alss have hieen subject io claims Tor personal Injaries arising Trom the FROLENE Polyprmpyleae Hemla Systiem. In January
202, the Mew Jersey Supreme Court created an MCL in Abantic County Superior Court to handie such cases, Cases invalving this produc have also been
[l i oaher Toderal and stave cowns in the Unined Saes.

I Octaber 2022, an agreemant in principle, subject 1o vadous conditions, was reached e settle the majority of the pending cases involving Proceced,
Proceed Ventral Facch, Probene Hemia System and related mubi-layersd mesh produces. Al likgation activizles in the iwo Mew Jersey MOCLs are stayed
pemling resolution of the propesed seiglement. Fusure cases that are Tiked inoibe New Jemey MCLs will be suhject in adocket conpral anders eequiring carly
expert ropoens and discovery requinements.

The I‘.n'rrl]'l.vl:,- has estahlished aconaks with respeat o procluct Habilicy Htigatkon associated with FTHROON PHYSIOMESH Flexihle l'.rlnrrndl.r Mash,
PROCEED Mesh and PROCEED Ventral Paich, and PROLENE Poly propylese Flemia Syaem producs.

Clsims [or personal infury have been made against lamssen Mharmaceuticals, Inc. and the Company arising oul of the wse of RISPERDAL, and related
compoanads, imdicated for the eatment ol schizaphrenda, acule manic or mixed episodes associated with hipodar | disorder and irrftabiliny assectated with
autlsm, Lawsuits primarily havee been Blled In state coans in Peansybvania, Calitoria, and Missourd, Cither actioms ane pesding In sarious ooans in the
United States and Canada, Product Hability lawsuiis continoe w be Bled, and the Company coatlnees io necelve Infosmatlon with respedt to podential costs
andl the anticipated mimber of cases. The Company has sucoessdully defended o rumber of these cases but there have been verdicts against the Company,
i ludling a vendict in October 2009 of $8.0 billion of punitive demages relaved 1o ane plalatill, which the idal jdpe reduced o S68 million in Jamary
2020, In Septembser 2021, the Company enbered into a seoibement In principle with the cnansel represeniing plabniifs in this maner amd in substamially ol
il the vaiistanding cases in she Liniied States, The costs assockaied with chis and other settlemenis ane reflecied in the Company®s acomals,

Claims for persanal injury arsing out of the wse of XARELTO, an oral anticoagulant, have been made agalns lanssen Pharmacewiicals, Inc, (JPI) the
Comgamy; and 11"« collaboration pariper for XARELTCY, Bayer Healihcare AG, and conain of iz afilaes. Cases Gkl in fiederal courts in the United
Stades have heen onganized as a malti-clisimict liggation in te United States District Coun for (he Eastern District of Louisiana, In addition, cases were libed
I sdate courts across e United Staves. Many of e cases were consolidsted Inlo o state mass toet Migation in Philadelphia, Feansylvania and ina
cumitdinated procecding i Los Angebes, Califomin, Class acton lawsiiis also have been filed in Canada. In March 2009, 100 aml the Company annoancid
an agreement in principle 1o setile the XARELTU cases in the Unbied Siates; the seitlement agreement was executed In May 200%, the sciilement became
lnal in December 2019, sl the settlemient wis landed in Jamary 2020, This resolved the majority of cases pending in the United States. The Company
has establishiel sccraals for s costs asociatied with the United States setlement program and XARELTU related product labailicy ligigation,

A sbgnificant naimler of personal nfury ok alliging i tale conses comoer wene madye against Jobnsan 8 Joloson Consumer B s the Congamy
arising ot of the wse of body powders concaining tale, primarily KHNSOMN 'S Baby Powales, The number of these persosal infury lawsaits, filed in seae
andl fedoral couets (o tbe United States as well as outelde of the Unlved States, contlrued o increase,

In ok cases that previously have gone 1o trial, te Company has obdained 2 mimber of defense vendicts, but theee also have been vendicts against the
Commpary, many ol which have been neversed on appeal, T June 2020, dhe Missourd Cowrt of Appeals reversesd in part amd aifimmed In part o July 2015
verdict ol $4.7 billion in nghar v, Tolvson & fodimson, ef al, Mo, ED 207476 (Mo, App. ), neducing the overall sward 10 2.0 billion. An application for
mamsfer of the case o e Missourl Supreme Court
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was sattmeguently denied and in Jue 20210, g petition Do cenisar, secking o review of the figlioo decision by the United Staes Supronie Cowit, wis
denled. Im bure 2021, the Company pakd the award, which, including inicrest, iotaled approximately $2.5 billioa, The facts and croamsaances, including the
terms of the sward, were unboe (o the Tnphmen decision and nod represemtative of other clalms brought agaimt the Company. The Company contimies in
heelivwe that it hus strong legal grousds o contest the other lalc vendicts that i hos apprealad, Notwithstanding the Company s conlidence in the safety of is
Ll products, T certain dreumstanoes the Company has seded cases,

Tit Oetaber 2021, Johnson & Bobnson Consumer Inc, (O1d 13C1) implemented o comporate restniciuring ilve 2021 Corporate Restrociuring). As a pesult ol
thai mestruciuring, O 1HCT ceased to exist and three ew emtlibes wene created: (a) LTL Mamagement LLEC, a Nonh Caroling Hmid liability company
(LTL o Debiord; () Royalty Ao LLEC, a Norh Carolina limied Hability company amd a direct subsidiary of LTL (RAM); and (c) the Debbor's direa
parent, Johnson & Johmon Comemer [nc., 8 New feriey company [Sew LCIL The Dehior recebved cenain af Old J0C1S ssaets and hecame solely
respomaibde for ihe tale-relatid lishiliies of O1d 1RCL inchudieg ol lishilities related in any way to injury or damage, or alleged injury or demage, sessined
o incurred in the purchase or wse ol, or exposune (o, wle, including e contined in any produc, or s e risk of, or responsibility for, any such damage o
Imjury, except for any [abilides lor which the cxcluslve remedy ks provided under a workers' compensatlon staiate or act [ibe Talc-Related Liabilities),

I October 2020, ewwlibstanding the Company's conlidence inibe salety of bis wlc products, tbe Debior fled 8 volundary petidon with ihe Unioel S
Pankruplcy Court for the Westem District af Morth Camlina, Charbote Division, seeking reliel umder chapter 11 of the Bankrupicy Code (the 1TL
Erankruptey Case), As o result of the LTL Bankmpicy Case, thie Nonh Caroling Bankrapiey Coust emered a lemporary restraining onder staying all
litigation against L1 and Old JICIL On Navember 15, 2021, the North Carolina Banknapacy Count confirmed the seope ol the sy, issulng a Preliminary
Injunciivn (1) prohibigng and copsning the commencemient and prosecutlon of talc-related claims agains LTL, Old J1C1, New 1G], the Company, other
of thele corporate affiliates, keniilied retailers, insurance companies, and certain other parties {ihe Prodected Parties). The LTL Danknapicy Case was
transfermed to the United Sstes Bankripley Court for the District of Mew Jersey in Navember 3021, and that court exiended the PEthrough the end of
Febnary 2022, Claimants 1l mations 1o dismiss the LT Bankiepiey Cose and, Tollowing a miliiple day hearing, the New lemey Rankrupley Court
denied those matdons by order issoed In March 2022 The New Jersey Bankrapicy Coun simulianeously isseed annther opber exending the stay as 1o the
Protecied Parties. The clalmanis subsequenily filed notkoes of appeal as to the denlal of the motioss (o dismiss and the exiensbon of the stay, In May 2022,
the Third Circuit Count of Appeals gramied ihe petlibons to appeal, The hriefing and oral argument on the appeal were completed in Seplember 2022, On
lamnary W1, 200278, the Thind Circuil neversed the Renkmiptey Coan’s miling and remasded o the Bankripecy Cort b dismiss the ETL hankrapeey, 1T1L
[t & petition for rebearing on the decision,

While the Mew Jersey Banknapbcy Couts onder effectively stays all of the Compainy s tale-relaled personal injury litigation, LTL s agreed (o il the sty
on a small mumbser of appeals where appeal bomls have been [bed.

The Company has agreed o provile nding 1o LTL foe the payment of amounes the New Jesey Bankmploy Coor detenmines ane owed by 1TL arsd the
establishment of o 52 billion trust in fustherance of this purpose, The Company has established a reserve for apprmocdmately $2 billion in connection with
e afcremnentioned tnest. ARer and s s sl of e filimg of the LT Baskmnapoy Case, the l'.ﬂmpmy e=consalidsied LT, which i a related party. Thie
Impact of the de-consalidaion is ol material v the Company. The parties have mot yet reached o nesalion of all tale matters inbhe ETL Bankrugicy Case,
andl the Compaay is unabbe 1o estimate the possible boss of range of ks beyond the amoust scomied

M class action advancing clabms relating to indusirial tale was [iled against the Company and others in New lerscy stabe court in May 2022 (ihe Edley Class
Action). The Edbey Class Action asserts, among other ithings, thai the Company froudulently defended past ashestos personal infary lowsuits arksing from
exposure b Industrial talc mined, milled, and manufaciared before Japuary &, 1989 by the Company's then whaolly owned subsidiary, Windsor Minerals,
I, which ks curremly o debtor in the Imerys Baskraptcy describeed hereatier. The Company removed the Bdey Class Action 1o lederal court in the
IWstrict of Mew Jersey, In July 2022 Imerys fled a motion im the Imerys Bankrapicy o stay the Edley Class Action, which was denied in Aogust 2022 In
Chomrer JOEL, dhe Company e aodons 1o disnsiss anid i deny cenilivathen of a class o porsoe De Edley Cliss At n die New Jemey Distrbo, Con,

In February 2009, the Company s talc supplies, lmerys Tale America, Inc. and two of Rs affillates, Imerys Tale Vermont, Inc. and Imerys Take Canada, Inc.
[cnllectively, Imorys) filed a \rglnrua:rg,r petition ender chapter 11 of the Undicd Staies Code {the Banknuptoy Code) in the Unlted Stabes I-!.1.|1l|.r|.||'m;_l|r i
Tor e Dkstrict of Delaware (Imerys Bankmupdcy ). The Imerys Banknaptcy relabes o lmerys's podemtial Bability for personal injury Trom exposane o aloam
povder sold by rserys. In s bankrupiey, bierys alleges it his clabins. agalmst the Company lor indemnification ol dights w jein insarance proceads. In
My 2020, Imerys, is parent Imerys 5.0, the Tort Claimants' Commbiee (TCC), and the Puture Claimants Representative (FUIRY {callectively, the Man
Propenentsh libed their Plan of Reongankeation {he lan) and the Disclosure Statement related
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lereta, The Flan Progusscnts have since (ilad mmereus ansendients o the Plan asd Disclosume Statemens, A beaiog on the Plan Proponent’s Disdlisene
Statement was held n Ranuary 2021, and the Count endeeod an onler approving the Disclosure Statemen, albowing Imerys to procoed with soliciting voles
o the Plan

I March 2210, the Company vobed iooreject the Plan aml opted ol of the consensual relesses o the Plan, In Apail 20210, the Plan Froponenis announced
il Plan had receives] e reguisite numiber of acoepting voles 1o confinm the Plan, The Company challenged certsin impropricties with respect o portiom
of the voue and soight o disqualily those voles. In October 2021, the Banknipicy Coarl issued a niling deeming thousands of votes as withdrawn

I October 20210, Imerys cancelled the conlirmation hearing on ithe Plan. Imerys, the TCC, the FCR, cerialn of Imerys's insuners, and ceraln pankes inoibe
Lyprus Mines chapler 11 case (described bekvw) [oollectively the Mediation Parties) agroed teoengage in mediation. The mest recent ierm of the mediation
enched o Precember 31, 2022

In July 2021, Imerys commensed an adversary procecding agalmt the Company in the Inerys Bankrupicy (the Imerys Adversary Proceeding]. The Imerys
Adversary Proceeding soughl, amueg other things, certain declarations with respect 10 the: indemmi lication obligatiom allegedly owed by the Company o
Imerys. The TUL and FUR simultapeousty filed o motion for tem porary restraining order and preliminasy Infunction seeking to enjoin the Compeny [rom
unidergoing a corporate restreciuring, that wouald separate the Company's e labilices Trom i oiber assets, The Bankrapcy Coun demdod ibe motion. The
Crmpany thereafver Tied a motion w dismiss the adversary proceeding. The Bankmipicy Count has not yet decided the motbon o dismiss. n Ocioher 2021,
the Company filed a Notice of Rankruptey Filing and Stay of Procecdings darilying that the auiomalic gay arising upan the (iling of the LT1. Bankmupicy
Case should apply o the Imerys Adversary Froceeding.

It June 2020, Cypris Mines Corporation and s parent, Cypoas Amax Minersls Company (CAMOC) (togiether, Cyprss), which had cwied ceraln Imerys
talc mines, filed an slvesary procecding against the Company and Imerys inibe Imerys Bankrupicy seeking a declaration of indemnity rights under certain
conimgctual agreemeents (the Cyprus Adversary Proceeding), The Company denles ssch indemnification ks owed, and filled a moglan fo dismiss the adversary
complaing. In Febmiary 20210, Cypoos filed o volumiary pedltion for rellef unider chapéer 10 of the Banknipicy Code anad Tiled bis Dischsune Statement and
Plasm [the Cyprus Plank. The Cypriss Flan comtemplates o setilement with foenys amd talc claimants whene Cypros would maeke a monetsry contribution ioa
trast established under the Imerys Plan in exchange for an injunction agaimi b claims assenied agatnst itand certain protecbed parties. Cyprus has sot yet
sought approval of its Disclosure Siatemens and Man. Cyprus, along with tbe TCC and FCR appointed in the Cypros chapter 11 case, have agnead w
|'|.'u1|r1|utn in the mckstion wiih the Mediaton Farties, I Ocinher 202, ibe Company Aled a Motoe ol ﬂaul'.runry Filing and Sﬂa:.l of Priceedinps
clarifying that ihe amomatic stay arising wpon the Niling of the LT1. Bankrupecy Case should apply wo the Cyprus Advessary Proceeding. In June 2022,
Cyprus commaenced an Adversary Procecding in s chapier 11 case seeking an order enforcing the automatic stay by enjoining parties lrom commencing or
conlinuing “tabe-related elaims™ apaiinst CAMC, In Bupe 2022, the coun enlensd o preliminary injuncion onder enjoining daimants from pasuing tabe-
related elidmes agaimse CAME through Jasuary 2023,

In February 2021, several of the Company's Insumers invodved n coverage Bidgation in New' lemsey Staie Cour (the Coverage Action] filed a motbon in the
Imenys Dankruptcy Court procecdi king a detcrmination that the asomasic sty does not apply bo the Coverege Adcibon and, in the alicmative, secking
reliel from the automatic sty 1o allow Ih:ru ta continue io liigate their claime in the Coverage Action. In March 2021, the Company Tiled a limited
risponse and reservalion of Aghts with respect 1o the motion. The Count entered an agreed ander medifying the sty 1o allew the linigation in the Coverape
Actlon o continue, In Cxonher 621, LT filed a Notice of Bankrapicy Filing amd Stay of Froceedings clari fying thai the automatic sty arising upon the
[Himg of the LT]. Banksuptcy Case should apply 1o ihe Coverage Action. In March 2022, ibe New Jersey Bankrupicy Count ruled that the L1 awlomasiic
stay applied o the Coverage Action.

I February 2008, 4 socurities cliss action Lol was Tiled against the Company and certain named officers in the Uniled States Districe Courl for the
Istrict ol Mew dersey, alleging tha the Company violated the federal securitbes lows by Lailing o disclose alleged asbestis contamination in body powders
comilaining Lalc, prisnarily JOHMNSOMNS Baby Powder, amd that purchasers of the Cumpany®s shares sulferad bosses i oo mesult, MPaimtill s soeking damages,
I April 2019, the Company moved ge dismiss the complalng and bricling on the motlon was complete as of Auguss 2014 In December 20149, the Count
denied, in part, the matinm (o dismiss. In Manch 2020, the Company d thi ¢ nlai |.|1..|'|.'|'||il 2021, hl'll.-l'lng o Plaindbll s minglon for class
cerification wis completed. In dudy 2021, the Company liled o notice of supplemental suthority in opposition o Plaintidf s motion for cless cedilication,
anad Plaimi(1 filed o response. In Decemsber 2021, ihe Conpany filed a motion w supploment the class centificuton recand, and in Fanwsary 2002, Pladnil
responded. In March 2022, LTL asked the Mew lersey Bankrupiey Couart (o sty the sequritbes class acion, In April 2022, Defendants [lled a second motlon
to supplement the class cenification rcond. In May 2022, the Mew Jersey Bankrupicy Court entered an order staying the secarties class action, Plainiff
Tas appealed the Bankmiptoy Coun's onber,
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A Lt wias bnoughn agatiost B Company in il Superion Cour of California for e Cooy of San Dicgo alleging violaiom of Calilmis's Consuie
Legal Remasdies At {CLRA) relatieg i JOHNSON'S Baby Powider, |n that lawsuly, the phainalifs allege thet the Company violated the CLRA by Falling o
prewvile reguired Proposition 65 warnings, In July 2009, the Company fled a notice of rerval o the Unlsed States Distiict Cownt for the Southern Dhserice
ol Caaliformia and plairtifls filed a scond ameoded complaing shorly therealter. In Oclobes 2009, the Company moved oo dismiss the second amended
coamlaing for Tailure us seste o claim upos which eellel may be gronied. In response (o these motbors, plalsifls (el o i smesded complaing. In
December 2009, the Company moved to dismiss the thind amended complain Tor fallure 1o state a claim wpon which reliel may be granted, In Apeil 20020,
the Count gramied the motkon 1o dismiss bug granted leave to amend, In May 2020, plaintiffs Aled 2 Fousth Amended Complaing but irdicaied that they
would be filing o motion for leave o file s Gilth amemded complaing, Plalntills filed a Filb Amended Complaio in August 2000, The Company maveeed b
disandss the Filth Amended Complaint for fablure 1o <ate a claim upon which reliel may be granved. In January 2021, the Court Bsued @ Onder and opiaion
ruling in the Company™s fovor snd grating the motion (o dismiss with prejudice. 1n Pebrary 2021, Maimiffs filed a Notice of Appeal with the Ninth
Clrenly, Malmiiifs filed their opening belef in July 2020, The compary filed iis responsive briel in Cosber 2021, In Ocioher 2021, Matice of Suggestion of
Bankrupicy was filed with the Minth Ciroult, A bankruplcy stay was imposed in December 2021, and the Coart held the reply deadline in abeyance. In
Febnaary 2022, thee Nankruptey Court bsued an arder exeending the stay, The appeal continues o be held i sbeyance, with the Company being requined i
Tile periofic satus updates.

I sddition, the Company haes received inguides, subpoenss, and reguess o prodoce documsenis reganding tale mamters and the LTL Bankrupley Case from
varioas povermental auiborities. The Company has produced documents and responded 1o ingairkes, and will contimie w conperate with govemment
Impairies,

Claims for persanal infury have heen made against a nember off Johmson & Johnson companies, incleding Japssen Fharmacesticals, Inc. and the Compamy,
arising ol af the we of INVOKANA, a presoription medication indicated o improve glycemic contrd in adulis with Type 2 diabetes. In December 2016,
larwsaiins Tl in Texleral couns in the Uiniied Sates were ongnized os 8 milii-0isder Ragstion i the Unbied Sites Diseiden Coun Toe the Disises of New
Tersey, Cases have also been Thed In siate couns, Class acton lawsuis have been (bed in Canada, Produo Habiliy lawsuits contime oo be filed, aml the
Company contlinues o recelve informiation wiih respect io potenilal cosis and the amibclpated numbser of cases. The Company has seitled or otherwlse
resalved many of the cases and clalms In the United States and the costs assoclated with these setilements are reflecied in the Company s acorals.

Clame e persanal infury have heen made agains a number of bobnsom & Jabnaon companies, inclsding larssaen Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and the Company,
arising oul of the wse of ELMIEON, 2 prescription medication sdicaved for the nelief of bladder pain or discomiort associared with interstitial eystitis.
These lowsults, which albege that ELMIRON comributes 1o the development of permanent retinal injury snd viskon loss, have been filed I both state and
leberal costirts aceoss the Uniied S In December 2020, Lawsabts filed (s Federal coars in the United Seates, including putative class agtion cases seebdng
medical maniloring, wene organieed as a multi-district ligation in the Uniied Scaies Districs Coort for she Disirict of New lersey. In addition, cases have
heen (il in various siale courts of Mew leraey, which have been coondinated i a mulil<ounty ltigation in Bengen Counly, & well as e Courd of
Comaman Pleas in Philadelphia, which have been coonlinsted and gromied mass et designation. In sddifion, three class sction lowsiaits have been fled in
Canada, Prodkact liahiliny lowsaits continue o be Tiled, and the Company contimies o receive information with respect 1o potential costs and the anticipaed
namber of cases. The Company has established aconuals for delense anid Indemnlty cosis assoclated with ELMIBON nelsied product lishilisy lidgation

Llaims for personal injury have been made against Johnson asd Johnson Censumer Inc, (MCH, arising out ol the wse ol 1Y LENUOL, an over-the-counies
i ol beatiom, allegiogg that prenatal exposane o scetaminophen bs asoclaind with e devehsment of auslsan specinam dsonder amdior atiemtlon-
delicivhyperactivity disorder. In Oitoher 2022, lawsaits filed in federal cowrs in the United States were organized as 3 mubli=district ligstion in the United
States District Court Tor the Soulem Disrko of Mew Yok, In addition, ewsaits have been (iled in Conada. Product |Lﬂ:l||.|j' lawsisies enntlniee 1o be (bed,
anal the Company combnses w recelve Information with respect to patentlad costs and the anticipabed number of cases, The Company his estallished
avcrusls for defense cosis assoclaved with TY LENCRL refaied prodact lahiliny ggasion.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Ceriain subsidiaries ol the Company are subjed, from time 1o Ume, o legad proceedings and claims relabed s patent, rademark and other imellectual
eropeny imastbers arising out of thelr busimesses. Many of these matters involve challenges i the coversge anilfor validity of the petents oo vadous prodocts
anal illegatbors thiat cerwain of the Company s products infringe thee posenes of thind paries. Althouigh these subsidiaries belleve that tey have substantial
delenses bo these challenges and allegations with respect 1o all significant patents, there can be no assurance as 10 the outcome of these matters. A loss s
any of these cases coald adversely alfect the abilizy of these subsidiaries o sell thelr products, reslt in loss of sales due o less of market exclasivity,
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reapuine v paymient ol post damages ol laiane neyaltics, snd may resoll oo som-cash impairmest change Tor ainy associated imangibile assel. Signilican
matters are described helow,

MeilTech

I At 2018, Inwitive Segical, Inc, and Iniaitive Sergical Operations, Inc. (collectively, Intuiiive) Tiled a patent infrirgemem suil againg Auris Health,
I { Auris) in Ulnited Ststes Distrlct Coart for the District of Deloware. In e subl, ntuitive alleges williul infringement of 1.5, Patent Mo, 6,522 906

[ H06); B BLOGE O56); 8,042 447 {"447); and 9,452,276 ('276) based on Aurds” MONARCH Mlatform. Auris (iled 1PR Petitions with the 1.5, Patest and
Trademark QTlce (USFTO) regarding the 056, 347, "276 amd 906 paienis, I December X008, the LSPTO denbed meview of the 056 patent. 1n Fehrary
anel March 020, the LISEFIO instbuged review of the *447, aml 906 patests and denbed review of the "276 pabent, In March 2020, the DS IO mled that the
challenped claims o the “447 aod 904 patents ane mot invalicl. Auris appealed, sl in |'|.|I'i| 2022, the Uniied Staies Courl of Appeals For the Pederal
Circuit vacated the decision that the '447 patent wias nol invalid and remanided the decision go the LSFFIO (or further review. In May 2022, the United
States Cownt of Appeals for the Federal Ciroain confiomes] che naling than claim 53 of the "S06 patent wis oo invalid, vacated the decision that the
remalning clalnes of the “Si6 patent were nol invalid and remanded the dectsbon o the USFIO for further review. Awrls flled a request for recxamination of
tha *2M5 pakent bn November 2021, and in Ranaary 2022, the USFTO granted dhe reexaminaton regquess, Tral is scheduled w begin in Sepiember 20235

I August 2019, RS0 Spine LLC (RSB Spine} filed a paient infringement sult agalnst DelPuy Symikes, Inc. in the United States Disirict Coun for the
Mistrict ol Delaware. In Cctober 2018, RSB Spine amended the complaing i change the mamed defendants 1w DePay Syntbes Sales, Ine. and DePuy
Synthes Products, Inc. In the suil, RSE Spine alleges willful infringement of U5, Paten Mo, 6,904,234 (" 234) aml 9,713,537 ("537) by ome or more of the
following produces: FERO-P-VA Spacer, ZERO-1* Spacer, ZERO- NATURAL Plate, SYNFIX LR Spacer and SYMNFIX Evolulon System. RSH Spine
secks manetory damages and infunceive reliel, In Movember 2009, the sult was consalidated for pee-oial parposes with other patent infringement sales
hraugha by RSB Spine inthe Unived States Distirio Coun for the Déstrict of Delawane against Life Spine, Inc., Wedacta LISA, Inc,, and Precision Spine,
I In June 2022, DePuy (led potentially digpositive summary jsdgment motions that the " 234 pagent is invalid as anticipstod and the "537 patent s mot
Infringed. In Movember 2022, the Court gramed Delfuy's summary judgment motioe that the 234 patent b5 invalil e aoticipaed and denled Defay's
miion that the "537 patent is not inlringed. In December 2022, the Court conducted a jury trial on the *537 pates where the jury found that the *557 patem
wias mod libewally Infringged, bus chat DePuy infringed under the doctrine af equivalents (DOE), The Jury awanded RSB $12 million in damages subfect in
eevat=trlaal ekl o aned appeals.

In October 2020, Rasmussen Instrmments, 1LC [Rasmussen) Nied @ patent infringement suit against DePuy Synthes Produces, Inc., DePuy Symthes Sales,
I and Medical Device Basiness Services, Inc. (oollectively, DePuy) in the United Sestes District Court Tor the Disorictof Massadhmeins. Rasmussen
alleges that DePuy willlully infringes U5, Patent Nos 9,492, 180 ("180) and 10,517,582 ( 583) by making snd selling the Aunune Balanced Sizer. In April
200, Rasmussen sought permissbon o amensd i infringement comemtbons i allege that DiePay also willfally infringes the *5S808 patene by making amld
selling the Atune Balancing Blocks, Rasmussen seeks treble damages for williul infrimgement. Trial concluded in March 2022, with the jury meiuming a
verdict in fovor of Rasmmeaen, finding willfal infringement of the 100 patent, aml awarding damsgies in the amount of $20 millisa. DePuy challengel the
erdict in its post-trial imutions. In July 2002, & hearing was beld on e post-trial motions,

Bhasmaceniical
Lidgation Against Filers of Abbreviatied New Dnig Applications (ANDAs)

T folbosling, summariees lwsulis thie Company ‘s subsidiaries have brought against generkc compandies that hayve filed ANDAS with the U5, FODA o
undemtaken similar regulalory prodesses outside of the Unbted Statces, seeking 1o market generic forms of products sold by various subsidiarics of the
Company prior 1o expiration of the applicable patents covering those products. Thise ANDAS typically include allegations of nonsinfringement and
Imvalichiny of the spplicable patents. The Bnter Pares Review (IPH) process with the USFTO, crestied usiker the 2011 America Invents Act, [ also being ised
Al ke by geseiic companies in conjunction with ANDAs and lowsaits, o challenge the applicable patents. 1o the event e Companys subsidisics ac
nat ssccessful Iman acilom, or the avinmatkc staiuiory sty of the ANDAs cxplres before the Unlied Siates Disirict Court milings are ohiained, the generle
companics Involved would have the al1|.i|l1l(, wpon .1|1me.1 ol the 1.5, FIOA, 1o Intrmdace generic versloms ol ihelr products i the marked, resulting kn the
patential for substontial market shane and revenue bsses Tor the applicable products, and which may mesull in a noo-cash mpairment charge ioany
assaCiated intangible asset, ln addition, (rom time o dme, te Company s subsidiaries may setle dese types of actons and soch senlements con nvolve

the intreduction of generic versions of the producs at issuc o the market prior w ile expiration of te rdevasi patenis,
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EYTIGA

Eeginning in January 2008, lonssen Inc,, Jonssen Oncology, nc., and BTG Inermnational Lid, (colloaively, Jamssen) iniiowsd Swnements of Clain undier
Sectlon & of the Patested Medicines (Notkoe of Compliance) Regulatbons in Canada against Apotex Inc. {(Apotex ), Phamascienoe Isc, (Phamasclenc) and
v, Hedidy's Laboratories Lol and D, Reghdy s Laborstonies, Inc. (oollectively, THEL) in respomse (o these paribes’ liling of Abbreviated New Drag
Subimissions {ANDS) seeking approval o market generic versions of ZYTIGA belfure tlse expiration of te Canadian Patent Mo_ 2 661,422 (422} The tial
in these actions concluded in November 2030, and the Counl issued a decisbon halding the "422 patent invalid In Januery 2021 In Febrisey M21, lansien
appraled thee decision. The appeal hearing 100k place in Seplember N2, In November 2002, lanssen's appeal was dismbssed.

I April 2021, Juby 2021 and April 2022 respeatively, Apotex, DRL and Fharmescience indtiated Statements of Claim under Section 8 of the Fatented
Pzl s o Nt e 0 l.'.um||'|l.|m.1.':| Regulatiom agalmd Jamssen sevking damayes in respect of ibuse p.mlr.m e il'!].liuq b, Trials uﬂdlm: Apuies
angl DAL are scheduled for June 2029, A trial date for the Phamascience action has not been set

XARELTD

Eseginning in March 2021, Janssen Pharmacewticals, Inc. (FF) and Bayer Pharma AG and Bayer AG (oollectively, Bayer) filed pagent infringement lawsuits
I thiee Ulndied Stastes Disericy Court Tor the District of Delaware against o mimber of generic companies who liled ANDASs seeking approvial i market
generic versions of XARELTO (L5 mg) before explration of UL5, Paterd Mo 10,828,200 310), The following generic drgg companies are namid
delendants: Dr, Reddy's Laboratorkes, Inc. and D Rechly's Labogagories, Lul; Lupin Limited and Lupin Fharmacewticals, Inc.; Taro Phammacewtical
Ditchistries . and Tam Pharnaceuticals LS. AL, Inc.: aml Teva Pharmacenticals USA, Inc. In Eiclober B2 1, ibe courd comsalidated the Delsware Lywsaiils
T all parpeses, including idal. Tral for the consalidatel Delaware lawsults 15 schidualed o begln in May 2025

T duly 2021, 50 and Bayer (iled & potent infringoment laswsuin in the United States Disericn Court for the Nenbem Distrio of Wess Vieginia sgains Mylan
Phammacewticals Inc. and Mylan Inc. {collectively, Mylan} which filed an ANIDA secking approval io market a generbe version of XARELTO (2.5 mg)
helane cxpiratbon of the "1 patenl. In August 2020, 1P and Bayer filed a motion before the United Staies Judicial Panel on Muolidistrict Litigation (ihe
ML panel) 1o cramster this lawsult bo the Unlied Seaies Districn Court for the Districn ol Delaware (or coonfimsted and consallbeted precdal proceedings. In
Decemnber 2021, the MIDL panel granted the motion In Aupast 2022, sfter receiving a secomd potice letter from Mylan regarding the samse ANDA, IP1 and
Erayer (1bed a second patent lafringement lassull In the Unbed Stases District Count Tor the Nosthern Disiriol of 'Wess Vinginla agalnst Mylan, s September
J022, My lam mowved in dismiss the seconil lowsuln, In September 2008, the MIFL paned tanslermed the secomd lawsuli io thee Disirict of Dielawane, No irial
date hurs been set for these two lawsalis, In October 2022, Mylan voluntarily withdrew (s motion t dismiss

In cach of these lawsuies, 1M and Ihayer are secking an cnder enjoining defendants from marketing thelr generc versbon of XARELTC (2.5 mg) belone the
expiration of the '310 patenl. In Janaary 200, the court ssued an onder staying the lowsabs uniil after a Ginal writlen decibon is ssued in the Inter Partes
Hewiew prscoedings on the =100 patent

I Felwuary 2022, Mylan Pharmaceuticals Inc. liked o Petition for Inter Panes Review (IR} with the United Stages Fatent and Trademark Odlice [USIFTO),
sewking 1o imvadidate the 300 patent. In Awgust 2022, the Patent Trial and Appeal Board (FTAB) issued o decision imstimting MR

In Sopremsher 2022, Invalien Pharmaceuticals, Inc, filed a Petition for IPR with the USTFTO seeking o invalblate the *210 patent, Also in September 2022,
Teva Pharmacmdicals LSA, Inc. filed & Petition for IPR with the VISPTO seeking 1o invalidate the 500 patent. In October 2022, the FTAR bsoed deciions
Insaituting IPR in Both proceedings and joining theim with the cadier IPR proceeding fled by Mylan Pharmaceuticals Inc.

In September 2022, 111, Bayer, and Bayer Intellectual Propery GmbEL {BTP) initiated a patent infringement lasesuit in the Uniled Ststes District Cour for
the Disariot of Mow ersey againat USW Private Limived (U5 ) whea filed an ANDA seeking approval i market generic versdons of XARELTO (2.5 mg
10 mg, 15 mg, and 20 mg) before the cxplration of the "310 pasent and 105, Patena Mo, 9,539,008 (2 08). 1M, Bayer, anid BIP are seeking an onder enjolning
LISV from marketing its generic vemsion of XARELTO(2.5 mgh hefore the expiration of the 310 patent, and iis generic versims of XARELTU{10 mg. 15
. and M mig ) beslore the ll'}irdlllm of the "210 atent. T Moremndier HE2 jlse MO pl:u.'| irarsfereed ibils law it to the Unied St Disrict Courd fo
the Dristrict al Delawane,

b |
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Ui Sogennber 20022, 111, Bayer AG, ansd BIF indiieied o paeal infoimgement Lawsui i the Unied Stans Distrscn Coust Gor ibe Districg of New Jorsey agaiisl
Mankind Pharma Limiied (Mankind]), whi Obed an ANDA secking approval in market generlc verslons of XARELTO {10 mg, 15 mg, and 200 mg] belfore
the explraibon of the "2 1L patent. TP, Payer A, and DIP are secking an onder enjaining Mankind from marketing its generic vemslons of XARELTO belore
the expiration of the "2 1 palenl

I Mavember 2022, FPE, Bayer, and BIP initisied o patent infrimgement kiwesait in tle Tnived Seates Distriet Court for the Districy of Delawane sgaima Epic
Pharma, LLC (Epicl whe [lsd an ANDA secking approval 1o market generic versions of XARELTO (25 mg, 10 mg. 15 mig and 20 mg) belore the
eaplration of the *310 patent and the *218 paient, 1], Bayes, and BIP are seeking an onder enjoining Epic from maskeiing its geoere version of XARELTO
(2.5 mg) before the expiration of the “310 patent, apd §is generic versions of XARELTO (10 mg, 15 mg, amd 20 mg) belore (be cxpimation of the "218
padend,

It December 2022, 171 anad Bayer initiated a patent infringement lawsuit in the United Stdes District Couan for the Distriet of Delaware against Aposes Inc.
and Apotex Corp, {collectively, Apotead, whio Tiled an ANDA seeking approval to market generc versions of XARELTO LS mg) before the expiration of
tha * 5100 patene, I amd Hayer are secking an order enjodning Apogex from markeling lis generic version of XARELTO (2.5 mg) before the expiration of
the B0 pasend,

CHFSLIMTT

I My 2024, Janssen [nc, {Janssea) and Actelion Pharmacewsticals Lid (Acielion) initioted a Seatement of Claim under Section & of the Pasented Medicines
[Motice al Compliance) Regulations againa Sambos Camada loc. (Samdoe) in Canada in respanse oo Sandoe®s Filing of an ANIYS secking approval w0 markel
a generic verslon of OPSUMIT 10 mg, belone the explatian of Canadian Pateot Mo, 2653, 770 (7700 Sandoe stipalstied 1o inlfdagemest of te '770 patem.
Trial agaimse Sandoe om the Bsue of validity concluded in February 2022, aml in May 2022, the Court issued & decision in favor of Janssen and Acielion. In
Tune 2002, Samdoe appealed the declsion.

I May 2000, Janssen and Actelion initlated a Staternent of Clakm undier Section b ol the Patented Medicines (Notice of Compllance] Hegulations against
Apodien Inc, (Apotex]) in Canals In respose 1o Apotes's (ling of an ANDS secking approval (o market a generic vemion of QPSUMTT 10mg, bedore the
expiration of the '770 patenl. Apotex stipalsted w validity of the *770 pstent. Frial agaimt Apotes an the ssoe af infringement concluded in March 2022,
andl in May 20X the Coun lssued a decislon i favor of Jarssen and Actelbon, In lune 2022, Apotex appealed the decision,

T Jamuary 2028, lanssen and Actelion iditaed o Saement of Clalm under Sectom 6 ol ihe Paenied Medicines (NMoilce ol Compliance) Reguluibons
apsnst Generdc Medical Panners Doe, (GME) i Canada in response 1o G0 (iling ol an ARNDS seeking approval o markes @ generic vemion of
CHFSLIMATT 10 mgg, belone the expiration of Canadian Paiend Mo, 2,652,770 and 2,621,270

In wach of these Canadian actions, Janssen and Actelion are secking an order enjoining the delendants from mariu.-.llng ibeir generic wemslons of DPSLUMIT
helnme thes expiration of (ke relevant palents.

I Jamuary 2023, Acielion Pharmaceuticals Lud and Actelion Pharmacewtbcals US, Inc. (oollectively, Aceeliony inldased a pavent infringement lawsuil in the
United Staves Dismiol Coun for the Diswrbol of Mew Jesey against Sun Phamaceatical Industries Limited and Sun Mharmaceutical Indusiries, [ne.
(ondlectively, Sum) whis filed an ANDA secking approval o market a generic version of OFSUMIT belore the expiration of U5, Pabent Nos, 7,094,781
(7R and 10,946 015 {"015). Actelion is seeking an onler enjoining Sun fosm marketing thelr generic versions of OPSUMTT belone the expitation af the
Tikl and "015 patents.

INVEGA SLISTEMNMA

It Jamuary 2018, lanssen Pharmaceatica MY anid Bopssen Phanneceuticals, Inc. (collectively, lanssen) initiaed a pasent infringement lawsialt in the Ulnived
States [Nserict Court for the District of New Tersey agalnst Teva Pharmacewicals USA, Inc. (Teva), which filed an ANDA seeking sppeoval to marked a
enerle versiom ol INVEGA SUSTENNA hefore the explration of LS. Faient No, 5,459,906 | *906), Trial concluded in Ocieher 2000, In (ioher 2021, the
court isssed o decision in Janssen's [avor. Teva he appealed the deciaion.

I Awmpuest 2019, Janssen initisted 2 patent nfringement lawsuit in the United States District Court for the District of Mew Jersey againg Mylan
Lahoraticies Limitesd (Mylan), shich filed an ANDA seeking approval s market a generic version ol INVEGA SUSTENNA belore the expiration of ihe
" patent. Purssant 1o anagreement by the parties, judgmest in favor of lasssen was eatered in December 2021, Mylan appealed,
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I Erecembsir 2019, Ranssen initiated @ pasent infringoment lawsuit in die Uniied Sues Destoicn Courts Gor the Esariaos of New Jemsey and Delawire agaimg
Phamasclence Inc., Mallinckrodi PLEC and Specpx LLE (colbecibvely, Phamasclence]), which lbed an ANDA socking approval io market a generbc verslon
ol INVEGA SUSTENNA belore the explration of the "906 paent.

In November 2021, Fanssen initlated a patent mfringement lawesait in the Undied States Districe Cowrd for the District of Delaware agaiest Tolbmar, Inc.,
Tudmar Therapeutics, Inc, Telmar Phennscenticals, Toc. sl Tolmaer Holdimg, Inc. foollectively, Tolmar), which (iled an ANDA seekiog appeoval 1o marke
o generic version of INVEGA SUSTENNA before the expiration ol the "#6 patent. A trial is sehedualed o begin in October 2023,

In Febwaary 2022, Janssen initlated a patent infringemend Bawsubi in the United S2aies. Disibo Coun for the Disirkol of New Jersey against Acosnd
Healthcare, Inc., Accord Healthcore, L, and Intes Pharmaceuticals, Lul, foollectively, Accond ), whe liled am ANIDA seeking approval to markel a geseric
werslon of INVEGA SUSTENMNA befone the expiration of the "6 [riend,

In cach of these L%, lawsulis, J, Is secking an onder enjaini "ll'.l' lelendant Iram markeiing a generic version of INVEGA SUSTENNA bedare the
expiration of the relevant patents.

It Februxry 2008, lanssen Inc. and Jomssen Pharmaceutics NV (oollectively, Jamsen Canada) iniliated o Staemen of Claim ander Section & of the
Patented Medicines (MNotioe of Compliance) Regulations against Teva Canada Limited {Teva Canstla) in respoise w Teva's (ling of an ANDS seeking
approval tis market a generke verslon of INVEGA SUSTENNA belose the explmtion of Canadian Patent Mos, 206,629 ("R20) and 2655915 (*315)
Tanssen subsoquently discontinued the portion of the kawsuil relating to the "62% patest. In May 2020, the Canadian Federal Court jssaed a Public Jdgment
andl Hasons declaring thal Teva Canmla®s genevic versbon of INVEGA SUSTENRNA, il appeoved, would infringe corain claims of the " K15 pabent and that
the clalms of 1k "235 patent ape mal ivalil Teva Canals appealed.

I Movembser 2020, Ranssen Cansda inbised o Sutemend of Claim under Section 6 of the Palenied Moedicines {Mothoe of Compliance] egubations agalmsg
Phammasclence Inc. In response 1o Phamasclence Inec,"s filing of an ANDS seeking approval i market a generc verslon of INVEGA SUSTENNA belore
the explraibon of the “135 patenl. A semmary trial on the issue of infringement ok place in November 2020, In Janwary 2622, the Court isswed a decision
In Hawor ol Ranssem on the ssue ol infringement. Phemoscience (iled an sppeal. In March 20022, Janswn Cansda nblaied a Stsiement of Clalm ander
Section 6 of the Patented Medicines (Notice of Compliance) Regulations againg Plamascience in nesponse o Pharmascience’s liling of an ANDS secking
approval 1o market a genersc vershan of an addithons] sirength of INVEGA SUSTENNA before the expiration of the *X35 patent. The actlon has been
coasalibated with the Movember 20640 actlon lor erial, which ok place In July 2022, In Aogust 2028, the Count ssaed a declshon finding the clabms of
Ahe" B35 patent are not lavalid, Phanmuscience appeabed.

I Jn.rnm.rr 2021, lanssen Canagla inbiiaied a Statement of Claim wender Secuon G of the Patenicd Medicines (fhotice nl'[:nmpllmn:] Kegulations against
Apodex Inc. (Apobex) in respanse to Apotex’s filing of an ANIIS (original ANDS) seekirgg spproval to market 2 generic version of INVEGA SUSTEMNNA
e e expdration of the 135 pavent. A sammary i6al on the issoe of inldngement ik place in December 2021, In Ranasry 222, the Comirn Bssmsl o
deciskon in fawvor of fanssen on the issue of infringement, Apotex appealed,

I Jume 2022, Janssen Canada initared Ssacments of Claim wnder Section B of the Petemed Medicines (Notloe of Complionoe) Regalations agaiest Apobes
In response 1o Apotex's Motkoe of Allegaibon of Irvalidity sith respeci to the original ANDS and m respomnse (o Apocex s Tiling of an ANDS secking
approval o market a generic verslon of an additiona] sirength of INVEGA SUSTENNA before the expiration of the *Y15 patent. A trial bs scheduled 1o
hegin in March 2024,

I each ol these Canadian Liwsailts, Jomssen Canada §s socking an onler enfobning the delendant [rom markeling o generic vesion of INVEGA SUSTENNA
hefare the expiraiion of ibe relevant patents,

INVEGA TRINAA

In September 20000, Janssen Fharmaceuticals, Ing, lanssen Pharmacewtica NV, aml lanssen Rescarch & Developmens, LELC {collectively, Lanssen) inltlased
a patent infringement Lawsuit in the United States District Court for the District of Mew Jemey aiainsg Mylan Laborstories Limioed, Mylen Phanmmaceuticals
I, aml Mylan Instimtional LLC {eollectively, Mylan). Mylan flibed an ANDA weeking approval o market generc versions of INVEGA TRINEA (546
i) hefore explration of 1.5, Paten Mo, 10, T00659 ('R93) relating 1o INVEGA TRINAA (546 mal.

I Aumpust 2021, Janssen initsted & paten mfrngement lowsuit in the United States Distdct Court foe the Disoricy of MNew Jersey agalns Mylan, Mylan Dled
an ANDA secking approval v markel geveric versboms of INVEGA TRINZA (819 mg) before expiration of the "65 patent.

93
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T Chetobeer 2021, Laissen initisted a potent infringenvent lawsait in e Uliied Sestes Distrdct Coort Tor the Distict of New Jersey agains Mylan Mylan
Tiled an ANDA seeking spproval 1o market generic vensbons of INVEGA TRINAA (273 mg aml 410 mg) hefore expirstion of te 6593 patent.

Ir Jamiary 2022, the coun consolldated the three cases inte the case lled in Seprember 2048 In each ol ibese comsnlidated cases, lanssen ks secking an
wdder enjoimirg Mylan from marketing s generic versions of INVEGA TRINZA before expiration of the 693 patem, Trial was, conducted in Movember
anad December 2022, and post-trial brieling is proceeding. Closing anguments will le held in Mach 2023

IMBRUWICA

I Manch 2009, Pharmacyclics LLC {(Pharmacyclics ) and Janesen Biobech, Inc. (181) filed 4 pstent infringement Lewsuit in the Ulnived States Disgrict Coun
T b E¥isaricn of Dhelaware against Alvogen Pine Brook LLC and Mapco Phanms L, (colleaively, Alvogen), which liled an ANDA seeking approval
market generic versions of IMBRUVICA whlews, assening infrigemens of US, Pasent Nos, 7,514,444 8,000,300, B4Th.204; 84597177, 897,711

[0 53,800 31,758, 06H0; 8, 7540 1 ILOG2,005; 8,957 0% 9,181,257, 5,296, 75.3; 9655057, 5,725,455, 10,010,507; 1,106,530; amd 10,125,140, In e
2009, Pharmacyclics and TERI amended ibelr :nmphlulwlnu Alvogen w further al|r:gu imfringement of LS. Patent Na. 10,2170 186,

Trial against Alvogen Lonk place in Dcwober 2020, In August 2021, the District Court sseed a decision in (aver of Mharmecyelics and Lanssen linding the
asserted claims against Advegen to be inlringed and pob invalid, In Movember 2022, i Uniged Stoes Court ol Appeals for the Fedoral Circuit afflimmd tle
[Hsrrict Court’s decision,

In Sopremsher 2021, Pharmacyclbcs and Jarssen Inc, (Lanssen Canada) initisted Stavemsents of Clalm under Section 6 of the Pateniod Medicines (Motice of
Compliance) Hegalatiens against Maico Pharma (Canada) Inc. [Natco} in response (o Natco®s liling of two ANIFSs seeking approval 1o market generic
werslnns ol IMBRUYHCA wpaibes belore the expinton of Canadian Patent Nos, 2660116 (7] 16); 2,928,720 (*721 ) 2000913 (*9135); 3,007,787 {*'7THT),
07, THE (TARY; 275,006 ( "90G); and 302225 ("256) In this lawsait, Pharmacyclics and RBanssen Canada are seeking an onder enjoining Natoo [rom
marketing its genesic version of IMBRUVICA belore the expiration of the rebevant patesits, Trial bs schisduled to begin in luly 2023,

lit cober 20022, Mharmacyclics and Janssen Canada initiated a secomd Stastement of Claim wnder Section b of e Patemted Modicines (Motloe of
Crmplianoe) Regulatiens against Naico in response o Maica's filing of an ANDS seeking approval i market a generlc version of IMBRUVICA capsulies
hefore the expiration of ihe *116, 721, "903, 707, and "760 patents and Canadian Pagent Mo, 2,051,008 In this lawsuig, Pharmacyclics and fanssen Canada
are secking an order enjoining Natco from markeling lis genede version of IMBRUVICA capsules belore the explration al the rebevant pateats. Trial in this
aecangl ction i schediled (o begla bn August 2024,

In Fobruary 2023, Pharmacyclics and Jarssen Camaida indiaved a Saement of Claim under Section 6 of the Paenved Medicines (Motice of Compliance)
Regulaions against Sancoe Canada Inc. (Sandoz) in response o Sandozs filing of an ANDS seeking approval to market a generle version af
IMBRUTCA capsubes. befone the expiration of the *116, *91%, "TAT, and *7H8 patente. Also in Febmary 2033, Pharmacyclics amd lanssen nitated 5
Sratement ol Claim under Section B2 af the Patented Medicines (Naotice of Compliance) Regalations agains Sandor asserting the 7217 and "256 palens,
which are also listed in Healih Canaida®s Patent Reglsier for IMBRUWVICA. Inothese lewsuits, Phamacyclics and Janssen Canada are seeking an order
enjolning Samdoe from marketing is generic version of IMBRUNICA capsibes hefore the expiration of the relevanl patents. A tial date for ihese actions
has pot been s,

SYMITLIZEA

it November 2021, Ransaen Prodscis, 1P, and lanssen Sclences Frelaral Unlimbled Compainy (callecibvely, Lanssen) and Gilesd Sclemces, Inc. and Gllemnl
Schences Ireland UG [collectively, Gilead) initisted & patent infringement lowsialt in the United States Distrct Court for the Distrdct of Delaware agaimst
Luapin Limiced, Lupin Mameceaticals, Ine., M5N Laboratories Privabe Lul, M5N Lile Sciences Private Lid,, and M5SN Pharmaceuticals Inc. (colleciively,
Lapin) which filed an ANDA seeking appeoval io markei a peseric version of SYMTUZA before the explration of 1S, Petent Mos. 10,059,718 (78] and
10,786,511 {518} The tral is scheduled 1o begln in Olctober 2023,

In Cctober 2022, Lanssen Products, P amd Janssen Schences Trelaml Uindimited Comgany (eollecively, Janssen) and Gilead Sciences, Ing. and Gllesl
Sciences reland VC [collectively, Gilead) initisted a patent infringement lowsait in the United States District Court for the District of Delawane agaimt
Apotex Ine.and Apotex Caorp. foollectively, Apotex ) which lled s ANDA secking approval 1o marked & generic vesbon of SYMTUZA belore the
caplration of the '718 and 518 patenis.
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I wach of these U5, Liwsuits, Tanssen 15 seeking an onder enfoining tbe defendan Trom marketing o generic version of 5YMTUZA before the expiraion of
the rebevant patents,

ERLEAIM,

I May 2022, Aragon Phamaceaticals, Inc, aml Janssen Beotech, tne. {collectively, Janssen] and Shoan Kettering Imstioute For Cancer Research (SKI1)
Imltiates] pavent imfrimgement Lvwsudis bn Undied States Districe Count for the Districts of New lesey and Delowane agaknst Lupin Limited and Lupin
Phamaceuticals, Inc. (collectively, Lupin), which filed an ANDA seeking approval to markel a generic version of ERLEADA belore the expiration of LS.
Pabent Mis, SAR1,663 (6T, In Angust 2022, lanssen anid 5K filed a fist amended complaing agains Lupia odeding U5, Patent Nes. 59 884054 {"054),
10,052514 (" 314), 10,0250 ("506) and 10845, B8 ("HEH) i the salt, Janssen amd SKI are secking an order enjoning Lupin fom marketing s generic
werslan of ERLEADA belore ihe eaplration of te %663, 054, *314, 508, and 080 petenis, Tn Augguss 2082, Janssen aml SK1 viduntarily deamissed ihe
DNelaware complaint. The New Jerey acton s proceeding.

I My 2022, Jamssen and SE1 initated a patent infring Rawsuil in United Seates, Distriict Court for the District of New Jersey against Sydus
Warklwide IO, £vidus Pharmaceuticals (USA), Inc., and £ydus Lifescienoes Limited (collectively, Zvilas), which filed an ANDA secking approval 1o
market a generic version of ERLEADA belore the expiration of the '663, '054, "314, '508, and "888 patenis. Ranssen and SKI are soeking an ordir
enjodning Lydus from maskeing s geoerle version of ERLEADA belore the expiration af the *662, "054, " 314, "508, and 'BES patenes.

In May 2022, Janssen, The Regents of the Unbversity of Califomia (LT}, and SK1 initated patenst infringement Lawsuits in United S2aves Distrion Cown for
ther Eristricts of Mew Jemsaey and Delaware against Sancloe Inc. { sandiz ), which filed an ANLIA sicking approval 1o market o generic versionad ERLEALA
el e expiration of the “66% patent and U5, Fatens Nos 1445 507 (5071, 5802689 (6I89), 9,036 159 (*158), and 9807 261 (2611 ba Auwsusd 2022,
Jamszen, UIC, aned SKT e a First amended complaint againse Sandoe sdding the 054, 304, '508, and "880 patents o che suit, In Augose 2022, lassen,
LI, and SK I valuntarily dismissed che Delaware complaing, In December 2022, lanssen, LG, and 5K filed a second amended complaing sgainst Sandoy
willhrawing fhe 0G4, "104, 50, and “IEE patents from the sul without prejudice. lanssen, UE, and 5K are seeking an onber enjoiming Sandoe fram
marketing lis generic vesion ol ERLEADA helore ihie vaplration of the "667, 507, '609, *159, and 261 patents, The New' Jersey action is procecding.

In May 2022, Jansen, UG, and SKI1 Inltlated palent infringement lawsalts in United States Distdcl Cownt (or the Disgrots of Mew lersey and Delaware
apainst Eugia Pharma Specislities Limied, Aurvbhindo Mharma USA, Inc., and Auromedics Phamma LLE {(collectvely, Fugia), which filed an ANDA
sevking approval to market a peneric version of ERLEADA beloee the expiration al the "6BA3, *807, "RRY, "159 and "261 patents. In Seplember 2022,
Jamssen, U, and SK1 filed a Mmt amended complain against Eagla adding U5, Pavent Mes. 5,804,054 (7054, 10,052,304 (*314), 10,702,508 (508) and
10, B3, e 0 b thee sait, Im September 20202, Janssen, UG, and Slﬁlunlunl.lrﬂ‘l,r dismissed the Delaware comphain. Janssen, U, and K1 are seeking
an dnder enjoining Fugia rom marketing ils generic vendon of ERLEADA before the expiration of the "661,'507, "609, "159, "251, 054, "114, "508, and
"RHI patents, The Mew lesey sctbon is proceeding.

I May 2022, Janssen, UG, and 5K Indtaved patent inlrngement lawsuits In United States Disoiot Coan for the Distdos of New Tersey and Delaware
against Hetero Labs Limbsed Unic W and Hetere USA, e, (oslbectively, Hewro), which filed an ANDA secking approval to market a generic versbon of
ERLEADM before the explration of the "Ba3, "507,%054, "314," 504, and "BER patenis, Lanssen, UC, and SK1are secking an order enjoining Hetoro from
marketing it generic version of ERLEADA before ibe expiratlon of the "663, "507, "054, '314, "508 am) "8R8 patends. In Augest 002, Lanssen, 1C, aml
5K valuntarily dismissed the Delawéere complaant, The Mew Jersey actbon is proceeding.

LIFTRAVE

I Awgest 2022, Actelion Pharmoceuticals Lul, snd Jamssen Dne, (collectvely, Ranssen) and Nippon Shinyaku Co. {Mippan Shingahud [niristed o S1atement
o Clabm under Secthon 6 of the Fatented Medicines (Sotlce of Complianee) Regulations against Sandoz Canada Inc. In response o Sandoxs filing of an
ANDS seeking approval to market genenic versions ol UFTRANT hlets hefore the expiration of Canadian Paient Nos, 2,731,070 and 2,764,475, In this
lawsmin, Janssen arsd Nippon Shinyaky ane seeking an onler enjuining Sandoz lram marketing e genetic versios of LFTRAV] belooe ihe expisation of the
relevant patests, A trial is scheduled w begin in May 2024,

I Mevember 3022, Acielion Pharmaceuticals 1S Inc, and Actelion Pharmacenticals Lul (collectively, Actelion) asd Nippon Shinyako Co, Lid, (Nippon
Shinyiakun] inkikated a paient infringement lawsuit in the Undted States District Court for the District of Delaware agalnste Alembic Pharmaccuticals Limiied
and Alembic Phannaceuticals Inc, (collectively, Alemble) who fled an
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ANEA secking approval i market generic versions of UFTRAVT injeciion for insavenous wse beloge eapiration of LS Pabenl Nos, 8791, 022 (7122 pand
284,280 (* 280) rolating 1o LIFTRANT, Inthis liwsalt, Aciclion and Mippon Shinyaka are secking an order enjodning Alembic from marketing a geoeric
wersion of LIFTRANI hefore the expiration of the relevant patenis. A trial daie has oot bapsen aac,

In February 2023, Actelion and Nippon Shinyaku infdaved a patent infringemen Biwsust inbe Unised Sates Dismict Coun for the Disricn ol Delawane
against Lupin Lid, aed Lupin Mharmacoiticals, Ing, foollectively, Lupbnd who fled an ARDA secking approval 1o market generic versions of UFTRAW]
Imjeetian Tor intravennes sse hefore exploatlon of the ' 122 anad *200 padents elating i DIFTHAVT Inoibis Lewsaile, Acielion and Nippon Shingak are
secking an onler enfolalng Lispkn lrain marketing 4 genedc version of UPTRAVI before the explration of the relevant patesis. & ol date has mot been s,

Deher Lighuation

It November 2021, Fanssen Phamaceatica N,V [Janssen) provided i Alkermes Pharma Ireland Limiled, Elan Phasma Intemational Limised, and Elan
[Wug Delivery, Inc. three-monibs® noiloe of iermination of a License Agreement by and among Elan Pharmaceutical Research Corp., d'hv'a Nanosysiems,
Elan Fharma Intermatbonal Limdied and lanssen, executed in March, 1599, In November 2021, Janssen also provided to Alkermes Fharma Breland Limied
threc=munths' notice of termimation of a Liceme Agreement between [Ehan Pharms International Limited and Jenssen execoted in July WL In April 2022,
i response to these notioes, Alkermes Pharma breland Limied {Alkermes) initisted arbitration in the Intemnational Isstiwte for Conflics Prevention and
Hesolutinn, The parties exchanged opening hricls in Joly 2022 and responsive haiels in Seprember 2022 In December 2022, the Arbdiration Tribanal §sued
an Interim Dieclslon Nnding that Jarssen may teminate the agreements, bt §0may sel contdmie o sell products developed during the term of the
agreements without cominuimg to pay royaltles o Alkermes.

GOVERNMENT PROCEEDINGS

Like ether companies i the phasmsceatical, comsaimer Bsealth and medical devices Endustrbes, the Company amd certaln ol is subsidiaries are subject @
extensive regulatdon by nattonal, siase amd bical govemmend agencies in the Unlved States amd other countries in which they eperse. Such reguladon has
heen the hasis of government Investigations and lidgations, The most significamt lilgatkon browght by, and Investigatbors conducted by, government
agenclhes are listed below, It is possible that criminal charges and substantial fines andor civil penaltles or damages coihd resalt from government
Imvesdligations or litigation.

Awerage Wholesile Price (AW Litsation

The Company and several ol its pharmaceutical subsidiaries (the 180 AW Delendants), along with mumercais ofher pharmaonatical companies, were
namad s delemdants in o serbes of lawsalts instate @nd federal counts invalving allegations that the peicing and marketdng of ceraln pharmaceutical
|'|m|l|.||.1: amonmied o fraudulent amd atherwise sctionshle comdun becmse, among nther things, the companies allegedby n-plml an inflateid Average
Whalesale Price {AWP} {or the drugs af s, Pavors allegoed thad they used it AW in calculating provider eimborsément levels. The plaintifs in
ihese cases Incladed three classes ol private pesons or entities that pakd Tor ainy portion of the perchase of the disgs at swe based on AWE, and state
posernmend eities e made Modicaid payments for the drugs # issue based on AWE, Many of these cases, bith Tederal sctiors and state sctions removed
1o fedoral court, were consalidited Tor pre-rial perposes ina multl-disiro lelgatbon in the Undied Ststes Districn Court for the Disirict of Massachusetis,
where all claims agairst ihe G AWE Defendants were ultimagely dismissed. The Ml AWP Defendanis also prevailed ina case hrought by the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvanic Ocher AWP caves have been nesolved through court omder or setilement. The case brosgght by [Emols was seibed afwer
tral. In Mew Jersey, a putative class sction based upon AW allegations is pending sgainst Cemooor, Inc. aml Orho Biotech Inc. {both mow lamssen
Biobech, Inc.), the Company and ALLA Corporation, All sther cases have boen nesolved,

Unloid Litgalbon

Bieginning in 2014 and contlmuing o the presenl, the Company aml Janssen Phamaccuticals, Inc, (101), dlong with eiher pharmecanical companies, have
heen namsed in close to 3,500 lawsalts relabed v the marketing of oplolds, including DURAGESIC, NUCYNTA and NUCYNTA ER. The sulls also ralse
allegations related (o previowsly owned active pharmaceutical ingredient supplicr subsidiaries, Tasmanian Alkalodds Pry, Lid and Noramco, Dnc. (bath
subsidiaries were divested in 2016). The majorily of the cases have been Tiled by state and local govemments, Similer lawsuits have glso been libed by
privage plaintifs and onganiesdons, including bat not Umibied o the lollowing: indisidual plaimiffs on behall of children bom with Neonaal Absidnenoe
Symdrome; hospltals; and health Irsurersipayors, To date, complaints against phamaceatical manufacnners, including the Company ana 121, have been
Tiled by the sinte Atlomeys General in Arkansas, Florida, [dabo, Dok, Kemocky, Lonisiana, Mississippi, Missourd, Mevada, Mew Hampshine, Mow
Tewey, New Mekion, New York, Uihin, Oklshorma, Soaith Deko, Texas, '-MIrHun il Wt ‘u’h'nlnla.{hlrrq:h'inh arfialnsg the manuf scturers alss have
e fEleadl bn stape oF federal coun by clty, county and local gevermment agencies in evory stase but Alaska, The Government of Paerto Bico (iled suig in
Superior Court of San Juan,
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The Conpany, TP and vther pharmsceutical compenies bad also received subposnas or regquests for information nelated wo apioids marketing practices fnam
the falbpwing sise Atorseys General: Alaska, Inidiana, Momana, New Hampshire, South Caroling, Tennossee, Texas ard Washingion. In Sepiember 2017,
the Company asd 1M were contacted by the Texas and Colaradn Atlamey General's Cfioes on behalf of approximasely 3 stases regarding a mulel-siate
Attamey Leneral imvesilgation.

I 2019, the trial in die matter fiked by the Oklaboma Asomey General iz i jusd iy painst the Company and 1P in the amous of $465 million.
The Company and 101 appeabed the judgment, amd in November 2021, the Oklahoma Supreme Court revensed the irial couwrt’s judgment and directed eniry
of judgment for Defemlante. [n Octaber 2019 the Company and 1M announced a setilement of the first caree sel Tor thal In the MDL with two counties in
Uhalen, I Agped] 221, three Califomia counties and the Chy of Uakland commenced a trial in Califomia state cown agaimsg the Cempany and 100, aml acher
alliliates, v well as three oiher phanpaceutical manulaciunes., The irial comchsled o Consber 2021, amd in Devensher 2021, the Cumart enteres] @ linad grial
jubgmient in favor of Defendants an all claims. In Fobrsry 2022, Plaintiffs’ motion to set aside and vacabe the judgment was dened. Plaingifls appealed the
Judgmena, bun Loter (kled o request w dismiss tbe appeal slier electing o panicipate in the notions] setlement agreement,

I Cictober 2019, the Company ansounced 4 proposed agreement n principle that would include the Company paying 54 billion as sottlement of these
miabiers that hal not been tried or segidiel. In Ocober 2000, the Company agreed (o conmibsie up o an asddidonal $1 billion o an all-in scilement amoum
thai would resolve oplold lawsults lled and futare claims by saies, diies, countles and tribal govemments, for a total of 35 billien which has been acorued,
subject to various condizions amd an agr being finalized. This agr 1% mot an admission of lfabilily or wrongedoing. In July 2021, the Company
annianged that the terms of the agreement (o watle the state amd subsdivision claims had been linalized and approximately ball of te all-in seilement was
capected i be paid by the end of (kscal year 2022, depending upon the kevel of panicipation by the swaies and their subdivisions. The wems provided a
perindd wal lime for suates to edeot b participate In the agreement and, theveafter, a peded for the subdiviskions of the participming sates o opsin, Dasel on
expecied panicipation, the Cnmpﬂ.ﬂ:{ commitied in advapce 1o pmcur.’d wilh the seitlement in Hve of the panicipating states {New Yaork, Texas, Flodla,
Mevila, and New Mexica) and with trikal governments, By Lite Febnuary 3022, 45 states, live territories, the Didrict af Columbia, and the vass majority ol
cligitle subsdivisions had elected w participate in the senlement, aod the Company conllmed than the level of paricipation was suflicient o provend with
the agreemint as 10 all panicipants. The apreement was effective in April 2022 Also in April 2022, the Company entered into seilement agreements wish
the states ol Alabama and West Viginda and thelr panicipating subdivisions, In July 2022, the Company reachod @ setbement agreemest with all likgating
¥ Lt sashidbwisiones, aned in Seplember J002, the Company setiled with he Stte of New Hampshine and bs anticipating subdivisions. Conwquenly, by
the emd of the (iscal year 2022, the Company bad sentbed the apioid claims advanced by all siates except Washington,

There are approsimately 60 cases remaining post-setlement in vasious siate courts. There are approxsimately 570 remaining federal cases against the
Company amd P conrdinsted im a federsl Mulu-Districl Litigation (ML) pending in the U5, Distriel Coun for the Northem Districy of Obio, and
approximaely B0 additional cases pending against the Company anel 100 in other federal conrs, In addition, the Provinoe of Beiiksh Columbia (led sl
agadnsi i Company and s Canadian affiliage fanssen Ing., and many other industry members, in Canada, and ks secking to have thas action certificd as an
apt Im ¢ lass sotom on beehall of other provisclal e toris) asd the federal governments in Canada. Additlsnal o ol s sotions have been lled in
Canada against the Company amd Janesen Inc., and many other indistry members, by and on behal §of peeple whoe used apioids (o persomal mjures),
municipalities amd it Mations bands. In October 20049, an antitrust complaing was filed by peivace plainifls in lederal cosn in Tenvessee and s pending
transfer 1o the ML, These actioms allege a variety of clabms related vo oplold marketing practkoes, including False advertising, anfair competition, public
mulsance, comsamir (raud violatlons, decepilve avis amd praciloes, Talse cladms sl unjess enrichment. The sults generally sech pesaliies andfor fojunciive
angl monetary relief and, in some of the suits, the plaimilfs are secking joint and several lishility among the deferdants. An adverse judgment in any of
these lawsuits could msull in the impositbon of larnge mosdary penalties and significam damages inclading, punitive demagis, cost of shatemenl,
substantial s, equilahle remidies and other sanctions.

T Aapuest 2015, the Company meoeivod wgraml jury subsposna Trem i Unbied Saves Ansmey's Odfice Gor sl Eastem DSstricn ol New York T deonmenes
related o the I.':ruwnuyh amti-diversion policics and procedancs and disoribution of s opinid medications, o what the {"m‘quny umniderstands #x be par of a
trosader imvestigation into manufactinens” and distribalors’ monilaring programs and reporting ender the Controlled Substances Act.

From June 2017 through December 2019, the Company's Board of Directors received a series of sharcholder demand letiers albeging boeaches of Tdeciary
duties meluibed b the marketing ol opioids, The Boand retained independent cuunsel io invesiigate the allegstions in tse demands, and in Apell 2020,
Imlependent connsel delivered @ repont e ihe Board recosmmeniling that the
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Cusnigany repoat the sharchohber demamds and ke e stops that ane necessary F appaopione (o secane disiissal of ielavad derivative lidgation, The Boand
umanimoasly sdophed the recommendaibions of the Independont counsels reporn,

In November 2019, ane of the shacholders who sent a demard Tiled a derlvative complaint agatinst the Campany s the nominal defendant and certaln
currenl and Tosmer directors and olficers as defendants in the Saperior Court of Mew Jersey, The complaint alleges heaches of Tdoclary duties relabed in
e mackastingg o opioids, and et te Company e sullered domages os a nesult ol Geee sleged breachies, A series of alditional devivative complaine
making similar allegstions against the same ard similar defendants were liled in Mew Jersey stale and federal courts in 2019 and 2020, By 2022, all bul two
stabe coum eases had been voluntarily dismissed, [n February JO22, the state court granied the Company's mation e dismiss ome of (he twe cases, aml the
sharchalder that brought the seooml case filed a potice of dismissal. The sharcholder whese complainl was dismissed filed a mation for reconshderation. In
Mn:,r 2022, the state courd hebd aral argumeni on ihe motlon Ffor recomdderailon aned subsequenily dendl ibe moglon. The sharchalder hes sppealed ibe stale
courl's dismissal order,

[
I Awpust 2012, DePuy Onbopacdics, Inc, DePuy, Inc. inow known as Dettuy Symibes, Inc. ), and Jobnson & Jobnson Servioes, [nc, (collectively Deifuy)
revelved an Informal request Trm the Unived Seates Atomey s QMo for the Do of Massachosets aml thee Civil Dvibm sl ibe Unised St
Department of Justice (the Unbted States) for the production of materals relating o the Delay ASE X1 Hip device. In July 2014, the Urited States notified
the United States District Cosrt (or the District of Massachusets that it had declined o imervene in o gri i case libed purssant 1o the Fube Claims Ao
agadnst e companies conceming b hip devices. In Febnaary 2006, the Disiro Coun granted the companies” modion 1o dismiss with prejudice, unsealed
tha igui vy complaint, and denbed the gl trm relators® request for leave o {ile a fusther amended complaine, The quil o relators appealed the case o ibe
United States Coust of Appeals for the Fire Ciuit, In Juby 2007, the First Clrouit affirmed the Disirict Coun®s dismissal In pan, reversed in part, and
allirmed the decision o deny the relators reqeest ta file o thind amended complaint Bn Manch 2021, Deluy Hled its msotion io strike and dismiss the
relatinns” secoml smenided complaing; the INarct Coun diealed Deluy's sation wserike and dismiss i hily 2020 DePay Ned & motion for reconsileration
ol the Drisarbcy Court's July 2021 raling. In Movember 2021, the District Coun grasted Deffuy s motion for reconshileration and dismissed the case with
prefudice. The Districl Court's onder was unscaled in Diecember 2021 The relston filed several post-dismissal motkons, Incleding a Janwary 2022 omnibas
mirtian for reconsideration, which the District Court dended. Following the District Coun®s order dismissing the case with prejudice, DePuy [ied a
Iecember A2 motion seking the recovery of apiomeys’ Tees amd coate, which the Distgiol Court denbed exoept as o costs. The Relators have appiealed
the D¥istrict Counts dismissal of the case o ibe First Circuit. The briefing on the appeal |s complete, the First Cirewit hield oral argument on December b,
2022, aml ik First Clrcuit's decksbon remalns pemsding,

I Ocober 2002, the Company was contacted by the Califomia Anomey Geseral's office regarding o mubi-siate Atoreey General ivestigation of the
marketing of surgical mesh produicts. for benla and wrogynecologleal perpeses by ihe Compary®s subsbdiary, Ethicon, Inc, {Ethicanp. In May 2006,
Califoamia and Washingiton Tkl civil complaints agaimst the Company, Eilicon and Ethicon LS, LLE alleging vial %o Thedr T proseciin
statutes, Similar complaints were liled agaiinst the companies by the following states: Keniuchy, Missisippd, West Viginia and Onegon. In Apeil 2005, he
Company amd Ethicon settled the Washingion case, In Owtoher 2009, the Company and Ethicon settled the mulu-siase investigation with 41 other states and
the Disirei of Columbis, In April 3020, the Company setibed the West Vinginda case. In Oxtober 2020, the Company setiled wish ihe Atiomey Ceneral of
LUwegon, In Movember 20000, the Company settled with the Aiomcy Geenerad of Mississippd, Trial inthe Kenlucky matier is scheduled For June J02L The
Califiamio coe started arial in hdy 2019 and concluded in Seplember 2009 In Lanuary 2020, the Court In Califomis isovd o staiement of decision, lnding
im lawor of the Seaie of Califomia, and awanded eivil penaltics in the amoant of $344 million, In April 2020, the Court in Califomia desied the Company s
misban for a new irial. In Awgust 2000, the Coust entered judgmsent with respect 1o the penabibes of $344 million, bat deried the Asomey Gonerl's request
for injunctive relief, The Company appealed the penalty judgment, In April J022, the Court of Appeals redeced the judgment o $302 million, bt
ttherwise denbed the appeal. In July 2022, the Supreme Court of California denbed the Company's petition i review the Court ol Appeals decision, and the
Company reconded a charge o reffect the judgment in the second quarier of 2022, In November 2022, the Company petitioned the Uniled States Supreme
o e peviow.

I June 2004, the Mississippi Advorsey General Tiled a complaint in Chanoery Court ol The First hdicial Dstrict o Hinds Coumly, Missisippi against the
Company and Johnson & lohnson Consumer Companies, Inc. (now ksown as Johnson & lohnsan Comsamer Inc.) (collectively, 110 The conaplalm
alleges that 1ICH violated the Misslssippl Coosumer Protection At by failing to disclose alleged healih dsks assoclated with female consumers® use of alc
conlained in JOHNSON'S Baby Powder and JOHNSON'S Shower in Shower (2 prodect divested in 20 2) and seeks injunctive and monetary nelied. The
Company anad DT maoved Tor summary judgment on the grounds that the Stale’s claim wis barned by preemption, which the tdal court denied. The
Mississippd Supreme Coun granted the Company and 10C1s request o (ke an inserlocutory appeal of the denlal of the motion for summary judgment in late
2018, Deicfing and oral argument wene compleval. Therealter, the Coun
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rejected tbe inerhocatony appeal in Apeil 2020 amd remanded the matser w dee trial court, e Aogast 2021, U Dbl a Petitbon D Wit ol Ceriborari in dw
Lnlted Siates Supreme Count os to the Misslssippl Supremae Coun's mling of April Hi21, In Decomber 20021 ibe Unlted Seaics Supreme Court denbed the
Petithn for Writ of Certiorarl, After the Mississippl Supreme Court remanded the matter to the trial court, the Seste moved for a tral setting. 11 objecied
Ly iy Eriied sedtimg s hamned by the stay arising Irom the LEVL Bankruploy Case, referenced above, while the Stobe angied that the sty did nod apply. In
Tanuary 2022, tve Court gramted e States moton foe irial sewlng and dinecied the panties wo consull with the Coun adminsirsion o secure a irial daie. b
Febmaary 2002, the trial court sct the case for trial o begin in Febmaary 20008, However, given the ellors o resolye tale-nelated claims in the LTL
Bankrupiey Case, the Company and ihe State agreed o a temporary stay of discovery umi] May 2022, The iwmporary sty expired in May 2022 LTL
therealter movel b enfoln prosecution of the case in the L1, Bankoaptey Case, In Dctsher 2022, (he banknaptcy court issued an onder daying the case, The
Staste (Hled an appeal w ibe Third Clroult concerning the sty arler.

I Jamuary 2020, the State of Mew Mexion filed o consumer protection case alleging that the Company deceptively marketed and sold 1is toloom powder
proiduicts by making misrepresentaions about the safety of the products ani the presence of carcinogens, inclisding asbestos, The State of New Mexicoo filed
an Amemded Complaint bn March 2020, The Company moved to dismiss ceriadn of the clabms in ithe Amesded Complaing, which was granged, The
Company then (el a motion for panlal judgment an ibe pleadings o December 3000, which was denled, In March 2022, the New Mexboo oo denled the
Company s motion 1o compel the State of New Mexico (o engage in discovery of stale sagendies and denied the Company s request for interlooutory appeal
of that decision. The Company then filed a Petition for Writ of Superintending Control and a lReguest lor a Stay o the New Mexico Supreme Court on the
issue ol the Siate of New Mexico's discovery ohligations, In Apeil 2022, n wiew of the efforts i resolve tabe-related claims in the LT Bankrapicy Case,
the Company amd the Sate agreed o a G0-day ssay of all matiers except for the peading writ hefone the New Mexdloo Supreme Court, which expined in dune
2002, Thereafrer, the Company moved 1o enjoin proseastion of the case o the LT Bankrupicy Case, In Ccmeber 2022, the bankrupicy court bsaed an ordes
ataying the case. In December 2022, the State filed an appeal w the Third Clrcait conceming the stay order. Separately, in Seplember 2022, the New
Mbersbon Saiparemse ot granted the Company's reqiest Toea say pendieg lonber heieling om the soope of the Siaoe ol New Mesion's discovery ohligarions.

Fraty-twin states and the District of Cofumbia have commenced a Jolm investigation imo the Company s markeiing of 15 @aloam powder products. At this
timie, the mubiksiate group has not sserted any claims agalns: the Company, Five siages hove [ssued Civil Investigative Demands seeking docaments and
mther Infarmation. The Company has produced documents to Ardzona, Norh Camding, Texas, and Washington and entered into confidentiality agreements.
Thie Compary has nod received any Follw ap requests from those seates. Tn March 2022, cach of the lorty-two seates (incloding Mississippi and New
Mexico) agreed o mediation of thelr clabms in the LTL Bankrupicy Case. In July 2022, New Mexloo and Mississippl indicated they would no longer
valuntarily submit e further mediation inibe LTL Hankrupicy and sould prooced with ileir respectiive cases in state court, LTL moved the New Jomey
Bankrupiey Court for an onder siaying further proceedings In those two actions, which the Bankrupecy Coun granted in Oceober 2022, |n December 2022,
the Bankruptey Court allowed New Mexioo and Mississippi 1o file a direc appeal of s stay.

I July Hilh, the Company and Jamdsen Products, LP siere served with a gui tam vnu'rr|1|.n||1[ pursazant fo the False Clabms Act liled in the Unibeld Stales
IMstrict Court For the District of New Jersey alleging tbe of(-label promotion of two HIY products, PREZESTA and INTELENCE, aml anfi-kickhack
vindations in connection with the promtion of these products, The complaing was Diled under seal in December 2002, The federal and sate govemments
have dbeclined 1o intervens, and the lawsuli s heing prosecuied by the relators, The Court denled summary Jadgment on all clalms in December 2001,

I ambert modlors were granted in part and denied in pant in January J00E, and the case is proceeding o tral,

I March 2007, Jamssen Blsech, D, (J) received a il Investgative Demand G ibe Unbed Stass Department of o reganking o False Clalme
Act investigation comcerning management and advisory services provided 1o theumatology and gastroenierology practices hat parchased REMICADE or
SIMPONI ARIA. In August 2019, the Uniled States Depariment ol Justice notilied TB1 that o was closkig the investigstion. Subsequently, the Urded
Sihates [Msirict Court {or the District of Massachuseits unsealed o gul tam False Claims Actcomplaing, which was served on ihe Company. The Deparment
el Jurstlce hiad dechined s inervene in the qui tam lwsail in Augist 20049, The Company Tiled 0 motion @ dismiss, which was granied in part and denied in
part. Discovery is underway.

I April and September 2017, the Company neceived subpoenas from the United States Attomey for the Distrdicl o Massachusels secking documenis
Droaitly relating w phamuaceatiical copaymend support programs foe DRIEALEX, QLY SE0, REMICADS SIMPONL STELARA andl £Y TIGA. The
subpoenas also seck documents relading s Average Manufeouner Price aml Best Price reponing w the Center for Muedicare aod Modicaid Servioes relaied
ta those products, as well as rehate payments (o stale Medicald agencles. The Company has provided documents in respanse o the subpoenes.
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Uit Jure 2007, the Conspany neceived a sulapoena Trom e United Stases Adomey's Office for e Distict of Messaclisseus secking infonnation reganling
prasciices penialning 1o the sierilization of DelPuy Synthes, Inc, (DoPuy) spinal implands at thres hosplials in Boston as well as Inieractions ol employess of
Company subsbdiarics with physiclans at these hosplials. The Company and DePuy fully cooperaied with the govemment's ivestigation. In lanuary 20279,
the Company, Delfoy Symibes, Inc., and Deluy Synthes Sales Inc. entered into @ setibement agreement with tbe Unitied $1ates rsadving the matier or an
Tomaniate il arnound.

Tt July 2018, the Public Prosecution Service in Blo de lancine ond reprsemaotives [rom the Brazilizn antitnast authorty CADE inspected the olfices of
ke than 3 companies including Johnsos & lohnson do Bras( Indilsiria e Comérclo de Produtos pars Setde Lula. The awthorithes appear o be
Imvestigating allegations of pessible anti-com petitive behavior and possihle improper payments in the medical device indusiny. The Company continues 1o
responil 1o Inguires reganling the Forelgn Cormepi Praciboes Act from the Unlied Seaies Depariment of Justice and the Uriied Seies Securdithes and
Exchange Commission.

ot 1 time, the Company has received reguests rom a varety of United Sudes Congressional Comminess o produce informition relevand w
ongoing congresshonal inguiries. It is the policy of Johnson % Johrsan o coopemie with these inquines by prodocing the regquested Informsstbon

GENERAL LITIGATION

Feginning in September 2007, mudtiple purpored class actions were liled on hehall of indirect purchasers of REMICATYE against ihe Company and
lamasen Biotech, Inc. (collectively, Janssen) alleging that lanssen has violated federal antitrust laws through s contracting strategies for REMICADE. The
cases wiere comsolidated Tor pre-irial purposes & Inre REMICADE Antftrusd Litigerion in United Stoates. Disisicl Coun for the Eastern District of
Pennsylvania, This case was seoled in Febrsary 2022, The final approval hearing i scheduled for Februry 2023,

Tt Jumne 200%, the United States Federal Trade Commission (177C] issued o Civil Investigative Demand o the Company and lanssen Biotech, lnc,
[enllectively, Jamssen) in connection with lts investigation of whether Janssen's REMICADE coniracting praciboss violate federal antinasi Liws, The
Crosmpany has produced] documents andd informatinn responsive i the Chyll Inyestigative Demand. lanssen |s In ongoing disaasslons with the FTC stalf
regranding its inguiry.

I Febrouary 2022, the United S1otes Pederal Trade Commission (FTC) issoed Civil Investigative Demands 1o Johnsen & Johason and Jomssom Distech, bnc.
[endlectively, Jamssen) in connection with its investigalon of whether advenising practices for REMICADE violate lederal law, Janssen has produced
documents ard infomiaibon responsive iothe Civil Investigative Demands, lanssen s in angning disossbons sith the FTC stall weganding the inguiry,

In Jume 2022, Genmab A% Nbed a Notlee foe Arblmranbon wiib Insermagional Iestimte Tor Conflict Preventlen and Besohaion (CPR) against Jarssen Blotech,
Ine. seeking milestones aml an cxicnded H'I‘]'.lh:_'[ll;‘l'm for [arzalex FASPRL. Janssen (iled it Nodice of Defense in July 2022 Genmab and Janssen have
crms-moved for early dispoaition of the srhitration. Angument wias had in Jasuary 2023,

I Cctober 2007, cortain Unitel Stabis servioe membses anal thesie limilies broaght o complaing ageins a number of pharmacestical oml medical devios
companies, Including Johnson & Johnson and cerain of is subsidiasies in Unised States Diswict Coun or the Distrbol of Columbia, alleging that the
defendants winlabed the United States Anti-Temorism At The complaie alleges that the defendants provided fusding For werroris) organizations through
thelr sabes praciloss pumswnt o pharmaceutical and medical device contracts with the Tragl Minisiry of Healil, In July 2020, the District Coun dismbssed
the complaint. In Lanuary 2022, the United States Coun ol Appeals lor the Diatrict of Columbia Cimeuil reversed the District Coun®s decision. In February
2022, delendants petitioned Tor rehearing en banc.

It Chctarber 2018, two separate putatl ve class sotbaim were filed agaknst Actelion Pharmaceutical L, Actelion Pharmaceutheals LS, Tec, aml Actelion
Clindcal Research, Inc. {collectively Actelion] in Unded Seates Districn Court for the Diserict of Maryland and United Saees Disirict Coun for the Distrct
ol Ciorlumbia. The complaints allege that Actelinn vinlated stabe and federal antiinest and anfair competition laws by allegedly refising o supply generic
pharmaceutical manufacmrers with samples of TRACLEER, TRACLEER is subject fo a Hisk Evaluation and Mitigation Sirategy requined by the Faood amid
Dt Adiministration, which imposes restrictions on distribution of the product. In Janusary 2009, the plaintifls dismissed the Diswict of Coluimbia case amd
filed & consalibited complaini im the Unbed Stases Distrder Court Tor the Distro of Maryland, In October 2009, the Court granted Actelion®s matbons o
dlsmbss the amended complaing, In April 2021, the Unlted States Court of Appsals for the Fowrth Clroalt reversed and remandied. Discovery |s ongoling,

I My 201%, a class action antitrust complaint was filed against Linssen BeD Ireland {Janssen) amd Johnson & kohnsoa in the Uniied States Duserict Court
Tor ibe Murihem Matrict of Californda, The complaing alBeges that Jomsen violatel lederal and staie
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amtitrist and comsamer prowotion lows by agrecing o esclusivily provisions in is egrecivents with Gilead conveming the development aind marketing of
comhinatbien ambrerovinal therples (cART) o ireat HIV, The complalnt ales alleges that Gllead enteeed [nto similar agreements whib Brisiol-Mycrs Squibh
anel kapan Tohacoo. In March 20040, the Cour granted in part and denled in part defendants’ motiors to dismiss. Plaingiffs (iled an amended complaing in
April A0 Defendants moved B dismiss the amended complaint. 1o July X6, the Coan granted in pard and dended inpa the renewed motion o dismiss,
It Precembsr 2021, several insurance companies and other pavers (il ndivides] “Op-Ow® complalns containdng allegatsons similar u dhe origine
complaing. In Sepiember 2022, the Cous granted in part and denbed in part plaimiil s motkon for class certificailon. In Jamsry 2023, the Coun granted in
part arel dended in pan defenlanis” motion for summary judigment. Trial s schedubed Tor May 2023,

InCictaber 20089, Innovative Health, LLC Tiked a complaint against Biosense Webster, Inc, (BW1) in the United States Eistrict Courd for the Middle Districe
o Californla. The complaing alleges that cedadn of PAW1s bosiness practices and contracius] terms violate the anilinest kows of the Unlied Staies and the
Stsde of Califomia by restricting competition in the sale of High Density Mapping Catheters amd Ultmsoind Cetheters. In lamiary 2020, BW1 (ied &
misdian 1o dismiss the complaiat. In Awgust 2000, the Court grnied i pan and desied in pan BW1s motion o dismiss, In December 2021, BWI Tiled o
madbon for summary fudgmend. In March 2022, the Comt granted BWI's moion [or summiasry judgmesi. In Apedl 2022, Innovatlve appealed this ruling io
the United Stases Coun ol Appeals for the Minth Cincii.

I Mowember 2019, the Company recebved o demand for indemnification from Plizer Inc. {Pizer), pursuant i the 2006 Stock and Asset Parchase
Agreement between the Company and Plizer. Also in November 2019, Fohnson & Johnson Inc. received notice reserving rights w daim indemnificatbon
Iroam Sanofl Consumer Health, Inc. [Sanall . pursaant wthe 2006 Assel Purchase Agneement between Johmsan & Johason Inc. and Sanolfl. In lanuary
2020, Jofinsen & dobinson recelved a demand Tor indemnificadion from Bechringer Ingelhelm Pharmaceuticals, [nc, | Bochringer Ingelhedm), pursuam w ibe
2006 Asset Parchase Agreement among the Company, Plizer, and Bochrisger Ingefheim, In Movember 2022, Johmson & Johnson recefved o demand For
indemmification from GlaxeSmithKline LLC (GSK), pursuant bo the 2006 Stock and Asset Purchase Agreement betwieen the Company and Plizer, and
cerain L 1959, anl 2002 agresments Bbetwesn Glavn Wellcome and Warner-Lambert engities, Thee nitices seek indemnification for begal clsims related
ta over-the-counter LANTAC (randtdine ) producs, Plaimifls in the urderlying acibors sllege that £ANTAC and otler over-the-counter ranblidine
medicatinns comialn unsafe levels ol NDMA {N-plorosodimethylamine) amd con cause ambor have cansed varlous cancers in patlents using the proglucis,
andl seck infunctive and monetary relicl, The Company and Johnson & Johason Inc. have also been named In putative class actions filed in Canada with
similar allegatbors reganding ZANTAC or ranitidine v Johron & Johnan Inc. was slso named = 0 defendant along with ather manufaciuress in various
personal injury actions in Camada relobed o ZANTAC products. Johsson & Johison Inc, has provided Sanoli notce reserving righis w claim
Imlemmification pursuand o the 2016 Asset Purchase Agreement related 1o the class actkons and personal injury actions,

I Oicabaer 2000, Fortks Advisors LLEC (Forids), In s capaciiy as ropeesentative of the Tfommer siockholders of Ausis Health Ine. (Aurs), (iled a comgleing
against i Company, Frhicon Inc, ard cestain named nfficers and employees {collectively, Ethicon) in the Court of Chancery of ibe State of Delawaee,
The complaing alleges breach of contract, Fraud, amd other cowdes of actbon againsd Ethicon in conneciion with Ethivon® acguisigion of ks in 2009, The
conplaing secks damages el other rellel. [ December 2021, the Coust granted in part and denied n pant defendants” mation i dismiss cerain coses af
action, All chaims apainst the imdivideal defendanes were dismissed, The wial is scheduled for lanuary 2024

I June 2022, Janssen Pharmaceaticals, Ine. fled a Demamd Tor Arbitracion agaims Emengemt Biosolutions Ine. e al [*ERST™) with the American
Arhitration Assackation, alleging that EH51 breached the parties’ Manulaotaring Services Agreemient for the Company™s COVID-15 vacdine, In July 2022,
Enuergent (el lis asswering steiemuent aml countenclalms,

In Oetober 2022, Lansaen Phamasceaticals, Ioc, filed o Demand for Achiorestion apaknst Menck Eh.lrplh Dishme Corpo with the American Arhitration
Association purseant 1o the Parties” agreements relating o production of drag substance and deog produc Tor the Company's COVID- 19 vaodive. Al in
Oiciober 2022, Merck filed s answer aad countenclaims.

Esepginming in My 2028, muliple putative cliss actions wene Tiled i stote amd Taderal cows (Califomio, Florida, Mew Yook, aml New Jersey ) agialnsg
varioas Johison & Jehson enibibes alleging violsilons ol sate comsumer fraud staiwies based on somdisclosure of alleged benzese contaminatlon of certaln
Memtrogena and Aveeno sunscreen products and the alfirmative promotion of thase prndudl.m'ulp";md, in ai beast oo case, alleging a strict liahilky
manufaciuring defect and failune (o warmn claims, aserting that the nemed plaintifls suffened anspecilfied injuries as a result ol alleged exposene o benzene.
The Pudicial Famel on Muli-Distrcn Ligation has consolidated ol pesding sctions, except one prodec labiliny case aml one case pending 1n New Jemey
stabe court, in the Unbted States Diswict Cowrt (or the Southers Districon af Florida, For Lasdendale Division, In Cowher 2021, the Comparry reached an
agreemeni in principle for the setlement of a nationwide cless, encompassing the clabms of the consolldated sctiors, subject to approval by the Florida
Tederal Court, In Decembier 2021,

(L]
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plaintifls i tba comsolidased aotkis filed o motion D preliminary approval of o nativewide Class setilement. Tlhe setdement was picliminarily approviad by
the court In March 2022,

The Company (subsequently subaised by Johsson & Johesan Consemer Inc. (IR0 along with mare than 1230 ather comparies, ks o defendant bn a cost
recovery anl contribuiion action brought by Clccidental Chembcal Corparation in fune 008 in the United S2ates District Court for the ERstrict ol Mew
Tersey, rellated w the ceareap of o section of e Lower Passaic River in New Beraey,

The Company or its subsidiaries are also pariies (o various procecdings brought ander the Comprebensive Envireamental Response, Compeasation, and
Liability Aat, communly known as Superfund, and comparahde state, local ar forelgn laws in which the primary rellef scught Is the coss of past amb'ee
Tutune remediation.

M. Restruriuring

T the flscal second guarer of 2008, the Company annoinced plans o implement @ sedes of actions acmea ls Global Supply Chabn that are ingended s
[escuis resonirces and [ncrease investments in the critical capabilities, iwchnologgies and solsion necesary o manalsciere and supply its product ponfalio,
enhance agility and drive growth, The Global Supply Chale actions include expaniding the use of srategic collabosations and bolstering inhiatives o reduce
nu'n|1rﬂ;|l:,r. Imperve oot compet filveniess, enhanoe L'alrn.:H!Itlﬂ arl n|1l|r|1iu' ihe .qurqaly Chaln neiwork. In fiscal year 20 H1L"|-:I.1I'I'q\1.l'l_‘l|l recnirded o pre-
tang charge of 20,5 hillion, which is includesd on the Fellowing lines of the Consolidated Statement of Eamings, 34023 billon in restrscturing, 3101 billios in
wdhier {income) expense snd 0.1 hillion in o ol products subd. Towl project cmis of approximately $2.2 billion have been reconded since the
resdructuring was announced. The program was completed inibe fiscal founh quanier of 2022,

The folbowing table summarizes the severance changes and the associated speisling under these bnitkmives through the Tscal year ended 200221

(hallars b Ml Severance Asset Welte-affsSales Crthe ™ Total
Risserve balance, Tanisany 8, Hi21 1 135 - o 144
021 acvity [£3) —_ 16 7
Reserve halance, Jamiry 2, 2022 112 — 25 137
Current year actlvity:

Eh_urﬂ,ﬂ — 15 CE ] i1

Cash sentlements (A7) 44 {a75) [432)

Sellled o cash — 59) {549)
Reserve balance, Jamary 1, 20230 : ] ™ - M o4

1 Aluhosagh the restruciuring program bas been completed [n the Nical year 2022, the Company expects that severance changes will continue beyond that date. The eserve
halance & of January 1, 2023 b reconded In the Employee Kelated Ohligation aoooem in e Consalidaied Balance Sheet.

= Ciiher Indudes project expense such 2s salaries for emplovees supporileg these Intilatives and comsulileg expensca.
0 hemreserits @aln on sals of asusts

12
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Managenvent’s Report en linnernal Control Over Financial Repering

Uinder Sectkon 404 of the Sartbanes-Oxcley Aot of 2002, manapement is requined o assess the eflectivensss of the Company's inemal comred ever linaacial
repanting as of the end of cach Mscad year and repart, hased on that assessment, whother the Company's Imemal congrol over finasclal reporting |s effective.

Management of the Compasy is msponsihle for estshlishing and mainiaining adequate intemal coniml over fimancial reposting. The Company's
imemal comirl over linuncia reportiog is designed 1o @ovide reasonuble esurance s e the relishility of the Company's linancial negrarting amd the
preparation of external linancial stalememts in sccondance with gencrally acoepled sccoumting peinciples.

Interral controds over Nnancial reposting. o matter e well designed, have Inberent limiations, Therefoee, imermal contmd over financlal reponing
determined o be eflective can provide only remsonable assurance with respect go lisancial statiement preparation and may not prevent o detect all
mizatalemenis. Moreover, prajections of any evalusilon of elfectlvencis i luture perods ane subject o the risk that conirals may become insdegquate
becanse of changes in comditions, or that the degree of complianoe with the polickes or procedunes may deteriorste.

The Company™s management has assessed ibe effectiveness of the Company's inlemal control over linancial reporting as of Jamiary 1, 2023, In
making this sssessmeni, the Company used the criteria established by the Commitiee of Spoasoring Organlzatlons of ibe Treadway Commission (GOS0 in
“Inserna] Contral-Inbegrated Framework (201 33" These criterla are In the areas of comml envimament, sk assessmant, comrod activities, infommatlon and
communication, and monitoring. The Company s sseesament included extensive documeniing, evalusting and testing the design and operating effectiveness
of it intemal controls over linancial reponting.

The Company soquired Ahlomid, Inc, (Ahiomed), ina business combination in December 2022, Abiomed's ital assets, excloding intangihle assets
anal gooddwill, and 1oal sales represenied less than 1% of cach of the nelated comsolidated MNnancial statement amoants as of and Tor the ol year ended
Tamuary |, 2023, As the scquisition cccured in the fiscal year 2, tbe scope of the Company's ssesment of ihe design and efleciiveness of imemal
ol over financial reporting lor the flscal vear 2122 excluded the above mentioned acyuisition. This exclusion is in accordance with the SECs general
paidance that an assessmend of o recendly scquired business may be amidied fram the soope in the year of acgaisiten.

Based o thae ﬂulrn[unj"n MOy and assessmient, as describied above, management has concluded that, as of lansary 1, 2023, the € ':nrrlru.u_'.: %
imemal comtml over lmancial neporting was ellective.

The elfectiveness al the Companys Ingermal control over financial reporting a5 of Lanuary 1, 2023 has been ausdited by PricowalerhinseCoopers LLP,
an ndependent registered public accouming fom, as staed in thelr repon, which appears herein,

L. Dwialis {s' Jimagli 1. Wl
Joagmin Duiato Joseph 1. Wolk
Chalrmam, Board of Diecors Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Cflicer

Cliel Executive Oflicer

TiKi
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(MSN Pharmaceuticals Inc.)
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Johnson & Johnson

Opinions on the Financial Satements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Johnson & Johnson and its subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of January 1, 2023 and January 2, 2022, and the related consolidated statements of earnings, of
comprehensive income, of equity and of cash flows for each of the three fiscal yearsin the period ended January 1, 2023,
including the related notes (collectively referred to as the “ consolidated financial statements’). We aso have audited the
Company's internal control over financial reporting as of January 1, 2023, based on criteria established in Internal
Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO).

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of January 1, 2023 and January 2, 2022, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for each of the three fiscal yearsin the period ended January 1, 2023 in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in al material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of January 1, 2023, based on criteria established in Internal
Control - Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the COSO.

Basisfor Opinions

The Company's management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting,
included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is
to express opinions on the Company’ s consolidated financial statements and on the Company's internal control over
financial reporting based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in
accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud, and whether effective interna control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects.

Our audits of the consolidated financia statements included performing procedures to assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that
respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosuresin the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of interna control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide areasonable basis for
our opinions.
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As described in Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, management has excluded

Abiomed, Inc., (“Abiomed”) from its assessment of internal control over financial reporting as of January 1, 2023,
because it was acquired by the Company in a business combination during 2022. We have also excluded Abiomed from
our audit of internal control over financial reporting. Abiomed is awholly-owned subsidiary whose total assets and total
sales excluded from management’ s assessment and our audit of internal control over financial reporting represent less
than 1% of each of the related consolidated financia statement amounts as of and for the fiscal year ended January 1,
2023.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of itsinherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the consolidated
financial statements that were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (i) relate to
accounts or disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial statements and (ii) involved our especially
challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as awhole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit
matters below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they
relate.

U.S Pharmaceutical Rebate Reserves — Managed Care, Medicare and Medicaid

As described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company recognizes revenue from product sales
when obligations under the terms of a contract with the customer are satisfied. Rebates and discounts provided to
customers are accounted for as variable consideration and recorded as a reduction in sales. The liability for such rebates
and discounts is recognized within Accrued Rebates, Returns, and Promotions on the consolidated balance sheet. A
significant portion of the liability related to rebates is from the sale of pharmaceutical goods within the U.S., primarily
the Managed Care, Medicare and Medicaid programs, which amounted to $9.6 billion as of January 1, 2023. For
significant rebate programs, which include the U.S. Managed Care, Medicare and Medicaid rebate programs, rebates and
discounts estimated by management are based on contractual terms, historical experience, patient outcomes, trend
analysis, and projected market conditionsin the U.S. pharmaceutical market.

The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to U.S. pharmaceutical rebate
reserves - Managed Care, Medicare and Medicaid is acritical audit matter are the significant judgment by management
due to the significant measurement uncertainty involved in devel oping these reserves and the high degree of auditor
judgment, subjectivity and audit effort in performing procedures and evaluating the assumptions related to contractual
terms, historical experience, patient outcomes, trend analysis, and projected market conditions in the U.S. pharmaceutical
market.

437/439



EDINETOIOICIC)

0000000000 0000C(E05943)
ooo0000

Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming our

overal opinion on the consolidated financial statements. These procedures included testing the effectiveness of controls

relating to U.S. pharmaceutical rebate reserves - Managed Care, Medicare and Medicaid, including controls over the

assumptions used to estimate these rebates. These procedures also included, among others, (i) developing an independent

estimate of the rebates by utilizing third party information on price and market conditionsin the U.S. pharmaceutical

market, the terms of the specific rebate programs, and the historical experience and trend analysis of actual rebate claims

paid; (ii) testing rebate claims processed by the Company, including evaluating those claims for consistency with the

contractual and mandated terms of the Company’ s rebate arrangements; and (iii) comparing the independent estimates to

management’s estimates.

Litigation Contingencies — Talc

As described in Notes 1 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company records accruals for loss
contingencies associated with legal matters, including talc, when it is probable that aliability will be incurred and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. To the extent adverse awards, judgments, or verdicts have been rendered
against the Company, management does not record an accrual until alossis determined to be probable and can be
reasonably estimated. For these matters, management is unable to estimate the possible loss or range of loss beyond the
amounts accrued. Amounts accrued for legal contingencies often result from a complex series of judgments about future
events and uncertainties that rely heavily on estimates and assumptions including timing of related payments. The ability
to make such estimates and judgments can be affected by various factors, including, among other things, whether
damages sought in the proceedings are unsubstantiated or indeterminate; scientific and legal discovery has not
commenced or is hot complete; proceedings are in early stages; matters present legal uncertainties; there are significant
factsin dispute; procedural or jurisdictional issues; the uncertainty and unpredictability of the number of potential claims;
ability to achieve comprehensive multi-party settlements; complexity of related cross- claims and counterclaims; and/or
there are numerous parties involved. Management continues to believe that the Company has strong legal grounds to
contest the talc verdicts it has appealed. Notwithstanding management’ s confidence in the safety of the Company’s talc
products, in certain circumstances the Company has settled cases. In October 2021, Johnson & Johnson Consumer Inc.
(Qld J3Cl), awholly-owned subsidiary of Johnson & Johnson, implemented a corporate restructuring and created a
subsidiary, LTL Management LLC (LTL), which became solely responsible for the talc-related liabilities, and another
subsidiary, New JJCI, which became responsible for the remaining business of Old JJCI. LTL filed avoluntary petition,
seeking relief under chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code. As aresult of the LTL bankruptcy case, the Court entered a
temporary restraining order staying all litigation against LTL and Old JJCI. On November 15, 2021, the North Carolina
Bankruptcy Court confirmed the scope of the stay, issuing a Preliminary Injunction (PI) prohibiting and enjoining the
commencement and prosecution of talc-related claims against LTL, Old JICI, New JJCI, Johnson & Johnson, other of
their corporate affiliates, identified retailers, insurance companies, and certain other parties. The LTL Bankruptcy Case
was transferred to the United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of New Jersey in November 2021, and that court
extended the PI through the end of February 2022. Claimants filed motions to dismissthe LTL Bankruptcy Case and,
following amultiple day hearing, the New Jersey Bankruptcy Court denied those motions by order issued in March
2022. The New Jersey Bankruptcy Court simultaneously issued another order extending the stay as to the Protected
Parties. The claimants subsequently filed notices of appeal as to the denia of the motions to dismiss and the extension of
the stay. In May 2022,the Third Circuit Court of Appeals granted the petitions to appeal. The briefing and oral argument
on the appeal were completed in September 2022. On January 30, 2023, the Third Circuit reversed the Bankruptcy Court
’s ruling and remanded to the Bankruptcy Court to dismissthe LTL bankruptcy. LTL hasfiled a petition for rehearing
on the decision.
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The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to the talc litigation is a critical

audit matter are the significant judgment by management when assessing the likelihood of aloss being incurred and
when determining whether a reasonable estimate of the loss or range of loss for the future and existing talc claims can be
made, which in turn led to a high degree of auditor judgment, subjectivity and effort in performing procedures and
evaluating management’ s assessment of the loss contingencies associated with this litigation.

Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming our
overal opinion on the consolidated financial statements. These procedures included testing the effectiveness of controls
relating to management’s evaluation of the talc litigation, including controls over determining whether alossis probable
and whether the amount of 10ss can be reasonably estimated, as well as financial statement disclosures. These procedures
aso included, among others, (i) gaining an understanding of the Company’ s process around the accounting and reporting
for the talc litigation; (ii) discussing the status of significant known actual and potential litigation and the ongoing LTL
bankruptcy proceedings with the Company’s in- house legal counsel, as well as external counsel when deemed
necessary; (iii) obtaining and evaluating the letters of audit inquiry with internal and external legal counsel for significant
litigation; (iv) evaluating the reasonableness of management’ s assessment regarding whether an unfavorable outcomeis
reasonably possible or probable and reasonably estimable; and (v) evaluating the sufficiency of the Company’s litigation
contingencies disclosures.

/< PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Florham Park, New Jersey
February 16, 2023

We have served as the Company’s auditor since at least 1920. We have not been able to determine the specific year we
began serving as auditor of the Company.
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